VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
AGENDA
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors
Monday, December 1, 2025 — 2:00 P.M.

The VCMWD Board of Directors welcomes the public to attend its meetings both in-person
at its Board Room and virtually via livestream. Please note that in the event of technical
issues that disrupt the meeting livestream or receipt of public comments by phone or
email, the meeting will continue, unless otherwise required by law, such as when a
Director is attending the meeting virtually pursuant to certain provisions of the Brown Act.

Instructions for members of the ublic who wish to address the Board of Directors:

Members of the public can address the Board of Directors during “Public Comments” or on specific
agenda items, may do so as instructed below. All comments will be subject to a limit of three (3) minutes.

e Makin Public Comment for In-Person Attendance: Members of the public who wish to observe or to
address the Board may join the Board Members at the noticed, physical location. A Request to Speak
slip must be submitted to the Board Secretary prior to start of the meeting (if possible).

e Phone Comments Durin the Meetin : Before the meeting, or before public comment period for
the item closes during the meeting, submit a telephone number by email to the Board Secretary
at ubliccomments vcemwd.or , together with the agenda item number, and the Board Secretary
will call when the board is ready to hear public comments; or

e Emailed Comments: Before the meeting, or before public comment period for that item closes at
the meeting, email your comments to the Board Secretary at ubliccomments vecmwd.or and
they will be read aloud during the public comment period; or

¢ Written Comments: Written comments can be also be physically dropped off or mailed in advance
of the meeting at the District's Administrative located at 29300 Valley Center Rd., Valley Center,
CA 92082, for receipt no later than 1:00 pm on meeting day.

These public comment procedures supersede any District public comment policies and procedures
to the contrary. If modifications or accommodations from individuals with disabilities are required,
such persons should provide a request at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting by email to the
Board Secretary at boardsecreta ~ vemwd.or .

Meetin Broadcast: Members of the public may watch the meeting electronically by visiting the
District’'s website at vemwd.or /Board/Board-Documents and then clicking the
link listed below “live stream” on the page.

Meetin Documents: Board Meeting Packets (except for closed session materials) will be made
available to the public once distributed to the Board. Please visit the District's
website at vemwd.or /Board/Board-Documents for Agenda and related Board
Meeting Documents.

ROLL CALL

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

At its option, the Board may approve the agenda, delete an item, reorder items and add an item to the
agenda (Government Code Section 54954.2).

PUBLIC COMMENTS

Comments and inquiries from the audience will be received on any matter not on the agenda, but
within the jurisdiction of the Board. Comments and inquiries pertaining to an item on the agenda will
be received during the deliberation of the agenda item (Government Code Section 54954.3).



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Board of Directors’ Meeting Agenda

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS

Consent calendar items will be voted on together by a single motion unless separate action is
requested by a Board member, staff or member of the audience.

1. Minutes of the Re ular Board Meetin Held Monda November 17 2025; and
2. Audit Demands.

PRESENTATION ITEM

3. Review Receive and File of the District’'s Annual Com rehensive Financial Re -rt
ACFR for Fiscal Year FY 2024-25 and Review of A ro riation Limit Worksheet:

The District’'s Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for Fiscal Year 2024-25 and Appropriation
Limit Worksheet will be reviewed.

Report by Director of Finance
Discussion

Audience comments/questions
Informational presentation only

cpoow

ACTION ITEM S

4. A rove Professional Services A reement with Interface Automation for S stem
Inte ration Services for the Woods Valle Ranch WRF SCADA\HMI Software U rade:

The Board will consider the approval of Resolution No. 2025-31 authorizing the General Manager
to enter into a Professional Services Agreement with Interface Automation for HMI software
upgrade services at the Woods Valley Ranch Water Reclamation Facility.

a. Report by District Engineer
b. Discussion

c. Audience comments/questions

d. If desired, motion to approve or deny Resolution No. 2025-31

5. San Die olLocal A enc Formation Commission S ecial Districts Adviso Committee
Call for Ballots:

Request the Board of Directors approve the recommended selection of candidates and cast an
election ballot for the San Diego Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) Special Districts
Advisory Committee (SDAC).

Report by Special Projects and Regulatory Compliance Manager

Discussion

Audience comments/questions

If desired, motion to provide authorization to the Board President approve the recommended
selection of candidates and cast an election ballot for the San Diego Local Agency Formation
Commission (LAFCO) Special Districts Advisory Committee (SDAC).

coop:

2 December 1, 2025



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Board of Directors’ Meeting Agenda

INFORMATIONAL ITEMS

6. Water Use Efficienc and Water Loss Performance Standards U date:

Provide the Board a status update on District compliance with and implementation of state
mandated Water Use Efficiency and Water Loss Performance Standards.

a. Report by Special Projects and Regulatory Compliance Manager
b. Discussion

¢. Audience comments/questions

d. Information item only, no action required

1. San Die o Count Water Authorit SDCWA Board Meetin Summa
A report on the SDCWA'’s Board of Directors’ Meeting November 20, 2025 will be provided.

a. Report by Gary Arant

b. Discussion

¢. Audience comments/questions

d. Information item only, no action required

8. General Information:
General Information items will be reviewed.

a. Report by General Manager

b. Discussion

c. Audience comments/questions

d. Information item only, no action required

DISTRICT GENERAL COUNSEL’S REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ AGENDA AND AB1234 REPORTING*

* Directors must provide brief reports on meetings/events attended in the performance of their official duties for
which compensation or reimbursement is provided. Authority: Government Code Section 53232.3.

CLOSED SESSION ITEM

At any time during the regular session, the Board may adjourn to closed session to consider
litigation, personnel matters, or to discuss with legal counsel matters within the attorney-client
privilege. Discussion of litigation is within the attorney-client privilege and may be held in closed
session (per Government Code § 54956.9).

9. A Closed Session will be held ursuant to the followin item:

¢ Government Code §54956.9 (d)(1) — Conference with Legal Counsel — Existing Litigation:
HOLLOWAY V. SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY et al.,
Case No. 37-2023-00053167-CU-OR-NC.

3 December 1, 2025



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Board of Directors’ Meeting Agenda

ADJOURNMENT

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC

This agenda was posted at least 72 hours before the meeting in a location freely accessible to the
public. No action may be taken on any item not appearing on the posted agenda, except as provided
by Government Code Section 54954.2. Any written materials provided to a majority of the Board of
Directors within 72 hours prior to the meeting regarding any item on this agenda will be available for
public inspection on the District's website. The agenda is available for public review on the District’s
website, htt ://www.vemwd.or .

For questions or request for information related to this agenda contact Coral Williams, Board
Secretary, at (760) 735-4517 or ubliccomments vcmwd.or . Upon request, this agenda will be
made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required by Section
202 of the American with Disabilities Act of 1990. Any person with a disability who requires a
modification or accommodation in order to participate in a meeting should direct such request to the
Board Secretary at least 48 hours before the meeting, if possible.

— End of Agenda —

4 December 1, 2025



VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
MINUTES
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors
Monday, November 17, 2025 — 2:00 P.M.

The Valley Center Municipal Water District Board of Directors’ meeting was called to order
by President Ferro at 2:00 PM. In the Board Room at 29300 Valley Center Rd.; Valley Center,
CA 92082, and livestreamed on the District's website at www.vemwd.or .

ROLL CALL

Board Members Present: Directors Ferro, Baker, Ness, and Stehly.
Board Members Absent: Director Holtz.

Staff Members Present: General Manager Leahy, Former General Manager Arant, District
Engineer Grabbe, Director of Finance and Administration Pugh, Director of Operations and Facilities
Lovelady, Manager of Accounting/Deputy Director of Finance & Administration \/elasquez; Director
of IT Pilve, Administrative Assistant/Assistant Board Secretary Williams, Special Projects and
Regulatory Compliance Manager Nichols, General Counsel de Sousa, and SDCWA Principal
Construction Manager Airey present in-person.

PUBLIC COMMENT S

President Ferro established for the record the process by which public comments are received by
the Board; this process was also described in the Agenda for the meeting.

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS

Consent calendar items will be voted on together by a single motion unless separate action is
requested by a Board member, staff or member of the audience.

1. Minutes of the Re ular Board Meetin Held Monda October 20 2025;

2. Audit Demands and Wire Disbursements;
3. Treasurer’'s Re ort for Month Endin Se tember 30 2025; and

4. Financial Statements for the uarter Ended Se tember 30 2025.

Action: Upon motion by Ness, seconded by Stehly; and carried with 4 affimative votes, the
previously listed consent calendar items were approved.

PRESENTATION

5. Informational Presentation b San Die o Count Water Authorit on the San Die o
A ueduct Bifurcation Pro‘ect:

Ms. Valerie Airey, Principal Construction Manager, provided the Board with an overview of the First
Aqueduct Treated Water Bifurcation Structures and Hubbard Hill Vents Rehabilitation Project.



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes

Project Overview:

Ms. Airey reviewed the regional aqueduct system layout, highlighting:

First and Second Aqueduct alignments

Pipeline 1 and Pipeline 2 delivery points

Major tunnel segments including Lilac, Red Mountain, Oat Hills, and Rainbow tunnels
Hubbard Hill overflow and vent structures

Existing bifurcation structures requiring rehabilitation

Project Purpose & Objectives:
The project includes critical seismic and structural upgrades to meet current code requirements.
Work elements include:

Rehabilitation of six (6) bifurcation structures at three tunnel locations

Upgrades to two (2) vent structures at Hubbard Hill

Improvements to access points for personnel, water sampling, and O&M functions
Various site enhancements to support long-term operational reliability

The project is designed to increase seismic resiliency, improve safety for field personnel, and ensure
consistent operational performance.
Construction Impacts & Expectations:

Ms. Airey described anticipated construction activities and potential impacts to nearby residents and
businesses, including:

Standard work hours: Monday-Friday, 7:00 AM-5:00 PM
e 24/7 shutdown work for approximately 10 days each in:
o January 2026
o January 2027
Equipment and material deliveries
Use of heavy machinery, including units with backup alarms
Temporary equipment staging areas
Construction signage
Periodic noise and dust
Use of public and private roads for construction access

Public Outreach Plan:

To minimize community impacts and ensure accurate communication, outreach efforts include:

Direct outreach to nearby residents and businesses

Distribution of Water Authority Public Affairs business cards

Postcard mailers sent to all residents within 1,000 feet of work zones

A Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ) sheet prepared for VCMWD staff

These efforts are intended to maintain transparency and support timely communication throughout
the construction process.

Action: Informational item only; no Board actior required

2 November 17, 2025



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes

ACTION ITEM S

6. Rati Execution of Rec cled Water Use A reement with San Pas ual Economic
Develo ment Council SPEDC dba Native Oaks Golf Club ado t Resolution No. 2025-
30 and Authorize Filin the A reement with the Count :

Mr. Arant presented an overview of the updated Recycled Water Use Agreement between the District
and the San Pasqual Economic Development Council (SPEDC), DBA Native Oaks Golf Club
(NOGC). Staff noted that the Agreement replaces the previous arrangement with Woods Valley
Country Club, Limited Partnership, whose interests have since transferred to SPEDC.

The purpose of the action was to:

» Ratify the former General Manager’s execution of the updated Agreement; and
» Authorize filing of the executed Agreement with the San Diego County Recorder’s Office.

Summary of Negotiations & Key Agreement Updates
Staff reviewed the negotiations undertaken with SPEDC to update the Agreement in order to:

+ Reflect the change in ownership/party structure; and
+ Allow for expanded recycled water deliveries to Native Oaks Golf Club, up to the permitted
treatment capacity of the Woods Valley Ranch Water Reclamation Facility (WVRWRF).

Water Quality Considerations — Nitrates & TDS (Section 3)
Issue:

Increased volumes of recycled water deliveries elevate the need for soil and turf amendments due
to nitrates and total dissolved solids, resulting in increased golf course operational costs.

Response: Staff presented a cost-balancing proposal addressing delivery rate impacts:

¢ Current Rate Structure:
o District charges 50% of the imported water rate for the first 40,000 gallons/day (~44.8
AFY).
o Deliveries above this threshold are charged at 115% of the imported water rate.
o Generates approximately $105,000 annually.

o Proposed Adjustment:
o Maintain 50% rate for the first 40,000 gallons/day.
o Waive charges for deliveries above 40,000 gallons/day.
o Generates approximately $73,000 annually, a decrease of about $32,000, but stili covers
delivery-related power and O&M costs.

Timing of Deliveries & Course Playability (Section 11)
Issue:

Over-saturation of turf during peak play periods adversely affects course conditions and player
experience.

3 November 17, 2025



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes

Resolution:

o Deliveries will be strategically coordinated using:
o On-course storage facilities
o District seasonal reservoirs
» This approach supports optimized irrigation timing and improves course playability.
o The section also acknowledges the potential for future expansion of on-course storage to
increase operational flexibility and provide additional emergency storage capacity for District
needs.

Technical & Administrative Revisions

Staff emphasized that, aside from updates to correctly identify the parties, no substantive operational
changes were made compared to the 2013 Agreement.

Recommendation
Staff recommended the Board:

1. Ratify the former General Manager’s execution of the Agreement by adopting Resolution No.
2025-30; and
2. Direct the executed Agreement be filed with the San Diego County Recorder’s Office.

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-30

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL
WATER DISTRICT RATIFYING THE FORMER GENERAL MANAGER’S EXECUTION OF THE
RECYCLED WATER USE AGREEMENT WITH THE SAN PASQUAL ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL, DBA NATIVE OAKS GOLF CLUB, INC., AND DIRECTING THAT
THE AGREEMENT BE FILED WITH THE SAN DIEGO COUNTY RECORDER’S OFFICE

Action: Upon motion by Stehly, seconded by Ness; motion to approve the following Resolution
passed with four (4) affirmative votes:

Was adopted by the following vote, to wit:

AYES: Directors Ferro, Ness, Stehly and Baker
NOES: None
ABSENT: Holtz

1. Re uest A roval of Woods Valle Ranch WVR Ca acit Transfer Installment
Purchase A reement:

The District Engineer presented an overview of the proposed Instaliment Purchase Agreement
(IPA) to transfer a portion of the Woods Valley Ranch Water Reclamation Facility (WVR WRF)
treatment and seasonal storage capacity from the Indian Creek Associates (ICA) properties in
the North Village to Community Facilities District (CFD) 2020-1 (Park Circle) in the South Village.

4 November 17, 2025



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes

Pur ose of the A reement
The purpose of the IPA is to:

« Transfer 218.5 EDU of wastewater capacity from ICA to CFD 2020-1 over 13 years;

o Provide CFD 2020-1 with the treatment capacity needed in lieu of constructing Phase 3
Expansion Improvements at WVR WRF; and

o Authorize execution of the Agreement through adoption of Resolution No. 2025-26.

Back round & A reement Parties
Staff described the parties to the agreement:

» Indian Creek Associates (ICA)— Owner of 11 parcels (107 acres) north of Valley Center Road,
holding 224 EDUs of allocated capacity.

¢ VCMWD — Owner/operator of WVR WRF.

o CFD 2020-1 (Park Circle) — Requesting transfer of treatment and seasonal storage capacity
to support build-out.

Nine parcels were formerly the Westin Properties (“Maddox Field”) and two belonged to Valley
Center View Properties, LP.

Ca acit Transfer Terms & Conditions
Transfer Quantity and Schedule

Total Transfer: 218.5 EDUs.

First Year Transfer: 55 EDUs.

Remaining Average: ~15 EDUs per year thereafter.
Actual transfer pacing is dependent on available Special Tax revenue.

What Ca acit Transfers / What Does Not

o Transfers:
o Base Treatment Capacity
o Seasonal Storage Capacity

e Does Not Transfer:
o Collection System Capacity (remains with ICA parcels)
o Park Circle has already fully funded its share of collection system improvements.

Relationshi to Phase 3 Ex ansion

Staff explained that the transfer of capacity eliminates the need for CFD 2020-1 to construct
Phase 3 Expansion Improvements at the WVR WREF.

e The Park Circle Developer previously posted $3,770,000 in security for its share of Phase 3
costs affecting parcels outside the CFD.

o Because Phase 3 is no longer required, the security deposit is no longer needed and will be
made available for reimbursement to the developer upon execution of the IPA.

5 November 17, 2025



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes

Cost Reimbursements & Administrative Code Re uirements
Administrative Code Section 171.11

Staff reviewed how the District's Administrative Code governs capacity transfers, including:

« Eligibility for reimbursement of capacity-related costs;
o Limitations tied to Special Tax revenue availability;
» Required multi-year transfer schedules.

Cost Com arison

o Capacity Transfer Total Cost: = $3.64 million
o Estimated Phase 3 Expansion Cost to CFD: = $6.0 million

The capacity transfer option is significantly less costly for CFD 2020-1 property owners.

Initial Reimbursement Com onents

Upon execution of the IPA, ICA will receive an initial reimbursement of $329,280, consisting of:
o $224,280 — Standby Fees (FY 2024-25 & FY 2025-26)

« $58,828 — Principal assessment component for 55 EDUs (FY 2024-25)

o $46,142 — Principal equity component + interest

Funding sources:

« WVR WRF Replacement Reserve — Standby fee reimbursement
o CFD Special Tax Fund — Principal and interest reimbursements

AD 2012-1 assessment liens are not released; ICA remains responsible for assessments
based on current capacity allocations.

On oin Reimbursement Structure

o Annual AD 2012-1 assessments continue to be paid by ICA.

o The District reimburses ICA from excess Special Tax revenue for the transferred capacity.

o The equity component accumulates until the special tax revenue is sufficient for
reimbursement.

» Interest accrues at the State Revolving Fund (SRF) rate of 2.2%.

Good Faith Estimate Re uired Disclosure

As the Instaliment Purchase Agreement constitutes a debt obligation of the CFD, Government
Code requires public disclosure of key financing terms.

Good Faith Estimate:

Principal Amount: $4,985,539
Term: 16 years

Interest Rate: 2.2%

True Interest Cost: 0.91%
Total Interest: $543,164
Total Payments: $5,558,703

6 November 17, 2025



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes

o Finance Charge: $30,000 (estimated third-party costs)
Recommendation

Staff recommended that the Board adopt Resolution No. 2025-26 approving the Instaliment
Purchase Agreement for funding the multi-year transfer of Woods Valley Ranch WRF capacity
from the North Village Area for use by Community Facilities District No. 2020-1 in accordance
with the Capacity Reservation Transfer Policy (Administrative Code Section 171.11).

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-26

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT APPROVING AN
INSTALLMENT PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH RESPECT TO FINANCING
THE PURCHASE OF WASTEWATER CAPACITY IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO
EXCEED $5,470,000 THROUGH SPECIAL TAXES LEVIED WITHIN
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2020-1 (PARK CIRCLE
EAST/WEST) OF THE VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT AND
OTHER MATTERS PERTAINING THERETO

Action: Upon motion by Stehly, seconded by Ness; motion to approve the following Resolution
passed with four (4) affirmative votes:

Was adopted by the following vote, to wit:

AYES: Directors Ferro, Ness, Stehly and Baker.
NOES: None
ABSENT: Holtz

8. Old Castle Pi eline Re.lacement—DWSRF Good Faith Estimate A roval and
Loan Document Authorization:

The District Engineer requested Board approval of Resolution No. 2025-29, which authorizes
execution of the required Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (SRF) Installment Sale
Agreement with the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) for the Old Castle Pipeline
Replacement Project — Phase 2.

District Engineer Grabbe reviewed the project purpose and status:
o The Old Castle Pipeline Replacement Project includes
o Phase 1: 1,900 LF of 12-inch pipeline (completed in 2019)
o Phase 2: 10,800 LF of 12-inch pipeline
o Total Project Cost: $9,300,000
o $5,525,000 SRF Loan
o $3,775,000 EPA Community Grant

o The SRF loan has been approved by the SWRCB; EPA grant approval is in progress.
« Construction start is currently anticipated for May 2026.

7 November 17, 2025



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes

District Engineer Grabbe noted that while the Board previously authorized staff to submit the SRF
application and execute financing documents, California Government Code 5852.1 requires
public disclosure of financing terms before entering into a debt obligation. The Good Faith
Estimate, included in Resolution No. 2025-29, fulfills that requirement.

Good Faith Estimate — Ke Terms

Principal: $5,525,000

Term: 30 years

Interest Rate: 1.9%

Total Interest: $1,968,452

Total Payments: $7,493,452

Finance Charge: $11,000 (estimated third-party costs)
Estimated Annual Payment: ~$250,000

Next Ste s & Estimated Schedule

Grant approval: December 2025

Bridge loan approval: December 2025

Budget amendment: January 2026

Advertise for bids: January—-April 2026

Bridge loan closing: April 2026

Construction contract award & NTP: May 2026
Construction duration: 24 months (completion ~June 2028)

Recommendation

Staff concluded by recommending adoption of Resolution No. 2025-29, approving the Installment
Sale Agreement and authorizing staff to enter into the SRF Loan.

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-29

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL
WATER DISTRICT AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF AND
APPROVING A FINANCING AGREEMENT WITH THE CALIFORNIA STATE WATER
RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD AND AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OTHER ACTIONS IN
CONNECTION THEREWITH

Action: Upon motion by Ness, seconded by Baker; motion to approve the following Resolution
passed with four (4) affirmative votes:

Was adopted by the following vote, to wit:

AYES: Directors Ferro, Ness, Stehly and Baker.
NOES: None
ABSENT: Holtz

8 November 17, 2025



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes

INFORMATION ITEMS
9. Le islative and Re ulato Re ort:

Special Projects and Regulatory Compliance Manager Nichols updated the Board on state-level
legislation and regulatory developments affecting District operations.

Action: Informational item only; no Board action required

10. San Die o Count Water Authorit SDCWA Board Meetin Summa
A report on the SDCWA'’s Board of Directors’ Meeting of October 23, 2025 was provided.

Action: Informational item only; no Board action required

1. General Information:
An overview of the District Status report for the month of September was provided.

Action: Informational item only, no action required.

DISTRICT GENERAL COUNSEL’S ITEM S

None.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ AB1234 REPORTS ON MEETINGS ATTENDED

None.

CLOSED SESSION ITEM
At any time during the regular session, the Board may adjourn to closed session to consider litigation,
personnel matters, or to discuss with legal counsel matters within the attorney-client privilege.
Discussion of litigation is within the attorney-client privilege and may be held in closed session (per
Government Code § 54956.9).

12. A Closed Session was called b President Ferro at 3:07 PM ursuant to the followin
item:

o Government Code §54956.9 (d)(1) — Conference with Legal Counsel - Existing Litigation:
HOLLOWAY V. SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY et al.,
Case No. 37-2023-00053167-CU-OR-NC.

RECONVENE

Action: The Board came out of closed session at 3:24 PM with no reportable action.

9 November 17, 2025



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes

ADJOURNMENT

Action: Upon motion by Ness seconded by Stehly; motion passed with 4 affirmative votes, the
regular meeting of the Board of Directors was adjourned at 3:24 PM.

ATTEST: ATTEST:

Coral L. Williams, Acting Board Secretary Enrico P. Ferro, President

10 November 17, 2025



VALLEY CENTER M.W.D.
DISBURSEMENTS
FOR PERIOD NOVEMBER 08, 2025 THROUGH NOVEMBER 14, 2025

NOVEMBER

CHECK # PAYEE DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
ACH Alpha Analytical Laboratories, Inc. Testing 255.00
ACH Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Materials - Field 10,045.60
ACH Grainger, Inc Materials - Field 618.59
ACH IntelePeer Holdings Inc. Services 833.23
ACH  Prudential Overall Supply Uniform Rentals - October 2025 4,250.61
ACH Self Insured Services Company LLC Reimbursement Request For Dental Funding Date 889.65
ACH United Parcel Service, Inc. Shipping 19.76
ACH  Univar Solutions Materials - Field 4,683.25
172552  A-1 Irrigation, Inc Materials - Field 4,169.26
172553 Aaron Mehandroo LLC Vehicle Maintenance 270.32
172554  Aelott Air Conditioning, Inc. A/C Maintenance 1,505.00
172555  Asbury Environmental Services Hazardous Waste Removal 8.00
172556 AT&T Services 2,864.86
172557 Bavco Materials - Field 4,444.67
172558 Boncor Water Systems, LLC DI Tank Service For Acct#412732 - November 20. 220.00
172559 Busy Bees Locks & Keys, Inc. Services 48.94
172560 California Dept. of Tax and Fee Admir Hazardous Waste Generation & Handling Fee Pre 280.08
172561 Charlie L. Hoffa Opacity Testing 1,065.00
172562 Complete Office of California, Inc Office Supplies 1,628.09
172563 Corodata Records Management Record Storage - October 2025 126.57
172564 Davis Farr LLP Services - Annual Audit For FY 2024-2025 17,000.00
172565 Diamond Environmental Services, LP Services 71.34
172566 Emission Compliant Controls Corporal Services 1,075.00
172567 FedEx Shipping Services 77.96
172568 Ferguson Waterworks #1083 Materials - Field 4,169.71
172569 HealthEquity Inc. Monthly Fees - November 2025 17.70
172570 Bryce and Emma Kirklen BP Refund - Permit:2025-0001 2,000.00
172571 Ramon Lastra Strip and Wax Floor 2,370.00
172572 National Safety Compliance, Inc D.O.T. Certified Drug Test 383.64
172573 Occupational Health Centers of Califo Medical Services 118.00
172574 Palomar Termite & Pest Control Pest Control - October 2025 80.00
172575 Quality Chevrolet Vehicle Maintenance 336.18
172576 S & R Towing, Inc. Services 350.00
172577 Transamerican Direct, Inc. Prop 218 Letters - Mailing Services 7,953.17
172578 Yardley Orgill Co. Inc. Materials - Field ____1.291.06
TOTAL 75,520.24

Approved By: ﬂ . ( A ﬁ/\m/

C’ﬁ‘nefal r{)ana%r )

é?(lar!:)f Finafice & Administration



VALLEY CENTER M.W.D.
DISBURSEMENTS
FOR PERIOD NOVEMBER 15, 2025 THROUGH NOVEMBER 21, 2025

NOVEMBER
CHECK# PAYEE DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
ACH ACWA/JPIA Blue Cross Medical Premiums - December 2025 84,250.52
ACH  Alpha Analytical Laboratories, Inc. Testing 2,307.50
ACH Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Mateirals - IT 266.58
ACH Escondido Metal Supply Materials - Field 582.66
ACH FRS Environmental Services 365.40
ACH  Grainger, Inc Materials - Field 157.13
ACH Hasa, Inc. Chemicals 2,767.86
ACH HD Supply Facilities Maintenance Ltd. Materials - Field 666.30
ACH International City Mgmt Association Re Plan# 801966. MissionSquare Remittance 10/31/2¢ 4,294.52
ACH Greg Johnson Materials - Field 9,375.03
ACH Koppel & Gruber Public Finance Services 2,730.00
ACH  Liquid Environmental Solutions of Calif Services 7.972.72
ACH Monument Row Gordon Hill Upper - Water Line Easement Project 315.00
ACH Alisa Nichols Mileage Reimbursement 09/10/25-10/31/25 and AC 258.66
ACH Paymentus Corporation Transaction Fees - October 2025 19,119.44
ACH  Quartic Solutions LLC GIS Support 300.00
ACH Rockwell Construction Services, LLC North County Emergency Storage Project and Wat 7,437.50
ACH  Self insured Services Company LLC  Reimbursement Request For Dental Funding Datec 1,730.70
ACH Valley Center Municipal Water District Employee Contributions 10/31/25-11/14/25 - Barga 563.75
ACH VCMWD Employees Association Employee Contributions 10/31/25-11/14/25 - Social 549.00
ACH Waterline Technologies Inc Materials - Field 649.84
172579 ABC General contractor inc Refund Check 020372-001, 22081905 FH@33.28¢ 2,131.54
172580 Asbury Environmental Services Hazardous Waste Removal 433.05
172581  AT&T Mobility Services - Account No. 287290784385 5,627.63
172582 Babcock Laboratories, Inc Testing 725.51
172583 Brenntag Pacific Inc. Materials - Field 1,420.02
172584  California Municipal Statistics, Inc. Direct and Overlapping Debt Statement As Of 06/3! 600.00
172585 CDW Government Bluebeam - IT 414.70
172586 Complete Office of California, Inc Office Supplies 111.38
172587 Corodata Media Storage, Inc. Record Storage - October 2025 25419
172588 County of San Diego Repeater Site Rent Acct# 7019 - Palomar Mountair 938.00
172589 CWEA CWEA Association Membership Renewal - Len Brc 251.00
172590 Detection Instruments Corporation Materials - Field and Calibration 2,497.64
172591 Diamond Environmental Services, LP Services 1,620.00
172592 DIRECTV Moosa Dish Service 11/11/25-12/10/25 59.99
172593 Dos Valles Garden Club Purchase Of 10 Poinsettias For Office Decoration 130.00
172594  Emission Compliant Controls Corporati Services 1,075.00
172595  Fallbrook Printing Corp Printing Services 415.44
172596 FedEx Shipping Services 22.85
172597  Full Compass Systems Ltd Materials - Field 2,884.75
172598  Gallade Chemical Inc. Chemicals 860.44
172599  HealthEquity Inc. Employee Contributions 10/31/25-11/14/25 277.00
172600 Lon W. House White Pines Renewables Proposal For Lake Turnel 19,425.00
172601 Infosend A/R Processing, Mail & Postage 4,784.75



VALLEY CENTER M.W.D.
DISBURSEMENTS
FOR PERIOD NOVEMBER 15, 2025 THROUGH NOVEMBER 21, 2025

NOVEMBER

CHECK # PAYEE DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
172602  Chris Kratz Safety Boot Reimbursement 184.86
172603 Fernando Leon Martinez Safety Boot Reimbursement 271.86
172604  Occupational Health Centers of Califor Medical Services 118.00
172605  Pacific Pipeline Supply Materials - Field 1,383.68
172606 Palomar Broadband Inc. Services 69.95
172607  Palomar Termite & Pest Control Pest Control - November 2025 80.00
172608 San Diego Gas & Electric Electric Services - Acct 0007242272582 85,065.49
172609 San Diego Gas & Electric Electric Services - Acct 0010212819358 46,328.14
172610  Self Insured Services Company Medical & Dental Insurance Premiums - November 676.80
172611  Signa Mechanical Materials - Field 125.00
172612  Snap-On Incorporated Materials - Field 104.37
172613  Stericycle, Inc. Record Destruction 736.42
172614 SWRCB Renewal For Distribution Grade 4 - Brian Lovelady 105.00
172615 SWRCB Renewal For Distribution Grade 4 - Ron Darland Oy 140.00
172616 SWRCB Renewal For Distribution Grade 5 -Roy Rutherford 140.00
172617 SWRCB Application For D3 Certificate - Brandon Dendy Op: 120.00
172618 B Tappouni Vehicle Maintenance 438.19
172619 TNE Global Inc Materials - Field 2,776.00
172620  Tri County Pump Company Services 3,380.18
172621  United Way of San Diego County Employee Contributions 10/31/25-11/14/25 20.00
172622  Water Isac Annual Membership Dues 650.00
172623  Yardley Orgill Co. Inc. Materials - Field 1,336.10

TOTAL ~337,870.03

Approved By: ﬁf{ L) J(f] e e

T !
AV LA

Dif&ctor of Figfince & Administration




December 1, 2025

TO: Honorable President and Board of Directors
FROM: Lindsay Leahy, General Manager

SUBJECT: REVIEW THE FINAL DRAFT OF THE ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE
FINANCIAL REPORT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024-25

PURPOSE:
The following reports for Fiscal Year 2024-25 are presented for your review:

e Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR), including the Independent
Auditor’s Report;

e Independent Accountants Report for the Agreed Upon Procedures to the
Appropriations Limit Worksheet;

e Communication with those charged with governance; and

¢ Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards.

SUMMARY:
Annual Comprehensive Financial Report

The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) will be presented at today’s meeting.
A complete ACFR consists of three parts: (1) the Introduction discussing the activity of the
District during 2024-25, (2) the center Financial Section which is our financial statements,
including Management’s Discussion and Analysis, and (3) the Statistical Section which is
an accumulation of statistics that provide a financial history of the District over the last ten
years.

Finance Department staff compiled the report and it is being submitted to the Government
Finance Officers Association for their review. We believe it conforms to the requirements of
the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting and that we will receive
the Certificate for the thirty-second year in a row.

Shannon Ayala of the audit firm of Davis Farr, LLP will be present. They have completed
the audit of the District’s financial condition as of June 30, 2025, and of the results of
operations for the fiscal year then ended. The purpose of the audit is to form an opinion on
whether or not the records maintained by the District, and the accounting principles
followed, result in financial statements that are free of any material misstatement. In the
report prepared for the District, the auditors express an unmodified (or clean) opinion, in
that the statements present fairly in all material respects, the financial position of the District
as of June 30, 2025, and the changes in financial position and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.



Appropriations Limit Worksheet

Davis Farr's Independent Auditor's Report on Applying Agreed Upon Procedures to the
Appropriations Limit Worksheet shows compliance with Article X!lIB of the California
Constitution. While this law limits the annual increase in the property taxes public agencies
can receive, the District receives less than one-half the limit provided.

Communication with Those Charged with Governance

Davis Farr's Communication with those charged with governance letter is included. The
letter outlines their responsibility in relation to the financial statement audit, the scope of the
audit, compliance with all ethics requirements regarding independence and various other
matters that they are required to advise you of regarding their audit.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards

The purpose of Davis Farr's Report on Internal Control is solely to describe the scope of
their testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of
that testing.

RECOMMENDATION:

Receive and file the Independent Auditor's Report on the District and the Fiscal Year 2024-
25 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report and Agreed Upon Procedures to the
Appropriations Limit Worksheet.

REVIEWED BY: APPROVED BY:
v (

J esV. gh I dsay e

Director of Finance & Administration neral a a er

PREPARED BY:

Alsarvern

Vanessa Velasquez
Manager of Accounting



°
DavisFarr
18201 Von Karman Avenue | Suite 1100 | Irvine, CA 92612

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS Main: 949.474.2020 | Fax: 949.263.5520

To the Board of Directors
Valley Center Municipal Water District
Valley Center, California

We have audited the financial statements of the business-type activity and aggregate
remaining fund information of the Valley Center Municipal Water District (“the District”) as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2025 and have issued our report thereon dated November
17, 2025. Professional standards require that we advise you of the following matters relating
to our audit.

Our Responsibility in Relation to the Financial Statement Audit

As communicated in our engagement letter dated June 27, 2025, our responsibility, as
described by professional standards, is to form and express opinions about whether the
financial statements that have been prepared by management with your oversight are
presented fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. Our audit of the financial statements does not
relieve you or management of your respective responsibilities.

Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit
to obtain reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes consideration of
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, as part of
our audit, we considered the internal control of the District solely for the purpose of
determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such internal
control.

We are also responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are,
in our professional judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial
reporting process. However, we are not required to design procedures for the purpose of
identifying other matters to communicate to you.

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit

We conducted our audit consistent with the planned scope and timing we previously
communicated to you.

Compliance with All Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence

The engagement team, others in our firm, as appropriate, and our firm have complied with
all relevant ethical requirements regarding independence.

We identified self-review threats to independence as a result of non-attest services provided.
Those non-attest services included the preparation of the financial statements and recording
journal entries detected during the audit process. To mitigate the risk, management has
compared the draft financial statements and footnotes to the underlying accounting records
to verify accuracy and has reviewed a disclosure checklist to ensure footnotes are complete
and accurate.



Additionally, we utilize a quality control reviewer to perform a second review of journal entries
and the financial statements. We believe these safeguards are sufficient to reduce the
independence threats to an acceptable level.

Significant Risks Identified

We have identified the following significant risks:

¢ Implementation of GASB Statement No. 101: Compensated Absences
o Issuance of New Debt for CFD 2020-1

Qualitative Aspects of the Entity’s Significant Accounting Practices
Significant Accounting Policies

Management has the responsibility to select and use appropriate accounting policies. A
summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by the District is included in Note 1 to
the financial statements. There have been no initial selection of accounting policies and the
District changed the accounting policies related to compensated absences by adopting
Statement of Governmental Accounting Standards (GASB Statement) No. 101, Compensated
Absences, and risk disclosures related to government vulnerabilities due to concentrations
and constraints by adopting Statement of Governmental Accounting Standards (GASB
Statement) No. 102, Certain Risk Disclosures, in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025. No
matters have come to our attention that would require us, under professional standards, to
inform you about (1) the methods used to account for significant unusual transactions and
(2) the effect of significant accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas for which
there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus.

Significant Accounting Estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by
management and are based on management’s current judgments. Those judgments are
normally based on knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions
about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their
significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events
affecting them may differ markedly from management’s current judgments.

The most sensitive accounting estimates affecting the financial statements are:

¢ Management’s estimate of transactions related to net pension liabilities based on
actuarial information. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop
the amounts by the actuary and determined that it is reasonable in relation to the
financial statements taken as a whole.

¢ Management’s estimate of transactions related to net OPEB liabilities based on
actuarial information. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop
the amounts by the actuary and determined that it is reasonable in relation to the
financial statements taken as a whole.



Financial Statement Disclosures

Certain financial statement disclosures involve significant judgment and are particularly
sensitive because of their significance to financial statement users. The most sensitive
disclosures affecting the District’s financial statements were:

+ The disclosure of pensions in note 8 of the financial statements.

¢ The disclosure of OPEB in note 9 to the financial statements.
The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.

Significant Unusual Transactions

For the purposes of this communication, professional standards require us to communicate to
you significant unusual transactions identified during our audit. There were no significant
unusual transactions identified as a result of our audit procedures.

Identified or Suspected Fraud

We have not identified or have obtained information that indicates that fraud may have
occurred.

Significant Difficulties Encountered during the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management relating to the
performance of the audit.

Uncorrected and Corrected Misstatements

For purposes of this communication, professional standards also require us to accumulate all
known and likely misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that we believe
are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. Further,
professional standards require us to also communicate the effect of uncorrected
misstatements related to prior periods on the relevant classes of transactions, account
balances or disclosures, and the financial statements as a whole and each applicable opinion
unit. Management has corrected all misstatements.

In addition, professional standards require us to communicate to you all material, corrected
misstatements that were brought to the attention of management as a result of our audit
procedures. None of the misstatements identified by us as a result of our audit procedures
and corrected by management were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to the
financial statements taken as a whole or applicable opinion units.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management
as a matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting,
reporting, or auditing matter, which could be significant to the District’s financial statements
or the auditor’s report. No such disagreements arose during the course of the audit.



Circumstances that Affect the Form and Content of the Auditor’s Report

For the purposes of this letter, professional standards require that we communicate any
circumstances that affect the form and content of our auditor’s report. There were none.

Representations Requested from Management

We have requested certain written representations from management, which are included in
the letter dated November 17, 2025.

Management’s Consultations with Other Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing
and accounting matters. Management informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no
consultations with other accountants regarding auditing and accounting matters.

Other Significant Matters, Findings, or Issues

In the normal course of our professional association with the District, we generally discuss a
variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards,
significant events or transactions that occurred during the year, operating and regulatory
conditions affecting the entity, and operational plans and strategies that may affect the risks
of material misstatement. None of the matters discussed resulted in a condition to our
retention as the District’s auditors.

Restriction on Use

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and
management of the District and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other
than these specified parties.

DavisFarrLLP

Irvine, California
November 17, 2025



°
DavisFarr
18201 Von Karman Avenue | Suite 1100 | Irvine, CA 92612

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS Main: 949.474.2020 | Fox: 949.263.5520

INDEPENDENT ACCO NTANT’ P

Valley Center Municipal Water District
Valley Center, California

We have performed the procedures enumerated below on Valley Center Municipal Water
District (“the District”) appropriations limit worksheets for compliance with the requirements
of Section 1.5 of Article XIIIB of the California Constitution for the year ended June 30,
2025. The District is responsible for compliance with Section 1.5 of Article XIIIB of the
California Constitution.

The District has agreed to and acknowledged that these procedures are appropriate to meet
the intended purpose of evaluating compliance with the requirements of Section 1.5 of
Article XIIIB of the California Constitution and the League of California Cities publication
entitled Article XIIIB Appropriations Limitation Uniform Guidelines for the year ended June
30, 2025. This report may not be suitable for any other purpose. The procedures
performed may not address all the items of interest to a user of this report and may not
meet the needs of all users of this report and, as such, users are responsible for
determining whether the procedures performed are appropriate for their purposes.

The procedures and the associated findings are as follows:

1. We obtained the worksheets referred to above and compared the limit and
annual adjustment factors included in those worksheets to the limit and annual
adjustment factors that were adopted by resolution of the Board of Directors. We
also compared the population and inflation options included in the
aforementioned worksheets to those that were selected by a recorded vote of the
Board of Directors.

Results: No exceptions were noted as a result of our procedures.

2. We recalculated the mathematical computations reflected in the District's
worksheets.

Results: No exceptions were noted as a result of our procedures.

3. We compared the current year information used to determine the current year
limit and agreed it to worksheets prepared by the District and to information
provided by the State Department of Finance.

Results: No exceptions were noted as a result of our procedures.

4. We compared the amount of the prior year appropriations limit presented in the
worksheets to the amount adopted by the Board of Directors for the prior year.

Results: No exceptions were noted as a result of our procedures.



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Valley Center, California
Page Two

We were engaged by the District to perform this agreed-upon procedures engagement and
conducted our engagement in accordance with standards established by the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. We were not engaged to and did not conduct an
examination or review, the objective of which would be the expression of an opinion or
conclusion, respectively on the worksheets referred to above. Accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion or conclusion. Had we performed additional procedures, other
matters might have come to our attention that would have been reported to you. No
procedures have been performed with respect to the determination of the appropriation
limit for the base year, as defined by the League publication entitled Article XIIIB
Appropriations Limitation Uniform Guidelines.

We are required to be independent of the District and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements related to our agreed-
upon procedures engagement.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Management of Valley
Center Municipal Water District and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by
anyone other than the specified party.

DaviaFarrLLP

Irvine, California
November 17, 2025



VALLEY CENTER
MUNICIPAL
WATER DISTRICT

Annual
Comprehensive
Financial
Report

For the Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, 2025

Valley Center, CA



Annual Comprehensive Financial Report
For The Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, 2025

Valley Center Municipal Water District

Prepared by:

Valley Center Municipal Water District’s Finance Department
James V. Pugh, Director of Finance & Administration
Vanessa Velasquez, Manager of Accounting/Deputy Dir. of Finance & Admin.

29300 Valley Center Road = PO Box 67 = Valley Center, CA 92082

www.valleycenterwater.org




Table of Contents

Page
Introductory Section
1T = I =] ] \%
DISTIICE OFfICIALS ... ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e xviii
Organizational Chart ... .. ..o e e e e e e e e e e Xix
(DT o AT VAo AN =T P XiX
Financial Section
Independent AUdITOr'S REPOIT ... ..t et e e et et e e e e e e e 3
Management’s DiScuSSION and ANAIYSIS ... ...ttt e e e e 7
Basic Financial Statements
SEAtEMENT OF N POSIIION ...ttt e e e e e e e e e et et e e e e e e e e 20
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position ................cooivvii i, 22
SEAtEMENT OF CaSN FIOWS ... et ittt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e ae s 23
Statement of Fiduciary Net POSITION...... oo e e e 25
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net POSItION .........cooviiiie i e e 26
NOES 10 FINANCIAl St MBS ..ttt e et et e e et e et e ettt et et r e e et en e 27
Required Supplementary INfOrmation...........c.oooiii i e e 57
Schedule of the Plan’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability.............c.cccocooieinnen. 58
Schedule of Contributions to the PeNSION Plan. ... ... vt e e e e e e 60
Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios................ccoocvee v 62
Schedule 0f OPEB CoNIDULIONS. .. ... ettt ittt et e et et e et et e e e et et e et e e e ree e aeens 64
Supplementary Information — Combining Statements..........covie it e 67
Description of FidUCIary FUNGS ...t e e e e e e e e e e 68
Combining Schedule of Net POSITION. .........ouit i e e e e e e e 69
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position..................cooeoeni. 70
Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net POSITION..........ooiiiii e e e 71
Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position.............coooovi oo, 72
Statistical Section
Financial Trends Table
Net Position by COMPONENT .......c.oui e e e I, 75
Changes In NEet POSItION ..o e e e e e e e e | 76
Revenue Capacity
Water Sales DY USEr TYPE ...t et e e e e e e 1| I 77
AACTIVE WAl IVIBEEIS ot irt ittt et e e e et e e e e e e et e e e e e eanaen V.o 78
Assessed Value of Taxable Property.......c.ooovi oo e e Vo 79
Property Tax and Assessment Levies and Collections .............cccoevviiiieiiinnnns VI 80
Direct and Overlapping Bonded Debt .............oo i VI oo, 81
Property Owners by Highest Cumulative Net Assessed Property Value ........... VI ... 82
LY oL S = L (=T IX 83
VY eV LS = L (=1 ) G 84
VA Yo L= Y=Y Y/ o =Y Xl i, 85
Principal Water CUSIOMENS .. ...iv it e e v v v v v e veeaenae e venens X o 86
Debt Capacity
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by TyYpe ....c.oviiiii e XU s 87
Pledged-Revenue COVEIAgE .......c.vut ittt e et e et et e e ae e XIV 88
Demographic and Economic Information
Demographic and ECONOMIC StatiStiCS .......vvvveiviiiiiiici v e e, XV i 89
Principal Employers — County of San Diego ........cccoovvviieiiiiiiiiiii e e XVI oo, 90
Operating Information
Number of EMPIOYEES  ..vvieiie i v e e e e e e e XVII o, 91
Operating and Capital Indicators ...........o.vviieiiiiii e e, XV 92



Introductory Section



VCMWD Financial Section

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

VALLEY CENTER

A Public Agency Organized July 12, 1954

Board of Directors
Enrico P. Ferro
President

Daniel E. Holtz
Vice President
Cooper T. Ness
Director

Alysha M. Stehly
Director

Patrick L. Baker
Director

November 24, 2025

The Honorable Board of Directors and Citizens of Valley Center
Valley Center Municipal Water District

29300 Valley Center Road

Valley Center, CA 92082

We are pleased to submit the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) for the Valley Center
Municipal Water District (hereinafter referred to as “the District”) for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2025. The purpose of the report is to provide the Board of Directors, our customers, and any other
interested parties with reliable financial information about the District.

The ACFR was prepared by the District's Finance Department in accordance with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP). Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and
reliability of the information contained in this report, which is based upon a comprehensive framework
of internal controls that were established for this purpose. Because the costs of internal controls should
not exceed the anticipated benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute,
assurance that the financial statements are free of any material misstatements. We believe the data, as
presented, is accurate in all material respects and that it is presented in a manner designed to set forth
fairly the financial position and results of operations of the District, and that all disclosures necessary
to enable readers to gain maximum understanding of the District’s financial activity have been
included.

The District’s policy requires that an independent certified public accounting firm, selected by the
Board, audit the basic financial statements on an annual basis. The independent audit involved
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Davis Farr, LLP have issued an unmodified (or
clean) opinion on the District’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025. The
independent auditor’s report is presented as the first component of the Financial Section of this report.

Management’s Discussion & Analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor’s report
in the Financial Section and provides an overview, summary, and analysis of the basic financial
statements. The MD&A complements this Letter of Transmittal and should be read in conjunction with
it.

\

29300 Valley Center Road e P.O. Box 67 e Valley Center, CA 92082
(760) 735-4500 e FAX (760) 749-2665 » www.valleycenterwater.org e e-mail vcwater@valleycenterwater.org




VCMWD Introductory Section

REPORTING ENTITY AND SERVICES

Valley Center Municipal Water District (the “District™) was founded on July 12, 1954 and was formed
under the provisions of the California Municipal Water District Law of 1911 (California Water Code
Sections 71000 et seq.). It is located in northern San Diego County and provides water and wastewater
reclamation services to its domestic, agricultural, and commercial customers encompassing a 101
square mile service area, serving a population of approximately 30,166. It includes the unincorporated
area of Valley Center and unincorporated areas north of Escondido.

The District is governed by a five-member Board of Directors
(the “Board”), elected by geographic division and serving
staggered four-year terms and manages the District through
an appointed general manager. The District’s management
team also includes four department heads that oversee the
Finance, Engineering, Information Technology, and
Operations & Facilities Departments. At June 30, 2025, there
were 72 regular full-time employees working for the District.

For reporting purposes, the financial statements present a
combined report which includes all District activities for
which the Board of Directors of Valley Center Municipal
Water District is primarily financially accountable. The
District has established various self-balancing groups of FRAAEICAVEL-AVEILEEEXS
accounts in order to enhance internal control and further the ECEIECHe R EH=TaVo [ H- (0]
attainment of management objectives. The groups of GNP TeE]
accounts are identified in the District’s books and records as
General, Lower Moosa Wastewater Treatment, and Woods
Valley Ranch Wastewater.

System Overview
e Aqueduct Connections: 7

e Pump Stations: 29
e \Wastewater Treatment Facilities: 2
e \Wastewater Connections: 3,458

Custodial funds are reported on the Fiduciary Statements for BRI ENIAVES SN g o C)
Assessment District No. 2012-1 and Community Facilities EEEYpYISLE: PRS- WA VITIITels
District 2020-1, which are described in Note 6 of the Notes
to the Basic Financial Statements.

e 2024-25 Expenses: $55.8 Million

Vi



VCMWD Introductory Section

FINANCIAL POLICIES

The District’s Board of Directors has adopted a comprehensive set of financial policies. During the
current year, three of these policies were of most significance.

Budget — The Board of Directors annually adopts a Budget Policy that defines reserve requirements,
outlines the budget process, and assigns control and accountability. Operating and capital budgets for
the District are prepared by departments annually and are reviewed and modified by management
before being compiled into a comprehensive document for approval by the Board. The annual budget
document is adopted prior to the beginning of the fiscal year and provides the basis for prioritizing
efforts, activities, financial resources, and personnel needs. Further information can be found in the
budget, a copy of which is available on the District website at www.valleycenterwater.org.

Investment — Annually, the Board adopts an investment policy that is in compliance with California
Government Code Section 53646(a)(2). The investment of idle funds is delegated to the District
Treasurer, who further delegates the day-to-day operations of investment of public funds to Finance
Department personnel. The District’s investment policy is conservative in that the type of investments
allowed in the policy is limited to those investments that carry the least risk while continuing to pay at
least a market rate of return. The primary goals of the policy are: first, preservation of capital and
second, to maintain enough liquidity to meet cash flow requirements. After these goals, investment
income is considered. Refer to Note 2 in the Notes to the Financial Statements for detailed investment
information.

Debt — The District established a formal Debt Policy that sets forth guidelines for the purpose, type,
and management of debt used to finance the District’s capital improvements program. Compliance
with the policy is essential to ensure that the District maintains a sound debt position and that it
preserves budgetary flexibility and its credit quality. The policy also establishes guidelines for its
disclosure obligations and refunding of debt to reduce interest costs.

LocAL ECONOMY AND OUTLOOK

Over the last decade, Valley Center has
transitioned  from  being  predominately
agricultural to a more balanced rural-suburban
and agricultural setting. Once over 90% of the
water delivered by the District went to
commercial agricultural users, now the mix is
56%  agricultural and 44%  domestic-
commercial. The decline in agricultural use in
Valley Center, as well as the nearby
communities of Rainbow and Fallbrook, is due
to rapid increases in wholesale water costs over
the last 10 years, regulatory restrictions, labor
costs and shortages, and market competition.

Vii



VCMWD Introductory Section

As a result, the District has seen a significant decrease in the volume of water deliveries to its
customers. Water sales for the year ended June 30, 2025, totaled 13,885 acre feet. Compared to just 10
years ago, in Fiscal Year 2015-16 when the District sold 18,369 acre feet. Additionally, the volume
of water purchased was 14,691 acre feet for the year ended June 30, 2025. By comparison, in Fiscal
Year 2015-16, the District purchased 19,657 acre feet of water.

As of June 30, 2025, the estimated population of the area serviced by the District was 30,166. At June
30, 2025, unemployment in California was 5.8%, San Diego County was 4.9%, and the local rate in
the Valley Center Census Designated Place (CDP) was 2.7%.

The District relies on the San Diego County Water Authority (SDCWA or “Authority”) as its’ sole
source provider for treated potable water. The Authority imports water through the Metropolitan Water
District of Southern California (MWD) system and its own aqueduct, storage, and treatment system.
MWD obtains its imported water from two sources: the Colorado River Aqueduct and the State Water
Project. These water sources have become increasingly unreliable in recent years as deteriorating
ecological conditions have led to regulatory restrictions on pumping water supplies from the Bay-Delta
and storage levels on the Colorado River System. The Bay-Delta is an inland river delta and estuary
formed at the confluence of the Sacramento and San Joaquin Rivers east of San Francisco. It is a key
water supply source for California including the millions of residents in San Diego County.

The Authority’s water supply portfolio also includes supplies secured in 2003 under the Quantification
Settlement Agreement (QSA) from the Colorado River. These supplies include a water conservation
and transfer agreement with the Imperial Irrigation District and water conserved by two projects, the
All American Canal Lining Project and the Coachella Canal Lining Project.

2025 Facts and Figures [RSLEialel
e 30,166 Residents

e 11,854 Active Water Meters
Rates and Charges
e Total Domestic/Commercial Rate: $3,101.95 per acre foot
e Total Agricultural Rate: $2,193.20 per acre foot
e 3%” Water Service Charge: $51.28 per month

Active Water Meters

10,000 -

9,188

8,000 A

6,000 A

4,000 A

2,000 A
_— .
o |
Agricultural Domestic Fire

viii



VCMWD Introductory Section

Additionally, the SDCWA added desalinated seawater to its water supply portfolio with the completion
of the Carlsbad Desalination Plant in December 2015. This supply reduces the region’s dependence
on water from the Colorado River and the Bay-Delta that is vulnerable to droughts, natural disasters,
and regulatory restrictions.

VCMWD and the entire California water community will continue to face challenges going forward.
Uncertainties surrounding its main sources of imported water, the State Water Project and the Colorado
River, the lack of enhancements to the statewide storage system in over 50 years, the effects of climate
change, public environmental issues and state regulations concerning water use restrictions, increasing
operating costs and depressing revenues all contribute to a difficult planning environment in which the
cost of imported water is all but certain to continue to increase. Water shortages, both natural and man-
made, continue to loom in the future. These factors have the potential to adversely impact the
operations and finances of the District.

Financial and Economic Trends — Customer meter categories have stayed consistent with 72 new
meter accounts having been established during 2024-25. This raised the total number of meter
connections within the District to 12,792, of which 2,199 are fire meter accounts. Of the total meter
accounts, 779 water service accounts and 159 fire service accounts are inactive, resulting in 11,854
revenue generating water meters at the close of the fiscal year. This is an increase of 41 active service
accounts (12 water service and 29 fire) compared to the close of 2023-24.

Private development construction in fiscal year 2024-25 was less than in the prior year as the Park
Circle Development nearly 100% complete by the end of the fiscal year. The District continued to
process 10 private development projects containing a total of 531 units in various stages of completion,
from concept approval to warranty period. Additionally, there are 4 projects with 517 units that are in
the active planning stage and 16 inactive projects with 430 units.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025, water
sales were 13,885 acre feet, up 2,392 acre feet or
20.8% from sales of 11,493 acre feet in 2023-24.
This increase is due in part to a 61% decrease in
total rainfall for the year, 8.2 inches versus 20.8
inches in Fiscal Year 2023-24. Water deliveries
are broken down as follows: 55.7% for
agricultural purposes, 36.0% for domestic, 7.3%
for commercial, and 1.0% for public use. The
total cost of water purchased for the fiscal year
was $30.9 million, or 61.9% of the District’s total
water operating expenses (excluding
depreciation).

SDCWA Permanent Special Agricultural Water Rate — The San Diego County Water
Authority’s Permanent Special Agricultural Water Rate (PSAWR) provides a rebate for qualifying
agricultural water users. PSAWR customers do not pay for the full cost, nor do they benefit fully from,
the SDCWA Emergency Storage or Carry-Over Storage Projects. In addition, the SDCWA melded rate
reflects the costs of the supplemental supplies, such as those from the 11D Transfer, the All-American-
Coachella Canal Lining, and the Carlsbad Seawater Desalination project which PSAWR customers
also do not pay.




VCMWD Introductory Section

In exchange for reduced rates, PSAWR customers agree to have their water supply reduced first and
at a greater degree during droughts and other emergency situations. For calendar year 2024 the discount
that certified agricultural customers received totaled $676 per acre foot, based on water rates
effective January 3, 2024. With the full PSAWR pricing differential, VCMWD participating
agricultural customers will pay $2,193.21 per acre foot, compared to the $3,101.96 per acre foot that
domestic/commercial customers will pay, a 29% reduction or savings of $909 per acre foot in calendar
year 2025.

Please refer to the MD&A in the financial section of this report for detailed schedules and analysis of
the District’s operating results for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025.

Long-Term Capital Facility Planning and Financing — New capital improvement facilities
are categorized as either, Replacement, System Upgrade or Expansion facilities. Replacement and
System Upgrade facilities are currently funded from replacement and capital reserves, primarily on a
pay as you go cash basis. These reserves are funded annually by a combination of capacity fees, water
availability charges, property taxes, and excess operating and non-operating revenues. The District has
increased its leverage of available funding through State Revolving Fund (SRF) financing by
establishing a process to apply for funding on a yearly basis.

Facilities which are identified and budgeted annually for replacement are selected from a facility
replacement priority list included in the District’s Water Master Plan. In addition, the replacement of
existing facilities can be triggered by the County of San Diego road improvement projects that require
the relocation of facilities. Private development projects can also provide an opportunity to participate
in the replacement of an existing facility or system upgrade when there is a benefit to the overall district
system.

MAUJOR INITIATIVES
EFFORTS AND ACCOMPLISHMENTS

Water System Operations

Transmission, Distribution, and Storage Facilities Improvements — Major Capital improvement
work completed during the fiscal year included the following projects: North County Emergency
Storage Project (NCESP) 14" Pipeline Relocation, the painting and recoating of two reservoirs —
McNally Reservoir and Mizpah Reservoir, and Alps Way Pipeline Replacement.

NCESP — 14" Pipeline Relocation Exterior Paint & Coat of Interior Paint & Coat of
Creek Crossing Mizpah Reservoir McNally Reservoir



VCMWD Introductory Section

North County Emergency Storage Project — The North County Emergency Storage Project
(NCESP) is the last phase of the San Diego County Water Authority's Emergency & Carryover Storage
Project (ESP), originating in 1992. The ESP is a system of interconnected pipelines, pump stations,
and reservoirs connected to the regional water distribution system so water can continue to flow
throughout the region, even if imported water supplies are disrupted.

Overall, the ESP increased local water storage to approximately 195,000 acre feet along with
associated components necessary to convey it throughout the San Diego region. Since its inception,
$1.5 billion in notable facilities have been constructed; the San Vicente Dam Raise, Pipelines and
Pump Stations; the Olivenhain Reservoir; and the Lake Hodges Pump Storage Facilities. One of the
last projects of the final phase of the program will provide the District and Yuima Municipal Water
District (YMWD) access to the additional storage in an emergency event.

The NCESP project involves pump station upgrades, and flow control facilities in multiple work areas
throughout Valley Center, restoring flow to areas of the District and YMWD that could not be serviced
by SDCWA during an ESP Event.

This phase was managed and implemented by the District, in partnership with YMWD, and funded by
San Diego County Water Authority. SDCWA provided over $12M for the design and construction of
the facilities which are scheduled to be completed in the first quarter of 2026, six years since inception
of the project and beginning of design and almost three years since initiating construction in June 2023.
The project included the replacement and relocation of an inaccessible circa 1970 14-inch water main,
fully funded by the District and completed in Fiscal Year 2024-25, to provide a more reliable supply
to the area served by the project.

Ground and aerial views of the North County Emergency Storage Project — Muutama Flow Control Facility

Water Loss and Meter Replacement — The District continues to survey, verify, and change out the
top users’ water meters throughout the service area. Continued meter maintenance programs provide
further field observation of District meters. Crews continue to evaluate and survey cross country water
mains and their associated appurtenances, through its leak detection program, for potential leaks and
cross-connections. Field personnel continue to aggressively monitor and inspect the distribution system
through these various strategies. For Calendar Year 2024, unaccounted water loss was 3.4% of total
water sold, less than the 4.1% reported for Calendar Year 2023.

Xi



VCMWD Introductory Section

Wastewater System Operations

Woods Valley Ranch Water Reclamation Facility — The Woods Valley Ranch Water Reclamation
Facility provides wastewater service to the Woods Valley Ranch, Bear Peak and Park Circle
Subdivisions and the North and South Village areas.

The service area is located in the central portion of Valley Center generally along Valley Center Road
east of Cole Grade and south of Woods Valley Road. The facility was originally constructed in 2005
to service the 280-unit Woods Valley Ranch Subdivision and Golf Course. The facility was later
expanded to its current capacity in 2017. The facility is permitted to treat up to 275,000 gallons per
day (gpd) to Title 22 standards and the treated effluent is utilized for irrigation purposes at the Native
Oaks Golf Club. Construction of the expansion was funded utilizing State Revolving Fund and
Limited Obligation Bond debt financing secured by Assessment District No. 2012-1 annual
assessments and Community Facilities District No. 2020-1 Annual Special Taxes. The funding
commitments secured capacity reservations for 1,247 equivalent dwelling units (EDUs). Total
allocated capacity of the facility is 1,527 EDUSs.

New homes and businesses continue to be planned and
constructed within the service area however at a much
slower pace as the Park Circle Community is near
completion. As of the close of the fiscal year, the facility
served 939 domestic EDUs, 41 commercial units, and 4
public agencies, for a total of 984 EDUs. Compared to
the prior fiscal year, which had 976 EDUSs, that is an
increase of 8, or 0.8%.

Entrance to the Park Circle Community.

Ultimate buildout of the service area is planned at 3,000 EDUs requiring a treatment capacity of
475,000 gpd. Construction of the expansion facilities is contingent upon development in the area and
the availability of funding. Future discharge locations in addition to the Native Oaks Golf Club may
include common area irrigation of nearby developments and roadway medians. At the close of Fiscal
Year 2024-25, the District was in negotiations to revise the Recycled Water Use Agreement with the
owners of the Native Oaks Golf Club to allow recycled water deliveries up to the future permitted
capacity of the treatment facility, as much as 450,000 to 475,000 gpd.

Lower Moosa Canyon Water Reclamation Facility — The
Lower Moosa Canyon Water Reclamation Facility, built in
1974, provides sewer services to the District’s Interstate 15
corridor area, from the Lawrence Welk development on the
southern end, east to Hidden Meadows, and north to Circle R
Drive. The facility receives sewage from 2,474 connected
customers via 21.6 miles of VCP and PVC gravity collection
mains (varying in size from 8-inch to 18-inch), with over 500
manholes, and 2,200 laterals. It is permitted to treat up to
440,000 gallons per day (493 AFY) of domestic and
commercial wastewater to secondary standards before
discharge. Secondary effluent from the Lower Moosa WRF is
discharged to percolation ponds which recharge the
groundwater table in the San Luis Rey River watershed. This
groundwater is not used for human consumption.

Lower Moosa Canyon Water Reclamation
Facility at sunrise.

Xii



VCMWD Introductory Section

Customer water conservation efforts have significantly reduced influent flow rates per connection. As
a result, capacity requirements for ultimate buildout in the service area are not expected to exceed the
current waste discharge limits. However, while conservation efforts have reduced the hydraulic
loading requirements on the facility, expansion of the solids handling portion of the facility will be
needed as connections are added to the system and are planned to occur in the next five years. Recent
facility improvements have been focused on the replacement of aging infrastructure.

During the fiscal year major capital improvement work
completed included the following projects: Upgrade of Clarifier
Number 2 and Improvements to the Chlorine Contact Tank.
Upgrade to Clarifier No. 1 at
Planning and design began on a proposed replacement and Lower Moosa Canyon WRF.
upgrade project for the Moosa and Meadows Lift Station
Facility. Construction cost of the project is estimated at $6M to
$7M, with construction scheduled to begin in early Fiscal Year
2026-2027. Improvements at the Moosa facility include
replacement of the headworks facility with an influent lift
station, flow equalization and grit removal, with ancillary
support improvements to the electrical system, and aeration and
waste activated sludge pumps. Meadow Lift Station will see the replacement of the electrical system,
addition of an inline grinder, replacement of the above ground piping, site grading and paving
replacement. Funding for the project would come from debt financing utilizing the replacement reserve
funds and the recently implemented Capital Improvement Charge for repayment.

Moosa Clarifier No. 2 Upgrade

Development Planning and Construction Projects

Development activity was minimal during the fiscal year due to regional economic factors, with the
exception of the South Village Area of the District served by the Woods Valley Ranch Water
Reclamation Facility. Developers in other parts of the District continued their pursuit of land use
entitlements from the County with minimal interactions required of the District. Several projects
renewed their plan approvals to maintain their entitlements and the ability to start construction at a
later date.

North and South Village Areas — Several developments in the District’s North and South Village
Avreas are planned to move forward in the upcoming fiscal year:

¢ Touchstone Communities has completed the Park Circle East/West development in the South
Village Area. Park Circle West is a 300-unit residential subdivision and Park Circle East is a mixed-
use development of 332 residential units, 4.2 acres of commercial area and 5 acres of parks and
recreational facilities. Six major merchant builders purchased lots within the development and began
model and production home construction in October 2020, with approximately 609 new homes are
occupied at the end of Fiscal Year 2024-2025.

¢ North Ranch Estates, previously Weston Towne Center, is a planned mixed-use development in
the North Village area on the north side of VValley Center Road with both residential and commercial
development. North Ranch Estates has a wastewater capacity allocation of 271 EDUs. The owners
of the proposed development continue to evaluate development options.

e The North Village Station project is a proposed 80 unit office/professional and commercial
development on the south side of Valley Center Road, just west of Indian Creek Road. The developer
continued processing their site plan through the County to complete the development entitlements
for their project.

Xiii



VCMWD Introductory Section

ACCOUNTING SYSTEMS

District records are maintained on an enterprise basis, as it is the intent of the Board of Directors that
the cost of providing water and wastewater services to the customers of the District are financed
primarily through user charges. Revenues and expenses are recognized on the accrual basis in that
both are recognized in the accounting period they are earned or incurred. Capital assets are recorded
in the fund purchasing the asset.

As an enterprise fund, the District maintains a self-balancing set of accounts established to record the
financial position and results that pertain to each activity. The activities of enterprise funds are similar
to regular businesses, whereby a governmental agency collects sufficient revenues through user
charges to pay for operating expenses and maintain infrastructure in order to sustain operations.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

Valley Center Municipal Water District operates within a system of internal accounting controls
established and continually reviewed by management, to provide reasonable assurance that assets are
adequately safeguarded and transactions are recorded correctly according to District policies and
procedures. When establishing or reviewing control, management must consider the cost of the control
and the value of the benefit derived from its utilization. Management normally maintains or
implements only those controls whose value adequately exceeds their cost.

BUDGETARY CONTROLS

On an annual basis, the District’s Board of Directors adopts a budget that is prepared on a departmental
level. Although the District is not legally required to adopt and adhere to a budget or report on
compliance with any prepared budgets, the Board of Directors chooses to approve a budget to be used
solely as a management tool. Depending upon the timing and level of the demand for water services,
the revenues and expenditures may vary significantly and cannot be strictly controlled by means of
detailed and rigid appropriations. Therefore, the budget must be viewed as an estimate only. Budget
appropriations for major capital projects continue from year to year until the project is completed.

CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to Valley Center Municipal Water
District for its Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2024. The
Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious national award recognizing conformance with the highest
standards for preparation of state and local government financial reports. In order to be awarded a
Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily readable and efficiently
organized Annual Comprehensive Financial Report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted
accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. Valley Center Municipal Water
District has received a Certificate of Achievement each year since 1992. We believe our current report
continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to
GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

Xiv



VCMWD Introductory Section

XV



VCMWD Introductory Section

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS
We would like to express our appreciation to all members of the District’s staff, particularly the
members of the Finance Department who have participated in the preparation of this report. Special
thanks are extended to the members of the District’s Board of Directors for their continued interest and
support in all aspects of the District’s financial management.

Respectfully Submitted:

Our mission is to ensure customer satisfaction
through quality service at the lowest possible cost.

XVi



VCMWD

Introductory Section

STRATEGIC PLAN PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENT STANDARDS
RESULTS FOR CALENDAR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

1. CUSTOMER SATISFACTION - Our standard will be that
our service “meets” or “exceeds expectations” 95% of the time,
based upon the “Customer Comment Card” responses.#

2. WATER LOSS - Report annually for the past 10 years of
unknown water loss in terms of percent of water sold, acre feet,
and value of water loss, as well as efforts to minimize and
reduce unknown water loss wherever possible.

3. DISCRETIONARY RESERVES - Unrestricted or
uncommitted reserves not anticipated to be used in the current
fiscal year equal to a minimum three and a maximum six
months’ operations and maintenance expenses (excluding
wholesale water and power purchases).

4. RETURN ON INVESTMENTS - While seeking to
preserve capital and maintain a level of liquidity necessary to
meet cash flow requirements, our rate of return, on an
annualized basis, shall be at least equal to the average rate of
return on one year U.S. Treasury Bonds

5. LOCAL COMMODITY RATE for LOCAL
OPERATING and MAINTENANCE COSTS - We will hold
the local share of total commodity costs as low as possible, but
at no time will the local rate be more than 15% of total water
commodity cost for Municipal & Industrial and 18% for
Certified Agricultural.

6. PUMP EFFICIENCY - Through ongoing testing, adjusting,
and maintenance, we will maintain pump efficiency above 95%
of the design criteria.

7. SOLAR ENERGY PRODUCTION - District owned and
operated solar arrays shall be maintained at 90% of scheduled
production which reflects array location and anticipated
production loss due to panel age.

8. PROJECT ACTUAL COST - £10% of Engineer’s cost
estimate.

9. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS - Project
timelines shall be under contract within 12 months of budget
approval (new).

10. WATER SERVICE RELIABILITY GREATER THAN
99% - We will strive to maintain water service to all customers
at greater than a 99% reliability level. This will be measured
based upon total hours of service interruption against all service
hours in a given measurement period.

11. LOST-TIME ACCIDENTS LESS THAN 1% OF
TOTAL HOURS WORKED.

12. COMPLIANCE WITH ALL STATE & FEDERAL
REGULATIONS.
XVii

Survey responses show the District met or
exceeded the standard 100.0% of the time.

Unaccounted water loss for 2024 totaled 454.3
acre feet, 3.4% of total water sold,
representing $737,776.

Discretionary Reserves as of December 31,
2024 represents 4.6 months operating and
maintenance expenses.

The weighted average return on all
investments for calendar year 2024 was
4.377% as compared to the 12-month rolling
average U.S. Treasury Bonds of 4.693%.

The District’s component of the water rate for
operating costs is currently 10.3% of
Municipal & Industrial and 13.8% of Certified
Agricultural.

Our pump efficiency was 106.4% of design
criteria.

Of the six District-owned Solar Arrays, with a
total capacity of 331.5kWdc, all six exceeded
90% of the low range of anticipated
production.

Five projects were completed in calendar 2024
at 4.2% over the Engineer’s estimate.

Of the fifteen Engineering Department
projects with approved funding, all but three
were under contract within 12 months.

For Calendar Year 2024 service reliability was
99.999%.

The District had four recordable accidents
with one lost-time accident, representing
0.53% of the total hours worked, in calendar
2024.

100%.



VCMWD

Introductory Section

DISTRICT OFFICIALS

Enrico P. Daniel E. Oliver J. Cooper T. Alysha M.
Ferro Holtz Smith Ness Stehly
President Vice President Director Director Director
Division 4 Division 5 Division 3 Division 2 Division 1
Since 2016 Since 2018 Since 2018 Since 2022 Since 2024
Years of Service
9 7 7 3 1
Term Expires
December 2028 December 2026 December 2026 December 2026 December 2028

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

Lindsay Leahy
General Manager
0 years of service

Wally T. Grabbe
District Engineer

Deputy General Manager
33 years of service

James V. Pugh

Director of Finance & Administration
Treasurer

22 years of service

Vanessa Velasquez

Manager of Accounting/Deputy
Director of Finance & Administration
10 years of service

Gary T. Arant (Fiscal Year 2024/25)
General Manager
36 years of service

Brian E. Lovelady

Director of Operations/Facilities
36 years of service

Ando Pilve

Director of Information Technology
17 years of service

Kirsten N. Peraino
Executive Assistant
Board Secretary

5 years of service

GENERAL COUNSEL

Paula C.P. de Sousa

Best, Best & Krieger, LLP
15 years

XViii



VCMWD Introductory Section

DISTRICT ORGANIZATION CHART

DISTRICT SERVICE AREA

XiX



VCMWD Introductory Section

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

XX



Financial Section



VCMWD Financial Section

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



¢

°
DavisFarr
18201 Von Karman Avenue | Suite 1100 | Irvine, CA 92612

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS Main: 949.474.2020 | Fax: 949.263.5520

Independent Auditor’s Report

Board of Directors
Valley Center Municipal Water District
Valley Center, California

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the financial statements of the business-type activity and the aggregate remaining
fund information of Valley Center Municipal Water District (“the District”) as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2025 and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the business-type activity and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the District, as of June 30, 2025, and the respective changes in financial position and
cash flows thereof and for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the District and to meet our
other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our
audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinions.

Emphasis of Matter

As described further in Note 1 to the financial statements, during the year ended June 30, 2025, the
District implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 101,
Compensated Absences. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The District’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District’s
ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the date that the financial statements are
issued.

3



Board of Directors
Valley Center Municipal Water District

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion
is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Schedule of Plan’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension
Liability, Schedule of Contributions to the Pension Plan, Schedule of Changes in the District’s Net
OPEB Liability and Related Ratios, and Schedule of OPEB Contributions be presented to supplement
the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although
not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

4



Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited the District's 2024 financial statements, and we expressed unmodified
audit opinions on those audited financial statements in our report dated November 27, 2024. In our
opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2024 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which
it has been derived.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the District’'s basic financial statements. The Combining Schedule of Net
Position, Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Position, Combining
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position, and Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements.

The Combining Schedule of Net Position, Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Change in
Net Position, Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Position, and Combining Statement of Changes
in Fiduciary Net Position are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements.

Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the Combining Schedule of Net Position, Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and
Change in Net Position, Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Position and Combining Statement of
Changes in Fiduciary Net Position are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic
financial statements as a whole.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the Annual Comprehensive Financial
Report. The other information comprises the introductory section and statistical section but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinions on the financial
statements do not cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of
assurance thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other
information and the financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement
of the other information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November
17, 2025 on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements
and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the District’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Irvine, California
November 17, 2025



VCMWD Management 's Discussion & Analysis

Management's
Discussion and Analysis



VCMWD Management’s Discussion & Analysis

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The intent of the Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is to provide highlights of the
financial activities for the Fiscal Year (FY) ended June 30, 2025, of the Valley Center Municipal Water
District (District). Readers are encouraged to read this section in conjunction with the Letter of
Transmittal located in the front of this report and the accompanying basic financial statements.

DISTRICT OPERATIONS — AN OVERVIEW

The District operates under the authority of the State of California Water Code and engages in various
activities including providing water to its domestic, agricultural, and commercial customers; along
with wastewater collection, treatment, reclamation, and disposal in a service area that encompasses
approximately 101 square miles.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Financial Statements of the District report information utilizing the full accrual basis of
accounting. The Financial statements conform to accounting principles, which are generally accepted
in the United States of America and consist of three interrelated statements designed to provide the
reader with relevant, understandable data on the District’s financial condition and operating results.
There are three required components to these statements: the MD&A, the Financial Statements, and
the Notes to the Financial Statements.

The Statement of Net Position includes information on the District’s assets, deferred outflows of
resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position.
Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial
position of the District is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position identifies the District’s
revenues and expenses for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025. It provides information on operations
over the past fiscal year and can be used to determine whether the District has recovered its actual and
projected costs through user fees and other charges.

The Statement of Cash Flows provides information regarding the District’s cash receipts, cash
disbursements, and changes in cash resulting from operations, investing and financing activities during
the fiscal year. From the Statement of Cash Flows, the reader can obtain information on the source and
use of cash and the changes in the cash balance of the last fiscal year.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Notes) provide additional information that is essential to
a full understanding of the information provided in the basic statements. The Notes also provide a
description of the accounting policies used to prepare the financial statements and present material
disclosures required by generally accepted accounting principles that are not otherwise present in the
financial statements.

In addition, the District reports information on Fiduciary Fund types. This consists of two additional
statements; Statement of Fiduciary Net Position and Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net
Position. The fiduciary fund statements provide information about the financial relationships in which
the District acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of others to whom the resources belong.



VCMWD Financial Section

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
The District’s financial operations remained sound during Fiscal Year 2024-25. Sources of revenues
were sufficient to cover combined operating and non-operating costs with an increase in net position
of $12,779,072, due largely to capital contributions.

Water System Operations

New water services added this year totalled 72, representing a 0.6% increase in the number of accounts
it serves; compared to the prior year’s increase of 165 accounts, representing a 1.3% increase. Total
water services now equal 12,792 accounts, of which 11,854 are active and 938 inactive. During Fiscal
Year 2024-25, water sales totaled 13,885 acre feet (AF) increasing 20.8%, or 2,392 AF from the
previous year.

Water demand in the District’s service is largely influenced by temperature and rainfall given the rural-
agricultural nature of the community. The annual rainfall during the fiscal year was down totaling 8.2
inches compared to the prior year of 20.8 inches, a 60.6% decrease. The average temperature was 63.2
degrees during Fiscal Years 2024-25 compared to 62.0 degrees in Fiscal Year 2023-24.

Cost of Water Sold is the District’s highest single water operating expense. In January 2025, wholesale
treated water rates from the San Diego County Water Authority increased 16.1% for domestic
customers and 9.0% for certified agricultural customers. The total Cost of Water Sold during FY 2024-
25 was $30,868,413, or 29.4% higher than the previous year. The total amount of water purchased
during the year was 14,691 AF compared to 12,236 AF in the previous year.

Wastewater System Operations

The original capacity of the Woods Valley Ranch Water Reclamation Facility provided wastewater
service for 280 equivalent dwelling units generating annual sewer service charge and sewer standby
fee revenue of $330,660. With completion of the Woods Valley Ranch Expansion Project, wastewater
capacity was made available for an additional 1,247 units. At full buildout the total annual sewer
service charge revenues would increase to $1.8M.

All components of the Woods Valley Ranch Expansion Project funded from the SRF Loans and
Limited Obligation Bonds have been completed, with the exception of the North Village Lift Station
design. Funds will remain available to design the facility. Once development planning for the lift
station site area is complete and approved by the County of San Diego the site and access easement
can be dedicated to the District. Construction of the lift station will be the responsibility of the
benefiting property owners.

The Park Circle Development will require 220 additional units of capacity above the capacity available
from the Woods Valley Ranch Wastewater Expansion Project. The additional capacity is to be
constructed as part of a Phase 3 Expansion Project. Construction timing for the expansion facilities,
secured by the formation of CFD 2020-1, will depend on the level of buildout within the Woods Valley
Ranch Sewer Service Area.

Construction of the Phase 3 Facilities will be delayed until the actual flow rates generated in the service
area approach the capacity of the existing facilities. The developer has posted a financial security to
fund the costs that cannot be included in a future CFD Bond for the Phase 3 Facilities.

9



VCMWD Financial Section

Sources of Revenue

Combined Revenues by Category

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Increase/ %
2025 2024 (Decrease) Change

Water Sales (Acre Feet) 13,885 11,493 2,392 20.8%
Revenues by Category:
Water sales and pumping charges $36,482,154  $27,646,096 $8,836,058 32.0%
Meter service charges 8,903,965 8,190,391 713,574 8.7%
Meter installation fees 363,814 477,360 (113,546) -23.8%
Other water operating revenues 1,391,954 674,435 717,519 106.4%
Wastewater charges 4,736,908 4,500,955 235,953 5.2%
Property taxes and assessments 4,667,255 4,486,949 180,306 4.0%
Investment income (loss) 2,204,111 2,046,267 157,844 7.7%
Other nonoperating revenues 412,972 397,513 15,459 3.9%
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets (33,918) 56,480 (90,398) -160.1%

Total Revenues 59,129,215 48,476,446 10,652,769 22.0%
Capital contributions 9,394,341 4,261,441 5,132,900 120.5%

Total Revenues & Capital Contributions $68,523,556 $52,737,887 $15,785,669 29.9%

Combined revenues (excluding capital contributions) for the fiscal year totaled $59,129,215, an
increase of $10,652,769 or 22.0% from the previous year. Details of this increase in revenues are as
follows:

Water sales and pumping revenue increased 32.0% or $8,836,058, from the prior year as the sales
volume increased by 2,392 acre feet. The lower than average rainfall directly affects agricultural sales
which is still the largest majority of the Districts sales mix. The increase is due to the relatively dry
weather conditions experienced during Fiscal Year 2024-25. Sales to Certified Agricultural customers
increased 1,373 AF for a total of 7,733 AF from 6,360 AF in the prior year, representing a 21.6%
increase.

Meter service charges of $8,903,965 were $713,574, or 8.7%, higher than the prior fiscal year. The
majority of this increase is due to the implementation of a new charge, the MWD Fixed Charge
Passthrough, that went into effect on January 1, 2025. Additionally, the monthly meter service charges
increased 5.1% on the same day. Furthermore, the number of active meters increased by 41 bringing
the Fiscal Year 2024-25 count to 11,854 from 11,813 in the prior year.

Meter installation fees for the year were down 23.8%, or $113,546, from the prior year due to a
decrease in the amount of new water meters and backflow devices purchased and installed. The
majority of which are attributable to the near completion of the Park Circle development.

Other Water Operating Revenues increased by 106.4%, or $717,519, as a result of higher
delinquency fees and the one-time revenues of $520,000 that were received from Bond proceeds for
reimbursement of District expenses for the construction of the Orchard Run Lift Station.

10



VCMWD Financial Section

Source of Revenues Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2025

Wastewater charges are up by 5.2% or $235,953. This increase is primarily due to two reasons, one
being the collection of the Capital Improvement Charge which was implemented for the first time on
January 3, 2024. This charge generated $356,000 in Fiscal Year 2024-25, which was the first full fiscal
year that the charge was collected. Second, a 5.1% increase to the wastewater service charges and the
low-pressure sewer system charge went into effect on January 1, 2025 resulting in increased revenue
from wastewater charges. Additionally, total active service connections increased slightly in the
Woods Valley Ranch service area. The number of active meters increased by 8 bringing the Fiscal
Year 2024-25 count to 984 as compared to 976 in the prior year.

Property taxes and assessments increased by 4.0%, or $180,306. This increase is due to the increase
in Total Assessed Value as a result of the completion of the final phases of the Park Circle
Development, resulting in higher Current Secured Property Tax Revenue than normal. For all Fixed
Charge Special Assessments (excluding the CFD 2020-1 Special Tax), the District has adopted San
Diego County’s Teeter Plan, an alternative method of distribution of tax levies and collections under
which the County advances 100% of the secured tax levies due to the District each year without
consideration for delinquencies.

Investment income was up 7.7%, or $157,844, compared to the prior year. The increase is due to a
higher yield on investments, as the average yield increased from 4.1% in Fiscal Year 2023-24 up to
4.4% in Fiscal Year 2024-25. The majority of the Districts investments are held in the California Asset
Management Program, the San Diego County Investment Fund, Certificates of Deposits, and
Treasuries.

Other nonoperating revenues increased 3.9%, or $15,459 due to increased lease fees collected from

the lease of facilities for cellular sites. All cellular site lease agreements include a factor of annual fee
escalations.

Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets decreased by 160.1%, or $90,398, as a result of the disposal
of assets that were replaced or disposed of before being fully depreciated.

11



VCMWD Financial Section

Functional Expenses

Combined Expenses by Category

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Increase/ %
2025 2024 (Decrease) Change

Water Purchased (Acre Feet) 14,691 12,236 2,455 20.1%
Expenses by Category:
Cost of water sold $30,868,413 $23,863,733 $7,004,680 29.4%
Energy and pumping costs 2,901,876 2,921,438 (19,562) -0.7%
Water systems operations 6,845,634 6,306,714 538,920 8.5%
Wastewater collection and treatment 2,045,940 1,840,953 204,987 11.1%
Engineering 2,568,629 2,354,138 214,491 9.1%
General and administrative 4,641,692 3,925,539 716,153 18.2%
Depreciation 5,315,902 5,131,346 184,556 3.6%
Interest expense 556,398 496,041 60,357 12.2%

Total expenses $55,744,484 $46,839,902 $8,904,582 19.0%

The Cost of water sold increased 29.4% compared to the prior year. Water purchases were up 2,455
AF, or 20.1%, over the prior year, while wholesale water prices were also up. In Fiscal Year 2023-24,
the District purchased 12,236 AF of water at an average price of $1,950 per acre foot. In the current
year, the District purchased 14,691 AF of water at an average price of $2,101 per acre foot, an increase
of 7.7% or $151 per acre foot. The average price per acre foot is impacted by the fixed components of
the San Diego County Water Authority (SDCWA\) rate that the District must pay regardless of the
volume of water purchased. These fixed components include customer service, emergency storage, and
supply reliability charges by the SDCWA.

Agricultural discounts passed through to District customers from the SDCWA on their melded water
rate during the year were $2,697,478 on 7,733 AF of sales. This cost reduction for agricultural water
is passed through to the District’s certified agricultural customers and is included in the Cost of water
sold. The agricultural discount is higher than the previous year, $909 in Calendar Year 2025 compared
to $676 in 2024, as all three components (the SDCWA melded supply rate, emergency storage, and
supply reliability) which agricultural customers do not pay, increased on January 1, 2025.

Energy and pumping costs during Fiscal Year 2024-25 were 0.7%, or $19,562, lower than in Fiscal
Year 2023-24. This is a result of a 25% decrease to the SDG&E rates that went into effect in March
2024. The savings from that rate decrease were offset by rate increases later in Fiscal Year 2024/25 as
well as higher sales volume compared to the prior year which resulted in more energy requirements to
pump the water through the distribution system.

Water systems operations expenses increased $538,920, or 8.5%, over Fiscal Year 2023-24. The
increase is due to higher labor and benefits, maintenance of facilities and improvements, and software
technical support costs.

12



VCMWD Financial Section

Source of Expenses Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2025

Combined wastewater collection and treatment costs for Lower Moosa and Woods Valley Ranch
were $204,987 or 11.1%, higher than the prior year. The increase is a result of increased labor and
benefits, maintenance of facilities, and outside professional services.

Engineering expenses for Fiscal Year 2024-25 were up 9.1%, or $214,491, compared to Fiscal Year
2023-24. This increase is a result of increased capital planning expenses that were partially offset by
decreased labor & benefits.

General and Administrative expenses increased 18.2%, or $716,153, primarily due to higher labor
and benefits and OPEB expenses, which were partially offset by lower Pension expenses. The
District’s net pension liability for the risk pool is measured as the proportionate share of the risk pools
net pension liability. Under GASB 68, gains and losses related to the changes in total pension liability
and fiduciary net position are recognized as a pension expense systematically over time. Similar gains
and losses are recognized for OPEB expenses. These systematic adjustments are not cash transactions,
rather gains and losses that reflect the overall performance of the plans at the measurement date. More
detailed information concerning the Pension and OPEB Plans can be found in Notes 8 and 9 of the
Notes to the Financial Statements.

Other factors that resulted in the overall increase to general and administrative expenses were increases
to legal services and insurance premiums that were partially offset by decreases to membership fees
and dues and outside services.

Depreciation expenses increased by $184,556, or 3.6% compared to the prior year. This was due to
the purchase of new equipment and completed projects in both the current and prior fiscal year.

Interest expense increased by $60,357, or 12.2% as a result of construction period interest paid on
the latest State Revolving Fund (SRF) Loan used to fund the 2020 Pipeline Projects. That payment was
partially offset by decreases to the regularly scheduled amortization payments made during the year
on the other SRF Loans.

13



VCMWD Financial Section

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes In Net Position

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Increase/ %
2025 2024 (Decrease) Change
Operating Revenues:
Water sales and pumping charges $36,482,154 $27,646,096 $8,836,058 32.0%
Meter service charges 8,903,965 8,190,391 713,574 8.7%
Wastewater charges 4,736,908 4,500,955 235,953 5.2%
Meter installation fees 363,814 477,360 (113,546) -23.8%
Other water operating revenues 1,391,954 674,435 717,519 106.4%
Total operating revenues 51,878,795 41,489,237 10,389,558 25.0%
Operating Expenses:
Cost of water sold 30,868,413 23,863,733 7,004,680 29.4%
Energy and pumping costs 2,901,876 2,921,438 (19,562) -0.7%
Water systems operations 6,845,634 6,306,714 538,920 8.5%
Wastewater collection and treatment 2,045,940 1,840,953 204,987 11.1%
Engineering 2,568,629 2,354,138 214,491 9.1%
General and administrative 4641,692 3,925,539 716,153 18.2%
Depreciation 5,315,902 5,131,346 184,556 3.6%
Total operating expenses 55,188,086 46,343,861 8,844,225 19.1%
Operating (Loss) (3,309,291) (4,854,624) 1,545,333 31.8%
Nonoperating Revenues and (Expenses):
Property taxes and assessments 4,667,255 4,486,949 180,306 4.0%
Investment income (loss) 2,204,111 2,046,267 157,844 7.7%
Other nonoperating revenues 412,972 397,513 15,459 3.9%
Interest expense (556,398) (496,041) (60,357) -12.2%
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets (33,918) 56,480 (90,398) -160.1%
Total Nonoperating Revenues and (Expenses) 6,694,022 6,491,168 202,854 3.1%
Income Before Contributions 3,384,731 1,636,544 1,748,187 106.8%
Capital contributions 9,394,341 4,261,441 5,132,900 120.5%
Change in Net Position 12,779,072 5,897,985 6,881,087 116.7%
Net Position at Beginning of Year 97,163,126 91,265,141 5,897,985 6.5%
NET POSITION AT END OF YEAR $109,942,198 $97,163,126 $12,779,072 13.2%

The District’s Net Position at June 30, 2025 totaled $109,942,198, an increase of $12,779,072, or
13.2%, from the previous year. The increase is largely due to the capital contributions of $9,394,341
stemming from the completion of the Orchard Run Lift Station and various developer funded
improvements completed as part of the Park Circle Development. The remaining $3,384,731 is due to
income before contributions with $2,403,497 coming from the General Fund, $201,383 from the Lower
Moosa Wastewater Fund, and $779,851 coming from the Woods Valley Ranch Wastewater Fund.

14



VCMWD Financial Section

Condensed Statement of Net Position

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Increase/ %

2025 2024 (Decrease) Change
Current Assets $49,930,692 $49,355,074 $575,618 1.2%
Restricted Assets 620,576 1,018,814 (398,238) -39.1%
Long-Term Receivables 11,893,756 11,369,880 523,876 4.6%
Capital Assets 122,601,213 119,322,852 3,278,361 2.7%
Total Assets 185,046,237 181,066,620 3,979,617 2.2%
Deferred Outflows of Resources 9,281,982 10,972,912 (1,690,930) -15.4%
Current Liabilities 19,846,074 34,629,213 (14,783,139) -42.7%
Long-term Debt 24,888,634 18,553,549 6,335,085 34.1%
Other Noncurrent Liabilities 30,268,426 31,572,740 (1,304,314) -4.1%
Total Liabilities 75,003,134 84,755,502 (9,752,368) -11.5%
Deferred Inflows of Resources 9,382,887 10,120,904 (738,017) -7.3%

Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets 94,979,261 98,661,084 (3,681,823) -3.7%
Restricted for facility expansion 620,576 1,018,814 (398,238) -39.1%
Unrestricted 14,342,361 (2,516,772) 16,859,133 669.9%
Total Net Position $109,942,198 $97,163,126 $12,779,072 13.2%

Total Assets:

Current Assets were up $575,618, 1.2%, largely due to an increase in accounts receivable at year
end compared to the prior fiscal year end.

Restricted Assets decreased by 39.1%, $398,238, due to a decrease at year end in the Reserve for
Water Fund Capacity Charges, which are generated from the sales of new meters and are used to
fund capital projects.

Long-Term Receivables increased $523,876, 4.6%, due to the renewal of two lease receivables
both at 15-year terms.

Capital Assets were up by 2.7%, or $3,278,361, as a result of increased Capital Assets placed in
service during Fiscal Year 2024-25 partially offset by decreased Construction in Progress
compared to Fiscal Year 2023-24.

Total Liabilities:

Current Liabilities decreased $14,783,139, 42.7%, due to decreased accounts payable and
customer deposits related to the North County Emergency Storage Project which is near
completion and the completion of the 2020 Pipeline Replacement Program that now has related
long-term debt instead. Additionally, the District reimbursed $3,800,000 in developer deposits
related to the completion of the Orchard Run Lift Station and Bond Sale.

Long-term Debt at the end of the year was up 34.1%, or $6,335,085, as a result of the completion
of the 2020 Pipeline Replacement Program and the new related SRF Loan.

Other Noncurrent Liabilities decreased 4.1%, or $1,304,314, as a result of a decrease in Net
Pension and OPEB liabilities.
15



VCMWD Financial Section

More detailed information concerning the Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources can be found
in Notes 8 and 9 of the Notes to the Financial Statements.

LONG TERM DEBT
At June 30, 2025 the District had $26,470,847 of installment sales agreements consisting of five debt
instruments; two for water facilities and three for wastewater facilities. More detailed information
regarding long-term debt activity is presented in Note 5 to the financial statements.

Water Facilities

The new Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF) Loan was used for the 2020 Pipeline
Replacement Program, which included the Oat Hill Discharge, Alps Way, Gordon Hill Road, and the
Lilac Road Pipeline Replacement Projects. This loan is for $7,963,750 is payable over a thirty-year
term (beginning in November 2025 and ending November 2054) at an annual interest rate of 1.2%.
Annual debt service is $214,200 and the remaining balance at the close of Fiscal Year 2024-25 is
$7.96M.

Staff is continuing to process another DWSRF Loan application for the 2023 Water Facility
Replacement Program, which will include the Old Castle Phase 2 Pipeline Replacement project for an
anticipated loan amount of $5,525,000. Approval from the State Water Resources Control Board is
anticipated in Fall 2025.

As of June 30, 2025, the District had no general obligation bonded debt. As the District has issued no
bonded debt for public placement since 1968, it is not rated by any investment rating service.

Community Facilities District No. 2020-1

The construction of the Orchard Run Lift Station was initially funded by the developer and was
ultimately acquired by Community Facilities District No. 2020-1 (CFD 2020-1). In December 2024,
Special Tax Bonds were issued by CFD 2020-1 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and the
developer was subsequently reimbursed. The Bonds are repayable over a thirty-year term (beginning
March 2025 and ending September 2054) at an annual interest rate of 4.4%. These bonds are not an
obligation of the District but are secured by annual special taxes that are billed to and collected from
property owners within the community facilities district and are presented on the Fiduciary Statements
of this report. More detailed information regarding Community Facilities District 2020-1 is presented
in Note 6 to the financial statements.

CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets include land, transmission and distribution system, general plant, and construction-in-
progress. At June 30, 2025, the District had $238,399,824 in capital assets with $115,798,611 of
accumulated depreciation. This represents a net increase (additions less deductions) of $3,278,361 over
the prior year. Annual depreciation usually approximates the amount transferred to reserves and in turn
is reinvested in the capital plant.

16



VCMWD Financial Section

Capital Assets

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Increase/ %
2025 2024 (Decrease) Change
Land $7,967,130 $7,967,130 $0 0.0%
Construction in progress 3,780,449 6,498,617 (2,718,168) -41.8%
Transmission and distribution system 207,710,258 197,231,963 10,478,295 5.3%
Right to use leased asset 185,882 185,882 0 0.0%
General plant 18,756,105 18,353,186 402,919 2.2%
Total assets $238,399,824 $230,236,778 $8,163,046 3.5%

Significant additions to general plant and transmission and distribution include the North County
Emergency Storage Project 14" Pipeline Relocation; the painting and recoating of two reservoirs —
McNally Reservoir and Mizpah Reservoir; the Alps Way Pipeline Replacement; and the Upgrade of
Clarifier Number 2 and Chlorine Contact Tank at the Lower Moosa Canyon Water Reclamation
Facility; as well as various contributed capital projects related to the Park Circle Development.

More detailed information about the District’s capital assets is presented in Note 4 to the financial
statements.

ECONOMIC FACTORS

Rates are set annually based upon anticipated water demands, known and anticipated wholesale water
and power costs increases from its suppliers, and estimated cost increases for the local labor, materials,
chemical and operational cost increases. A significant reduction in consumption could have an adverse
effect on the District’s financial position in a given fiscal year. However, any long-term impact will
be counter-balanced to the District’s diversified revenue portfolio, presence of non-commaodity service
charge, tax and standby/availability charge revenues. Additionally, the District purchases all of its
water from the San Diego County Water Authority. Interruption of this service would have a significant
negative effect on the District’s financial position. At June 30, 2025, the District had designated
$6,482,230 of its unrestricted net position as a water operating reserve to mitigate the potential impacts
of a short to mid-term interruption or reduction in water supply from the SDCWA. This represents
approximately four and a half months of operating and maintenance expenses. Wastewater fund
reserves are excluded from this figure.

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and creditors
with a general overview of the District’s finances and to demonstrate the District’s accountability for
the financial resources it manages. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial
information, contact the Valley Center Municipal Water District’s Finance Department at 29300
Valley Center Road, Valley Center, California 92082, or call (760) 735-4500.

17



VCMWD Financial Section

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

18



Financial Statements



VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2025
(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR PRIOR YEAR)

2025 2024
ASSETS:
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2) $ 25,260,705 $ 29,068,829
Investments (Note 2) 14,251,934 10,583,010
Accounts receivable, net 7,779,969 7,097,389
Woods Valley Ranch Phase 1 receivable (Note 1i) 176,154 165,021
Interest receivable 353,322 273,701
Taxes receivable 111,616 37,447
Other receivables 140,014 326,928
Lease receivable (Note 11) 257,749 254,767
Inventory (Note 1k) 1,324,972 1,297,006
Prepaid expenses and deposits 274,257 250,976
Total Current Assets 49,930,692 49,355,074
Noncurrent Assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents (Note 2) 620,576 615,261
Restricted investments (Note 2) - 403,553
Woods Valley Ranch Phase 1 receivable (Note 1i) 1,989,387 2,172,881
Investment in VCMWD AD 2012-1 (Note 2) 3,625,000 3,840,000
Lease receivable (Note 11) 6,279,369 5,356,999
Nondepreciable capital assets (Note 4) 11,747,579 14,465,747
Depreciable capital assets, net (Note 4) 110,853,634 104,857,105
Total Noncurrent Assets 135,115,545 131,711,546
Total Assets 185,046,237 181,066,620
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Deferred outflows related to pensions (Note 8) 7,715,495 8,571,915
Deferred outflows related to OPEB (Note 9) 1,566,487 2,400,997
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 9,281,982 10,972,912

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

20



VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30, 2025
(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR PRIOR YEAR)

LIABILITIES:

Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Compensated absences (Note 5)
Interest payable
Customer deposits
Long-term liabilities (Note 5)
Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Compensated absences (Note 5)
Long-term liabilities (Note 5)
Net pension liability (Note 8)
Net OPEB liability (Note 9)

Total Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:

Deferred inflows related to pensions (Note 8)

Deferred inflows related to OPEB (Note 9)

Deferred inflows related to leases (Note 11)
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

NET POSITION:

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for facility expansion

Unrestricted (Note 7)
Total Net Position

2025 2024
7,393,127 14,860,341
344,424 337,526
1,086,239 1,021,514
257,763 224,972
9,135,857 16,797,477
1,628,664 1,387,383
19,846,074 34,629,213
1,649,999 1,690,051
24,888,634 18,553,549
27,891,213 28,328,853
727,214 1,553,836
55,157,060 50,126,289
75,003,134 84,755,502
2,019,715 3,470,538
1,378,088 1,476,894
5,985,084 5,173,472
9,382,887 10,120,904
94,979,261 98,661,084
620,576 1,018,814
14,342,361 (2,516,772)

$ 109,942,198

$ 97,163,126

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

21



VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGE IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR PRIOR YEAR)

Operating Revenues:

Water sales and pumping charges

2025

2024

$ 36,482,154

$ 27,646,096

Meter service charges 8,903,965 8,190,391
Wastewater charges 4,736,908 4,500,955
Meter installation fees 363,814 477,360
Other water operating revenues 1,391,954 674,435

Total Operating Revenues 51,878,795 41,489,237

Operating Expenses:

Cost of water sold 30,868,413 23,863,733
Energy and pumping costs 2,901,876 2,921,438
Water systems operations 6,845,634 6,306,714
Wastewater collection and treatment 2,045,940 1,840,953
Engineering 2,568,629 2,354,138
General and administrative 4,641,692 3,925,539
Depreciation 5,315,902 5,131,346

Total Operating Expenses 55,188,086 46,343,861

Operating Income (Loss)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):

(3,309,291)

(4,854,624)

Property taxes and assessments 4,667,255 4,486,949
Investment income (loss) 2,204,111 2,046,267
Other nonoperating revenues 412,972 397,513
Interest expense (556,398) (496,041)
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets (33,918) 56,480
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 6,694,022 6,491,168
Net Income Before Capital Contributions 3,384,731 1,636,544
Capital Contributions
Capacity Charges 265,309 400,726
Developer Contributions 9,129,032 3,860,715
Total Capital Contributions 9,394,341 4,261,441
Change in Net Position 12,779,072 5,897,985
Net Position at Beginning of Year 97,163,126 91,265,141

Net Position at End of Year $ 109,942,198 $ 97,163,126

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

22



VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR PRIOR YEAR)

2025

2024

Cash Flow From Operating Activities:
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Collection (return) of deposits

$ 51,371,999

(33,879,552)
(16,337,160)

$ 39,683,160

(18,678,875)
(15,123,818)

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Cash Flow From Noncapital Financing Activities:
Receipts from property taxes

Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Proceeds from disposal of capital assets
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Proceeds from capital contributions
Proceeds from leases
Interest paid on debt
Payments on debt

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related Financing Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Proceeds from investment in VCMWD AD 2012-1
Interest income
Proceeds from sale of investments
Purchase of investments

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities

(7,661,620) (5,123,192)
(6,506,333) 757,275
4,593,086 4,621,250
4,593,086 4,621,250
- 112,960
(3,422,231) (7,476,283)
4,070,309 1,099,117
299,232 267,857
(523,607) (467,254)
(1,387,384) (1,401,758)
(963,681) (7,865,361)
215,000 215,000
1,867,484 1,651,754
6,384,635 5,584,416
(9,393,000) (6,145,283)
(925,881) 1,305,887

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year

(3,802,809)

29,684,090

(1,180,949)

30,865,039

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year

$ 25,881,281

$ 29,684,090

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

23

(Continued)



VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR PRIOR YEAR)

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net
Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Operating loss
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss
to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation
Change in assets, deferred outflows of resources,
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources:
Accounts receivable, net
Woods Valley Ranch receivable
Other receivable
Inventory
Prepaid expenses and deposits
Deferred outflows - pensions
Deferred outflows - OPEB
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Compensated absences
Customer deposits
Net pension liability
Net OPEB liability
Deferred inflows - pensions
Deferred inflows - OPEB
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Financial Statement Classification
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

Noncash Investing, Capital and Financing Activities
Net unrealized loss on investments
Capital assets included in accounts payable
Capital assets contributed
Total Noncash Investing, Capital and Financing Activities

2025

2024

$ (3,309,291)

$ (4,854,624)

5,315,902 5,131,346
(682,580) (1,482,210)

172,361 168,651
186,914 (323,870)

(27,966) 153,188
(23,281) (97,372)
856,420 (197,475)
834,510 (554,349)

614,618 8,124,063

6,898 45,329

24,673 207,154
(7,661,620) (5,123,192)

(437,640) 1,180,340

(826,622) 742,066
(1,450,823) (1,955,709)
(98,806) (406,061)

$ (6,506,333) _$ 757,275

$ 25,260,705

$ 29,068,829

620,576 615,261

$ 25,881,281 $ 29,684,090
$ 257,006 $ 378,356
118,082 334,827
5,324,032 3,162,324

$ 5,699,120 $ 3,875,507

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

24



VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2025

(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR PRIOR YEAR)

ASSETS:
Cash and Investments (Note 2)
Taxes receivable
Total Assets
NET POSITION:

Restricted for the benefit of residents
of the AD 2012-1 and CFD 2020-1

Custodial Funds

2025 2024
2,275,987 $ 1,461,094
2,050 6,296
2,278,037 1,467,390
2,278,037 $ 1,467,390

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

25



VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025
(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR PRIOR YEAR)

Custodial Funds

2025 2024
ADDITIONS:
Property taxes and assessments $ 659,178 $ 656,267
Investment income 76,301 87,748
Other revenue 463,155 5,098
Total additions 1,198,634 749,113
DEDUCTIONS:
Labor and benefits 8,228 31,173
Outside professional services 34,105 669,583
Payment to VCMWD - 698,390
Bond principal 215,000 215,000
Bond interest 130,654 86,846
Total deductions 387,987 1,700,992
Change in net position 810,647 (951,879)
Net Position - Beginning 1,467,390 2,419,269
Net Position - Ending $ 2,278,037 $ 1,467,390

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

26



Notes to the Financial
Statements



VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Note 1 - Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

(a) Description of Reporting Entity

The Valley Center Municipal Water District (the “District”) is a governmental corporation governed
by an elected five-member board of directors. The District was incorporated July 12, 1954, under
the provisions of the California Water District Act of 1911. The District’s 101 square mile service
area lies in northern San Diego County and the majority of its sales are to agricultural users. The
District’s offices are located in Valley Center, California.

In keeping its books and records, the District has established various self-balancing groups of
accounts in order to enhance internal control and to further the attainment of other management
objectives. These groups of accounts are identified in the District’s books and records as General,
Lower Moosa Wastewater Treatment, and Woods Valley Ranch Wastewater. All significant inter-
group transactions and accounts are eliminated in the combination of the accounts for the financial
statements of the reporting entity.

The criteria used in determining the scope of the reporting entity are based on the provisions of
GASB Cod. Sec. 2100 "“Defining the Financial Reporting Entity”. The District is the primary
government unit. Component units are those entities which are financially accountable to the
primary government, either because the District appoints a voting majority of the component
unit’s board, or because the component unit will provide a financial benefit or impose a financial
burden on the District. The District has nho component units.

(b) Method of Accounting

The District’s financial activities are accounted for as an enterprise fund. An enterprise fund is a
Proprietary-type fund used to account for operations (a) that are financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business enterprises where the intent of the governing body is that the
costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a
continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or (b) where the
governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred,
and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control,
accountability or other purposes.

Water and wastewater lines may be constructed by private developers and then dedicated to the
District, which is then responsible for future maintenance. These lines are recorded as capital
contributions when they pass inspection by the District and the estimated costs are capitalized as
transmission and distribution. Additionally, the District reports the following fund type:

Fiduciary Funds - used to account for assets held by the District in a custodial capacity for
individuals, organizations or other governments. The Districts fiduciary funds include: Valley
Center Municipal Water Assessment District (AD 2012-1) and Community Facilities District No.
2020-1.

28



VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

(c) Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows
of resources, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

(d) Revenue Recognition

Revenues from water sales and pumping charges, meter service charges, meter installation fees,
and wastewater charges are recognized as they are earned. Taxes and assessments are
recognized as revenue based upon amounts reported to the District by the County of San Diego,
net of an allowance for estimated uncollectible taxes.

Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with an enterprise fund’s principal operations. The principal
operating revenues of the District consist of water sales, wastewater service, and connection and
installation fees. Nonoperating revenues consist of property taxes and assessments, investment
income, and special charges that can be used for either operating or capital purposes. Operating
expenses include the cost of sales, operation, maintenance, and administrative expenses, and
depreciation of capital assets. Expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating
expenses.

Capital contributions consist of contributed assets and special charges that are legally restricted
for capital expenditures by state law or by the Board action that established those charges.

(e) Property Taxes and Assessments

Property taxes and assessments are billed by the County of San Diego to property owners. The
District’s property tax calendar for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025, was as follows:

Lien Date: January 1

Levy Date: July 1

Due Date: First Installment - November 1
Second Installment — February 1

Delinquent Date: First Installment - December 10

Second Installment - April 10

The County collects the taxes from the property owners and remits the funds to the District
periodically during the year. The District has an arrangement with the County whereby the County
remits taxes which are delinquent as of each June 30 to the District in exchange for the right to
retain the delinquent taxes, penalties, and interest when these amounts are subsequently
collected with the exception of CFD 2020-1.

29



VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

(f) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include deposits in SEC-registered money market mutual funds,
deposits in external investment pools, and marketable securities that mature within three months
of purchase. Such marketable securities and deposits in money market funds are carried at fair
value. Investment pool deposits are carried at the District’s proportionate share of the fair value
of each pool’s underlying portfolio.

(g) Investments

Investments are stated at their fair value, which represents the quoted or stated market value.
Investments that are not traded on a market, such as investments in external pools, are valued
based on the stated fair value as represented by the external pool. All investments are stated at
their fair value. The District has not elected to report certain investments at amortized costs.

(h) Accounts Receivable - Water and Wastewater

The District extends credit to customers in the normal course of operations. Management has
evaluated the accounts and has established an allowance for doubtful accounts for the accounts
that they believe are not collectible.

(i) Woods Valley Ranch Phase 1 Receivable

The Woods Valley Ranch (WVR) Water Reclamation Facility - Phase 1 project was funded,
constructed and dedicated to the District by the developer. Pursuant to the Reimbursement
Agreement for Construction of Water Reclamation Facilities (Agreement), the developer was
required to oversize certain facilities to serve other areas in addition to the developer’s property.
The District agreed to reimburse the developer for the cost of benefiting future development
facilities with funds collected from participants in future expansion phases and submit payment to
the Developer. In May 2016, the District refunded to the developer the $3,589,720 pursuant to
the Agreement. The refund was funded with proceeds from the Installment Sales agreement from
the State of California Water Resources Control board obtained for the Phase 2 expansion project
and will be repaid from annual assessments from the Phase 2 participants over a 20-year period
through June 30, 2036. The WVR Phase I Buy-In receivable totaled $2,165,541 at June 30, 2025.

(i) Investment in VCMWD AD 2012-1

On July 31, 2018, the Valley Center Municipal Water District Assessment District 2012-1 (AD2012-
1) issued $4,035,000 of limited obligation improvement bonds. The bonds and interest are paid
from general special assessments on property within AD 2012-1. On July 31, 2018 the District
purchased this bond in its entirety and is the sole bondholder.

On March 21, 2022, the Valley Center Municipal Water District Assessment District 2012-1
(AD2012-1) issued an additional $700,000 of limited obligation improvement bonds. The District
purchased this bond in its entirety and is the sole bondholder. The VCMWD AD-2012-1 limited
obligation bonds totaled $3,625,000 at June 30, 2025.

30



VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

(k) Inventory

Inventory consists of water and materials in storage valued at average cost. Water inventory is
valued at cost at which the water was purchased using the last-in-first-out (LIFO) method. Total
inventory at June 30, 2025 is $1,324,972.

(1) Capital Assets

Capital assets purchased or acquired with an initial individual cost exceeding $2,000 and an
estimated useful life of more than two years are reported at historical costs. Donated capital
assets, donated works of art, and similar items, and capital assets received in service concession
agreements are reported at acquisition value. Additions, improvements, and other capital outlays
that significantly extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs
and maintenance are expensed as incurred. Upon sale or disposition of property and equipment,
the asset account is relieved of the cost and the accumulated depreciation account is charged with
depreciation taken prior to the sale and any resultant gain or loss is credited or charged to
earnings. Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method over the following estimated
useful lives:

Useful Life
Transmission and distribution system 10 - 40 years
General plant 2 - 40 years
Right to Use Asset / SBITA The estimated life of the

leased asset or the contract
term whichever is shorter

(m) Compensated Absences

During the year ended June 30, 2025, the District adopted new accounting guidance by
implementing the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No.
101, Compensated Absences, which seeks to better meet the information needs of financial
statement users by updating the recognition and measurement guidance for compensated
absences. No prior period adjustment was needed. Accumulated unpaid vacation and sick leave
totaling $2,736,239 is accrued when incurred and included in current and noncurrent liabilities at
June 30, 2025.

(n) Leases

The District is a lessor and lessee for leases as detailed in Footnotes 5 and 11. The District
recognizes a lease receivable, a deferred inflow of resources, and a lease payable in the financial
statements.

At the commencement of the lease, the District initially measures the lease receivable at the
present value of payments expected to be received and paid during the lease term. Subsequently,
the lease receivable is reduced by the principal portion of lease payments received and the lease
payable is reduced by the principal portion of lease payments made.

31



VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

(n) Leases (Continued)

The deferred inflow of resources is initially measured as the initial amount of the lease receivable,
adjusted for lease payments received at or before the lease commencement date. Subsequently,
the deferred inflows of resources are recognized as revenue over the life of the lease term.

Key estimates and judgments include how the district determines the discount rate it uses to
discount the expected lease payments to present value.

e The District used the incremental borrowing rate for leases.
e The lease term includes the noncancellable period of the lease.

The District monitors changes in circumstances that would require a remeasurement of its leases
and will remeasure the lease payable and deferred inflows of resources if certain changes occur
that are expected to significantly affect the amount of the lease payable.

(o) Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements

The District is a lessor and recognizes a lease payable and a right-to-use subscription asset as
detailed in Note 4 and 5. At the commencement of the SBITA, the District initially measures the
present value of the payments expected to be paid during the SBITA term. Subsequently, the
SBITA is reduced by the principal portion of payments made.

Key estimates and judgments include how the district determines the discount rate it uses to
discount the expected lease payments to present value.

e The District used the incremental borrowing rate for leases.
e The lease term includes the noncancellable period of the lease.

The District monitors changes in circumstances that would require a remeasurement of its leases
and will remeasure the lease payable and deferred inflows of resources if certain changes occur
that are expected to significantly affect the amount of the lease payable.

(p) Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of
resources, represents a consumption of net assets that applies to a future period(s) and so will
not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then.

The District has two items that qualify for reporting in this category, deferred actuarial pension

costs and deferred actuarial OPEB costs are items that are deferred and recognized as an outflow
of resources in the period the amounts become available.

32



VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Note 1 - Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

(p) Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources (Continued)

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of
resources, represents an acquisition of net assets that applies to a future period(s) and will not
be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The District has three items that
qualify for reporting in this category. The items, deferred actuarial pension costs, deferred actuarial
OPEB costs, and deferred lease revenue are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in
the period that the amounts become available.

(q) Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
position and additions to/deductions from the Plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined
on the same basis as they are reported by the CalPERS financial office. For this purpose, benefit
payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. CalPERS audited
financial statements are publicly available reports that can be obtained at CalPERS website under
Forms and Publications.

GASB 68 requires that the reported results must pertain to liability and asset information within
certain defined time frames. For this report, the following time frames are used:

Valuation Date June 30, 2023
Measurement Date June 30, 2024
Measurement Period July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024

(r) Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the Other Postemployment Benefit Programs of the Valley Center Municipal Water
District (OPEB Plan), the assets of which are held by the California Employers’ Retiree Benefit
Trust (CERBT), and additions to/deductions from the OPEB Plan’s fiduciary net position have been
determined by an independent actuary. For this purpose, benefit payments are recognized when
currently due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair
value.

Generally accepted accounting principles require that the reported results must pertain to liability
and fiduciary net position information within certain defined time frames. For this report, the
following time frames are used:

Valuation Date June 30, 2023
Measurement Date June 30, 2024
Measurement Period July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024

33



VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

(s) Net Position

The difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources less liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources is called net position. Net position is comprised of three components: net
investment in capital assets, restricted, and unrestricted.

e Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation/amortization and reduced by outstanding balances of bonds, notes, and other
debt that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.
Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources that are attributable to
the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets or related debt are included
in this component of net position.

e Restricted net position consists of restricted assets reduced by liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources related to those assets. Assets are reported as restricted when
constraints are placed on asset use either by external parties or by law through
constitutional provision or enabling legislation.

e Unrestricted net position of the District is for sole use by the District for its operations. It
is reported as unrestricted net position in the accompanying financial statements because
this restriction corresponds to the general purpose for which the District has been
established. It is unavailable for other government uses and is committed to the ongoing
operations of the District, including amounts necessary to cover contingencies,
unanticipated expenditures, revenue shortfalls, and weather and economic fluctuations.

(t) Prior Year Comparative Information

Selected information regarding the prior year has been included in the accompanying financial
statements. This information has been included for comparison purposes only and does not
represent a complete presentation in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the government’s prior year
financial statements, from which this selected financial data was derived.

Note 2 - Cash and Investments:

(a) Authorized Investments

The District’s Ordinances authorize the District to invest in bonds issued by the District; obligations
of the United States Treasury, agencies, and government sponsored enterprises; certificates of
deposit at commercial banks and savings and loans when insured or collateralized in accordance
with law; shares of beneficial interest issued by a diversified management company as authorized
by California Government Code Section 53601(k); the State of California Local Agency Investment
Fund; the California Asset Management Program; as well as deposits with the Treasurer of the
County of San Diego.

These authorized investments are more restrictive than those permitted by the California
Government Code, which would also allow investments in prime commercial paper, bankers’
acceptances, repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements, financial futures or financial options
contracts, obligations of the State of California, and obligations of local agencies within California.

34



VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Note 2 - Cash and Investments: (Continued)

(a) Authorized Investments

Cash and investments held by the District were comprised of the following at June 30, 2025:

Cash and Investments consists

Demand Deposits $ 1,134,114
Investments __ 44,900,088
Total $ 46,034,202
Financial Statement Classification:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 25,260,705
Investments 14,251,934
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Restricted 620,576

Investment in VCMWD AD 2012-1 Limited Obligation Bond 3,625,000
Fiduciary Funds

Cash and Investments 2,275,987
Total $ 46,034,202

(b) Concentration of Credit Risk

The District’s policy is that investments should be diversified through limited investment to avoid
over-concentration in securities from a specific issuer (excluding U.S. Treasury securities), by
varying maturities, and by investing a portion of the portfolio in external investment pools or
money market funds to ensure that appropriate liquidity is maintained in order to meet ongoing
obligations. The District further limits certificates of deposit to 30% of its portfolio. State law limits
investment in money market funds to 20% of the total portfolio, and investments in any one fund
to 10%. At June 30, 2025, (other than U.S. Treasury obligations, mutual funds, and external

investment funds) the following investments represented more than 5% of the District’s
investment portfolio.

Investment in VCMWD AD 2012-1 Limited Obligation Bonds $ 3,625,000
Asset Backed Securities - CAMP Term Fund 5,235,034
Federal Home Loan Banks 4,708,255

35



VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Note 2 - Cash and Investments: (Continued)

(c) Credit Risk

The District’s ordinances subject management of the investment portfolio to the “prudent investor”
standard, which states that “Investments shall be made with judgment and care, under
circumstances then prevailing, which persons of prudence, discretion and intelligence exercise in
the management of their own affairs, not for speculation, but for investment, considering the
probable safety of their capital as well as the probable income to be derived.” Certificates of
deposit must be fully insured and have a rating of satisfactory or better. As of June 30, 2025 the
District’s investments were rated by Standard & Poor’s and by Moody’s Investors Service as
follows:
Standard & Poor’s Moody’s

Money Market Funds AAAmM Aaa
California Local Agency Investment Fund Not rated Not rated
San Diego County Treasurer’s Investment Pool AAA Not rated
Investment in VCMWD AD 2012-1 Limited Obligation Not rated Not rated
California Asset Management Program AAA Aaa
Asset Back Securities — CAMP Term Fund AAA Aaa
U.S. Government Agencies Securities AAA Aal
U.S. Treasury Notes & Bonds Exempt Exempt
U.S. Obligations AAA Aal
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit Not rated Not rated

(d) Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the District will
not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession
of an outside party. To eliminate custodial credit risk, the District’s ordinances require that all
demand deposits be entirely insured or collateralized and that all investment securities be in the
name of the District and held by an insured depository. At June 30, 2025 the District held no
deposits or investments that were exposed to custodial credit risk.

(e) Interest Rate Risk

The District’s ordinances state that the District will structure the investment portfolio so that
securities mature to meet cash requirements for ongoing operations, thereby avoiding the need
to sell securities on the open market prior to maturity. The District cannot invest in any security
that could result in zero interest accrual if held to maturity. Maturities are limited to five years
unless the Board of Directors has granted specific express authority to purchase the investment.

36



VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Note 2 - Cash and Investments: (Continued

(e) Interest Rate Risk (continued)

Investment Maturities (In Years)

Less Than 1-3 3-5 More Than
Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years
Investments:

Money Market Funds $ 784,909 $ 784,909 $ - $ - $ -
California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 7,446,816 7,446,816 - - -
San Diego County Investment Pool 2,793,939 2,793,939 - - -
United States Government Agencies Securities 11,007,143 961,965 2,931,137 7,114,041 -
United States Treasury Obligations 978,517 978,517 - - -
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 2,266,274 991,781 1,274,493 - -
California Asset Management Program (CAMP) 10,762,456 10,762,456 - - -
Asset Backed Securities - CAMP Term Fund 5,235,034 5,235,034 - - -
Investment in VCMWD AD 2012-1 Limited Obligation Bond 3,625,000 225,000 705,000 495,000 2,200,000

Total Investments $ 44,900,088 $30,180,417 $4,910,630 $7,609,041 $2,200,000

(f) Investment in State Investment Pool

The District is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated
by the California Government Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California.
The fair value of the District’s investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial
statements at amounts based upon the District’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF
for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance
available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are
recorded on an amortized cost basis.

(g) Investment in San Diego County Pooled Investment Fund

The District is a voluntary participant in the San Diego County Pooled Investment Fund (SDCPIF)
is a pooled investment fund program governed by the County of San Diego Board of Supervisors
and administered by the County of San Diego Treasurer and Tax Collector. Investments in SDCPIF
are highly liquid as deposits and withdrawals can be made at any time without penalty. SDCPIF
does not impose a maximum investment limit.

(h) Investment in California Asset Management Program (CAMP)

The District is a voluntary participant in the California Asset Management Program (CAMP) that is
regulated by the California Government Code. The fair value of the District’s investment in this
pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at amounts based upon the District’s
pro rata share of the fair value provided by CAMP for the entire CAMP portfolio (in relation to the
amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting
records maintained by CAMP, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis.

37



VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Note 2 - Cash and Investments: (Continued)

(i) Fair Value Measurements

The District categorizes its fair value measurement within the fair value hierarchy established by
generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the relative inputs used to
measure the fair value of the investments. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1) and the lowest priority
to unobservable inputs (Level 3).

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described as follows:

Level 1: Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets
or liabilities in active markets that the District has the ability to access.

Level 2: Inputs to the valuation methodology include:
e Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;
e Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets;
e Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability; and
e Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market
data by correlation or other means.

Level 3: Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value
measurement. Unobservable inputs reflect the District’'s own assumptions about the
inputs market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability (including
assumptions about risk). Unobservable inputs are developed based on the best
information available in the circumstances and may include the District’'s own data.

The asset or liability’s level within the hierarchy is based on the lowest level of input that is
significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used need to maximize the use of
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.

The determination of what constitutes as observable requires judgment by the District’s
management. District management considers observable data to be that market data, which is
readily available, regularly distributed or updated, reliable, and verifiable, not proprietary, and
provided by multiple independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant market.

The categorization of an investment or liability within the hierarchy is based upon the relative

observability of the inputs to its fair value measurement and does not necessarily correspond to
District management’s perceived risk of that investment or liability.

38



Note 2 - Cash and Investments:

VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Continued

(i) Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

Fair value of assets measured on a recurring basis at June 30, 2025 are as follows:

Quoted Observable Unobservable

Prices Inputs Inputs

Investment Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
United States Government Agencies Securities $11,007,143 - $11,007,143 $ -
United States Treasury Obligations 978,517 978,517 - -
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 2,266,274 2,266,274 - -
Asset Backed Securities - CAMP Term Fund 5,235,034 - 5,235,034 -
Investment in VCMWD AD 2012-1 Limited Obligation Bonds 3,625,000 - 3,625,000 -
Total Investments at Fair Value $23,111,968 $ 3,244,791 $19,867,177 $ -

Note 3 - Restricted Assets:

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District’s policy to use
restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as necessary.

Note 4 - Capital Assets:

Capital assets consist of the following at June 30, 2025:

Business-type Activity:

Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated:
Land and Annex Charges
Construction in progress

Capital Assets Being Depreciated:
Pumping plants, sewer plants,
transmission and distribution system
Right to use asset / SBITA
General plant

Less Accumulated Depreciation:
Pumping plants, sewer plants,
transmission and distribution system
Right to use asset / SBITA
General Plant

Net Capital Assets Being Depreciated
Net Capital Assets

Balance at Balance at
June 30, 2024 Additions Deletions June 30, 2025
$ 7,967,130 $ - 3 - $ 7,967,130

6,498,617 3,511,337 (6,229,505) 3,780,449
14,465,747 3,511,337 (6,229,505) 11,747,579
197,231,963 10,902,609 (424,314) 207,710,258
185,882 - - 185,882
18,353,186 454,336 (51,417) 18,756,105
215,771,031 11,356,945 (475,731) 226,652,245
94,947,650 4,822,994 (379,800) 99,390,844
97,647 43,689 - 141,336
15,868,629 449,219 (51,417) 16,266,431
110,913,926 5,315,902 (431,217) 115,798,611
104,857,105 6,041,043 (44,514) 110,853,634

$ 119,322,852

$ 9,552,380

$ (6,274,019)

$122,601,213

Depreciation totaled $5,315,902 for the year ended June 30, 2025.

39



VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Note 5 - Long Term Liabilities:

Long Term debt consist of the following at June 30, 2025:

Balance at Balance at

Current

June 30, 2024 Additions Deletions June 30, 2025 Portion

Business-type Activity:

Installment sales agreements $19,849,405 $ 7,963,750 $(1,342,308) 426,470,847 $ 1,583,151
Lease payable / SBITA 91,526 - (45,076) 46,450 45,513
Compensated absences* 2,711,566 24,673 - 2,736,239 1,086,239

Total Long Term Liabilities $22,652,497 $ 7,988,423 $(1,387,384) $29,253,536 $ 2,714,903

* Compensated absences additions/liabilities are shown net per implementation of GASB No. 101.

Installment Sales Agreements

State of California, Water Resources Control Board - The District entered into a
contract with the State of California, Water Resources Control Board, for a loan in
an amount up to $17,393,705 for the expansion of the Woods Valley Ranch
Reclamation Facility. The loan accrues interest at 2.2% with annual payments of
principal and interest in the amount of $1,084,260 beginning in December 2018.
The loan matures December 15, 2036. The loan is secured by a lien and pledge of
the assessments, assessment fund, enterprise funds, net revenues, and any
reserve fund specified in the installment sale agreement. Interest payable totaled
$134,495 at June 30, 2025.

State of California, Water Resources Control Board - The District entered into a
contract with the State of California, Water Resources Control Board, for a loan in
an amount up to $4,752,616 for the expansion of the Woods Valley Ranch
Reclamation Facility. The loan accrues interest at 2.2% with annual payments of
principal and interest in the amount of $294,679 beginning in October 2017. The
loan matures October 20, 2036. The loan is secured by a lien and pledge of the
assessments, assessment fund, enterprise funds, net revenues, and any reserve
fund specified in the installment sale agreement. Interest payable totaled $46,943
at June 30, 2025.

State of California, Water Resources Control Board - The District entered into a
contract with the State of California, Water Resources Control Board, for a loan in
an amount up to $3,715,572 for the Cool Valley Reservoir Cover/Liner
Replacement. The loan accrues interest at 1.6% with semi-annual payments of
principal and interest in the amount of $110,211 beginning in January 2020. The
loan matures July 1, 2037. The loan is secured by a lien and pledge of the
assessments, assessment fund, enterprise funds, net revenues, and any reserve
fund specified in the installment sale agreement.

40

$ 11,326,834

3,078,396

2,397,943



VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Note 5 - Long Term Liabilities: (Continued)

Installment Sales Agreements (Continued)

State of California, Water Resources Control Board - The District entered into a
contract with the State of California, Water Resources Control Board, for a loan in
an amount up to $2,626,653 for the expansion of the Woods Valley Ranch
Reclamation Facility. The loan accrues interest at 2.2% with annual payments of
principal and interest in the amount of $163,449 beginning in August 2018. The
loan matures August 15, 2036. The loan is secured by a lien and pledge of the
assessments, assessment fund, enterprise funds, net revenues, and any reserve
fund specified in the installment sale agreement. Interest payable totaled $32,762
at June 30, 2025.

State of California, Water Resources Control Board - The District entered into a
contract with the State of California, Water Resources Control Board, for a loan in
an amount up to $7,963,750 for the 2020 Pipeline Replacement Project. The loan
accrues interest at 1.2% with annual payments of principal and interest in the
amount of $214,200 beginning in November 2025. The loan matures November
2054. The loan is secured by a lien and pledge of the assessments, assessment
fund, enterprise funds, net revenues, and any reserve fund specified in the
installment sale agreement.

Total Installment Sales Agreements

Lease Payable

The District has one radio communication site lease payable with a lease term of
five years. The District is required to make monthly payments ranging from $867
to $938, with a discount rate of 2.0%. As of June 30, 2025, the value of the lease
payable is $12,041.

Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements
The District has one SBITA lease payable with a lease term of five years. The
District is required to make annual payments ranging from $31,439 to $34,410,

with an interest rate of 2.37%. As of June 30, 2025, the value of the lease payable
is $34,4009.

Total Lease Payable and SBITA:

41

1,703,925

7,963,750

$ 26,470,847

$ 12,041

34,409

$ 46,450



VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Note 5 - Long Term Liabilities: (Continued

Debt service requirements on the long-term debt are as follows:

Year
Ended Installment Sales Agreements Lease Payable / SBITA
June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Total
2026 $ 1,583,151 $ 484,930 $ 45,513 $ 1,020 $ 2,114,614
2027 1,624,592 453,161 937 - 2,078,690
2028 1,656,983 420,688 - - 2,077,671
2029 1,690,042 387,646 - - 2,077,688
2030 1,723,783 353,872 - - 2,077,655
2031-2035 9,160,483 1,237,837 - - 10,398,320
2036-2040 4,695,116 398,697 - - 5,093,813
2041-2045 1,360,255 227,945 - - 1,588,200
2046-2050 1,443,853 144,347 - - 1,588,200
2051-2054 1,532,589 55,612 1,588,201

$26,470,847 _ $4,164,735 $ 46,450 3 1,020 $30,683,052

Note 6 - Special Assessment Bonds:

AD 2012-1

On July 31, 2018, Valley Center Municipal Water District Assessment District No. 2012-1 (AD 2012-
1) issued $4,035,000 of limited obligation improvement bonds.

On March 21, 2022 VCMWD AD 2012-1 issued another $700,000 of limited obligation improvement
bonds pursuant to the provisions of the Municipal Improvement Act of 1913 and the Improvement
Bond Act of 1915. Under the Acts, the District is not obligated to repay the AD 2012-1 bonds and
the District does not intend in any manner to assume responsibility for the repayment of such debt.
The bond proceeds were used to establish reserve funds, pay bond issuance costs, and fund public
improvements consisting of the North Village Collection System and a portion of the Orchard Run Lift
Station within and for AD 2012-1. AD 2012-1 bonds payable totaled $3,625,000 at June 30, 2025.

The bonds and interest are paid from annual special assessments on property within AD 2012-1. The
annual assessments are billed to and collected from the AD 2012-1 property owners, along with other
property taxes and assessments, and remitted to the District. The District remits the annual
assessments as well as any prepaid assessments received from property owners to the bondholder.

CFD 2020-1

On December 1, 2024, Community Facilities District No. 2020-1 (CFD 2020-1) issued $5,355,000 of
special tax bonds.

On December 16, 2019, the Board of Directors of the District adopted Resolution No. 2019-35, as
amended by Resolution No. 2020-04 to form the District under the Mello-Roos Community Facilities
Act of 1982, to levy a special tax and to incur bonded indebtedness for the purpose of financing the
acquisition or construction of certain water and wastewater system facilities. The Series 2024 bonds
payable net of related bond discount totaled $5,274,586 at June 30, 2025.

42



VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Note 6 - Special Assessment Bonds: (Continued)

The bonds and interest are paid from special taxes on property within the boundaries of the District.
The annual special taxes are billed to and collected from District property owners and remitted to
the District. The District remits the special taxes received from the property owners to the
bondholder.

Note 7 - Unrestricted Net Position:

Unrestricted net position has been designated by the Board of Directors for the following purposes at
June 30, 2025:

Capital improvements $23,502,399
Operating reserve 8,471,731
Debt service 2,074,651
Wastewater capital replacement reserves 3,027,828
Net pension liability (22,195,433)
Net OPEB liability (538,815)
Unrestricted Net Position $14,342,361

Note 8 - Defined Benefit Pension Plan:

(a) General Information About the Pension Plans

Plan Description - All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate
in the Miscellaneous Plan of the Valley Center Municipal Water District, (The Plans) a cost-sharing
multiple employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the California Public Employees’
Retirement System (CalPERS). Benefit provisions under the Plans are established by State statute
and Local Government resolution. CalPERS issues publicly available reports that include a full
description of the pension plan regarding benefit provisions, assumptions and membership
information that can be found on the CalPERS website. The Plan consists of the Miscellaneous Plan
and the Miscellaneous PEPRA Plan.

Benefits Provided - CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of
living adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and
beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full-time
employment. Miscellaneous Plan members with five years of service are eligible to retire at age
50 with statutorily reduced benefits.

PEPRA Miscellaneous members with five years of service are eligible to retire at age 52 with
statutorily reduced benefits. All members are eligible for non-duty disability retirement benefits
after five years of service. The death benefit is the basic death benefit. The cost-of-living
adjustments for each plan are applied as specified by the Public Employees Retirement law per
contract.

43



VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Note 8 - Defined Benefit Pension Plan: (Continued

(a) General Information About the Pension Plans (Continued)

The Plan’s provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2025, are summarized as follows:

Miscellaneous

Prior to On or After

January 1, 2013 January 1, 2013
Benefit formula 2.7% @ 55 2% @ 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years’ service 5 years’ service
Benefit payments Monthly for life Monthly for life
Minimum retirement age 50 52
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible
compensation 2.0% to 2.7% 1.0% to 2.5%
Required employee contribution rates 8.00% 8.00%
Required employer contribution rates 16.31% 7.94%

In addition to the contribution rates above, the District was also required to make payments of
$2,611,910 toward its unfunded actuarial liability during the year ended June 30, 2025.

The Miscellaneous Plan is closed to new members that are not already CalPERS eligible
participants.

Contribution Description - Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law
(PERL) requires that the employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an
annual basis by the actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the
rate. The total plan contributions are determined through the CalPERS annual actuarial process.
The Plan’s actuarially determined rate is based on the estimated amount necessary to pay the
Plan’s allocated share of the risk pool’s costs of benefits earned by employees during the year and
any unfunded accrued liability. The employer is required to contribute the difference between the
actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees.

(b) Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions

The District reported the following net pension liability for its proportionate share of net position
liability of the risk pool at June 30, 2025:

Total Pension Fiduciary Net Net Pension
Liability Position Liability
(a) (b) (c) = (a) - (b)
Balance at: 6/30/2024 ¢ 78,965,919 $ 50,637,066 $ 28,328,853
Balance at: 6/30/2025 83,292,625 55,401,412 27,891,213
Net Changes $ 4,326,706 $ 4,764,346 $ (437,640)

44



VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Note 8 - Defined Benefit Pension Plan: (Continued

(b) Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

Related to Pensions (Continued)

The District’s net pension liability for the risk pool is measured as the proportionate share of the
risk pool’s net pension liability. GASB 68 indicates that to the extent different contribution rates
are assessed based on separate relationships that constitute the collective net pension liability,
the determination of the employer’s proportionate share of the collective net pension liability
should be made in a manner that reflects those relationships. The allocation method used by
CalPERS to determine each employer’s proportionate share reflects those relationships through
the employer rate plans they sponsor within the respective risk pools. An actuarial measurement
of the employer’s rate plan liability and asset-related information are used where available, and
proportional allocations of individual employer rate plan amounts as of the valuation date are used
where not available.

The District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability as of June 30, 2023, the valuation
date, was calculated as follows:

= In determining an employer’s proportionate share, the employer rate plans included in the
Plan were assigned to the miscellaneous risk pool. Estimates of the total pension liability
and the fiduciary net position were first determined as of the valuation date, June 30, 2023.

« Each employer rate plan’s fiduciary net position was subtracted from its total pension
liability to obtain its net pension liability as of the valuation date. The District’s
proportionate share percentage at the valuation date was calculated by dividing the
District’s net pension liability for each of its employer rate plans by the net pension liability
of the risk pool as of the valuation date.

Each risk pool’s total pension liability was computed at the measurement date, June 30, 2024, by
applying standard actuarial roll-forward methods to the total pension liability amounts as of the
valuation date. The fiduciary net position for the risk pool at the measurement date was determined
by CalPERS’ Financial Office. The net pension liability for the risk pool at June 30, 2024, was computed
by subtracting the respective risk pool’s fiduciary net position from its total pension liability.

The District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability as of June 30, 2024, the measurement
date, was calculated as follows:

= Theindividual employer risk pool’s proportionate share percentage of the total pension liability
and fiduciary net position as of June 30, 2024, was calculated by applying the District’s
proportionate share percentage as of the valuation date (described above) to the total pension
liability and fiduciary net position as of June 30, 2024, to obtain the total pension liability and
fiduciary net position as of June 30, 2024. The fiduciary net position was then subtracted from
total pension liability to obtain the net pension liability as of the measurement date.

45



VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Note 8 - Defined Benefit Pension Plan: (Continued

(b) Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

Related to Pensions (Continued)

The District’s proportionate share percentage of the net pension liability as of June 30, 2023 and
June 30, 2024, was as follows:

Miscellaneous

Risk Pool
Proportion at measurement date - June 30, 2023 0.56653%
Proportion at measurement date -June 30, 2024 0.57667%
Change - Increase (Decrease) 0.01014%

For the year ended June 30, 2025, the District recognized pension credit of ($1,032,043). The
District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions from the following sources at June 30, 2025:

Deferred Outflows Deferred
Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 1,446,572 $ 56,444
Changes of assumptions 430,028 -
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
. ) 801,705 -
on pension plan investments
Adjustment due to difference in proportions - 1,963,271
Differences between actual and required contributions 1,383,740 -
Contributions after measurement date 3,653,450 -
Total $ 7,715,495 ¢ 2,019,715

The $3,653,450 of pension contributions subsequent to the measurement date but before the end
of the reporting period will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the
subsequent fiscal period rather than the current fiscal period. Other amounts reported as deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized as
expense as follows:

Deferred
Fiscal Year Outflows/(Inflows)
Ended June 30, of Resources

2026 $ 3,481,004
2027 856,741
2028 699,137
2029 658,898
2030 -
Thereafter -
Total $ 5,695,780

46



VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Note 8 - Defined Benefit Pension Plan: (Continued

(c) Amortization of Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources

Under GASB 68, gains and losses related to changes in total pension liability and fiduciary net
position are recognized in pension expense systematically over time.

The first amortized amounts are recognized in pension expense for the year the gain or loss
occurs. The remaining amounts are categorized as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions and are to be recognized in future pension expense.

The amortization period differs depending on the source of the gain or loss:

Net Difference between projected 5-year straight-line amortization
and actual earning on pension
plan investments

All other amounts Straight-line amortization over the expected average
remaining service lifetime (EARSL) of all members that
are provided with benefits (active, inactive, and retired)
as of the beginning of the measurement period.

(d) Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2023 actuarial valuations were determined using the
following actuarial assumptions:

Valuation Date June 30, 2023
Measurement Date June 30, 2024
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal
Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate 6.90%
Inflation 2.30%
Projected Salary Increases Varies by Entry Age and Service
Mortality Rate Table! Derived using CalPERS’ membership data for all funds

Post Retirement Benefit Increase  The lesser of contract COLA up to 2.30% until
Purchasing Power Protection Allowance floor on
applies, 2.30% thereafter.

! The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS-specific data. The probabilities of
mortality are based on the 2021 CalPERS Experience Study and Review of Actuarial Assumptions.
Mortality rates incorporate full generational mortality improvement using 80% of Scale MP 2020
published by the Society of Actuaries. For more details, please refer to the 2021 experience study
report from November 2021 that can be found on the CalPERS website.

47



VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Note 8 - Defined Benefit Pension Plan: (Continued

(e) Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.90%. The projection of cash
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be
made at the current member contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be
made at statutorily required rates, actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the Plan’s
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments
of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments
was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term
and long-term market return expectations. Using historical returns of all the funds’ asset classes,
expected compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the next 20 years using a building-
block approach. The expected rate of return was then adjusted to account for assumed
administrative expenses of 10 Basis points.

The expected real rates of return by asset class are as followed:

Assumed Asset Real Return
Asset Class Allocation Years!?
Global equity - cap-weighted 30.00% 4.54%
Global equity — non-cap-weighted 12.00 3.84
Private Equity 13.00 7.28
Treasury 5.00 0.27
Mortgage-backed Securities 5.00 0.50
Investment Grade Corporates 10.00 1.56
High Yield 5.00 2.27
Emerging market Debt 5.00 2.48
Private Debt 5.00 3.57
Real Assets 15.00 3.21
Leverage (5.00) (0.59)
100.00%

1 An expected inflation of 2.30% used for this period.
2 Figures are based on the 2021 Asset Liability Management study

(f) Subsequent Events

There were no subsequent events that would materially affect the results presented in this
disclosure.

48



VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Note 8 - Defined Benefit Pension Plan: (Continued

(q) Sensitivity of the District’'s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to
Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability of the risk pool
as of the measurement date, calculated using the discount rate, as well as what the District’s
proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate
that is one percentage-point lower or one percentage-point higher than the current rate:

Current
Discount Rate -1% Discount Rate Discount Rate +1%
5.90% 6.90% 7.90%
Net Pension Liability - Miscellaneous $ 39,130,753 $ 27,891,213 $ 18,639,418

Note 9 - Other Postemployment Benefits:

(a) General Information About the OPEB Plan

Plan Description - The District’s Board of Directors adopted the Retiree’s Health Benefits Plan
(Plan) on January 16, 1995, for the benefit of all individuals (excluding members of the Board of
Directors) employed by the District. The Plan is permitted under Government Code Section 53200
et. Seq. The Plan was closed to employees hired after June 30, 2008.

Benefits Provided - The District provides a contribution for continuation of medical coverage for
the eligible retirees and eligible spouses, if elected by the retiree. Retirees may be eligible to
continue dental and vision coverage on a self-pay basis. In order to participate in the plan, an
employee must have at least five years of employment with the District and his or her attained
age plus accrued Benefit Units at termination must equal at least 65. Benefit Units are earned
based upon the hours worked during a plan year including leave during the year of termination.
The District’'s payment percentage applicable to a plan designated by the District (“Designated
Plan”) varies based on the sum of the eligible employee’s age and Benefits Units at termination.
The Designated Plan means the HMO plan offered from time to time by the District or an alternative
similar plan designated at the discretion of the District. An eligible employee may elect to
participate in the Plan under one of three participant options (Full Spousal Benefits, Reduced
Spousal Benefits, and No Spousal Benefits). An election of a participant option is irrevocable once
made. Spouse coverage may continue upon death of the retiree. District Directors are not eligible
to participate in the Plan unless independently eligible as an employee of the District or as a
spouse of an eligible employee.

Employees Covered - As of the June 30, 2024 measurement date, the following current and
former employees were covered by the benefit terms under the OPEB Plan:

Active employees 28
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments 56
84

49



VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Note 9 - Other Postemployment Benefits: (Continued

(a) General Information About the OPEB Plan (Continued)

Contributions - The District has established an irrevocable trust fund through the California
Employers’ Retiree Benefits Trust (CERBT), an agent multiple-employer postemployment
healthcare trust administered by CalPERS. For the period from July 1, 2024 to June 30, 2025, the
District’s cash contributions were $590,628. The employer contributions include retiree benefits
payments inclusive of subsidy not reimbursed from the trust.

Net OPEB Liability - The District’'s net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2024 and the
total OPEB liability used to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation
dated June 30, 2023.

Actuarial Assumptions - The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2023 actuarial valuation was
determined using the following assumptions applied to all periods included in the measurement,
unless otherwise specified.

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal Cost, Level Percent of Pay
Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate 6.40%
Inflation 2.75%
Salary Increases 2.80%
Mortality Rate Derived using CalPERS’ Membership Data for all
funds
Pre-Retirement Turnover Derived using CalPERS’ Membership Data for all
funds
Healthcare Trend Rate Pre-65 rate of 8.00% decreasing 0.25% annually
to 4.50%
Post-65 rate of 6.50% decreasing 0.25% annually
to 4.50%

Medicare Part B rate of 5.50% decreasing 0.25%
annually to 4.50%

Mortality information for active and retired employees was based on SOA Pub-2010 General
Headcount Weighted Mortality Table fully generational using Scale MP-2021. The pre-retirement
turnover information was developed based on the 2021 experience study for the CalPERS pension
plan.

50



VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Note 9 - Other Postemployment Benefits: (Continued

(a) General Information About the OPEB Plan (Continued)

The assumed gross return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a building-block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns,
net of OPEB plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.
These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the
expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding
expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for
each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term

Target Expected Real

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return!
Global Equity 49.0% N/A
Global Debt Securities 23.0% N/A
Inflation Assets 5.0% N/A
Commodities 3.0% N/A
REIT’s 20.0% N/A
Total 100.0% N/A

Long-term expected rate of return is 6.40%

! Consistent with the information provided by CERBT, L/T Expected Real ROR is not provided by
asset class from CERBT and therefore shown as N/A here.

(b) Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 6.40%. The projection of cash flows
used to determine the discount rate assumed that the District will continue to fund the actuarial
determined contribution each year. Based on those assumptions, the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net
position was projected to be available to make all projected OPEB payments for current active and
inactive employees and beneficiaries. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return of OPEB
plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total
OPEB liability.

51



VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Note 9 - Other Postemployment Benefits: (Continued

(c) Changes in the OPEB Liability

The changes in the net OPEB liability for the OPEB Plan are as follows:

Increase (Decrease)
Total OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net OPEB

Liability Net Position Liability

s b (©) = (a) -

(a) (b) b)
Balance, Beginning of Year $ 9,750,714 $ 8,196,878 $ 1,553,836
Service cost 152,035 - 152,035
Interest expense 577,198 - 577,198
Benefit payments (573,935) (573,935) -
Changes in assumptions (281,375) - (281,375)
Employer contributions - 249,152 (249,152)
Differences petween expected and (128,299) ) (128,299)
actual experience
Net investment income - 899,701 (899,701)
Administrative expense - (2,672) 2,672
Balance, End of Year $ 9,496,338 $ 8,769,124 $ 727,214

d) Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the District’s net OPEB
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower or
one percentage-point higher than the current discount rate:

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
5.40% 6.40% 7.40%
Net OPEB liability (asset) $ 1,824,451 $ 727,214 % (195,759)

52



VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Note 9 - Other Postemployment Benefits: (Continued

(e) Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the District’s net OPEB
liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are one percentage
point lower or one percentage point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rate:

Current Healthcare

1% Decrease Cost Trend Rates 1% Increase
(7.00% Decreasing (8.00% Decreasing (9.00% Decreasing
to 3.50%) to 4.50%) to 5.50%)
Net OPEB liability (asset) $ (357,625) $ 727,214 $ 2,037,574

(f) OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position

The California Public Employees’ Retirement System’s California Employers’ Retirement Benefit
Trust (CERBT) issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and
required supplementary information. That report may be obtained from the California Public
Employees’ Retirement System, CERBT, Post Office Box 942703, Sacramento, California 94429-
2703.

(g) OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to OPEB

For the year ended June 30, 2025, the District recognized OPEB expense of $174,927. The District
reported deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources at
June 30, 2025:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 476,341 $ 1,116,537
Changes in assumptions 404,114 261,551
Net difference between projected and actual earnings in
. 95,404 -
OPEB plan investments
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 590,628 -
Total $ 1,566,487 ¢ 1,378,088

53



VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Note 9 - Other Postemployment Benefits: (Continued

(g) OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of

Resources Related to OPEB (Continued)

The $590,628 of OPEB contributions subsequent to the measurement date but before the end of
the District’s reporting period will be recognized as a reduction of the net OPEB liability in the
subsequent fiscal period rather than the current fiscal period. Other amounts reported as deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized as
expense as follows:

Deferred

Fiscal Year End Outflows/(Inflows)

June 30, of Resources
2026 $ (114,223)
2027 130,571
2028 (335,064)
2029 (83,513)
2030 -
Thereafter -
Total $ (402,229)

(h) Defined Contribution Plan

Employees hired on or after July 1, 2008, participate in a defined contribution plan, Retiree Welfare
Benefits Plan. The District administers the plan through an agreement with Mission Square
Retirement.

The plan was established by the District’s Board of Directors pursuant to Internal Revenue Code
Section 115 and may be amended by the Board from time to time.

Employees contribute 1.15% of their annual covered payroll to the plan. The District contribution
is 1.15% of annual covered payroll plus $30 per participant. The District has no payment
obligation once the employee separates from the District. During the year ended June 30, 2025,
District contributions were $50,508.

54



VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Note 10 - Risk Management:

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.

The District is a member of the Association of California Water Agencies Joint Powers Insurance
Authority (JPIA). The JPIA is a risk-pooling self-insurance authority, created under provisions of
California Government Code Sections 6500 et. seq. The purpose of the JPIA is to arrange and
administer programs of insurance for the pooling of self-insured losses and to purchase excess
insurance coverage from commercial insurance carriers to reduce its exposure to large losses.

The District pays annual premiums for its liability (auto, general, and public officials), property loss,
workers’ compensation, and fidelity bond coverage. They are subject to retrospective adjustments
based on claims experience. The nature and amounts of these adjustments cannot be estimated and
are charged or credited to expense as invoiced. The District’s insurance expense for the year ended
June 30, 2025 was $317,402. There were no instances in the past three years where a settlement
exceeded the District’s coverage.

Note 11 — Lease Receivable:

The District has entered into 11 cell site leases with lease terms ranging from one year to 25 years.
The lessees are required to make monthly payments ranging from $913 to $4,597 and have discount
rates ranging from 2.00% to 3.00%. As of June 30, 2025, the lease receivable is $6,537,118 and
deferred inflows of resources is $5,985,084. The District recognized $412,972 of lease revenue
during the fiscal year.

Note 12 - Economic Dependency:
All water sold by the District is purchased from the San Diego County Water Authority. Almost all

electricity and natural gas used by the District for pumping and operations is purchased from San
Diego Gas and Electric.

Note 13 - Commitments and Contingencies:

(a) Contracts

The District has entered into various contracts for the purchase of material, and construction of
the capital assets. The amounts contracted for are based on the contractors’ estimated cost of
construction. At June 30, 2025, the total unpaid amount on these contracts is approximately
$3,115,435 for water operations and $107,034 for wastewater operations.

(b) Litigation
There are pending lawsuits in which the District is involved. The District’s management and legal
counsel estimate that the potential claims against the District, not covered by insurance, if

unfavorable decisions are rendered in these pending legal actions, would not materially affect the
operations or financial condition of the District.

55



VCMWD Financial Section

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

56



Required
Supplementary
Information



VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF THE PLAN'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Measurement Date
6/30/2024 6/30/2023 6/30/2022 6/30/2021 6/30/2020

Proportion of the collective net pension liability 0.5767% 0.5665% 0.5802% 0.9778% 0.5880%

Proportionate share of the collective net pension $ 27,891,213 $ 28,328,853 $ 27,148,513 $ 18,565,726 $ 24,804,319

liability
Covered payroll $ 7,790,598 ¢ 7,329,072 $ 7,018,725 $ 7,042,969 $ 6,784,178
Proportionate share of the collective net pension 358.01% 386.53% 386.80% 263.61% 365.62%
liability as percentaae of covered pavroll
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the 66.51% 64.13% 63.83% 73.14% 62.00%

total pension liability

Notes to Schedule:

Benefit Changes:

There were no changes to benefit terms that applied to all members of the Public Agency Pool. However, individual employers in the
Plan may have provided a benefit improvement to their employees such as Golden Handshakes, service purchases, and other prior
service costs. Additionally, the figures above do not include any liability impact that occurred after the June 30, 2023 valuation date,
unless the liability impact is deemed to be material to the Public Agency Pool.

Changes in Assumptions:

Changes of Assumptions: There were no assumption changes in 2023 or 2024. Effective with the June 30, 2021 valuation date (June
30, 2022 measurement date), the accounting discount rate was reduced from 7.90% to 6.90%. In determining the long-term expected
rate of return, CalPERS took into account long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. In
addition, demographic assumptions and the price inflation assumption were changed in accordance with the 2021 CalPERS Experience
Study and Review of Actuarial Assumptions. The accounting discount rate was 7.15% for measurement dates June 30, 2017 through
June 30, 2021, and 7.65% for measurement dates June 30, 2015 through June 30, 2016.

58



VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF THE PLAN'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Measurement Date
6/30/2019 6/30/2018 6/30/2017 6/30/2016 6/30/2015

Proportion of the collective net pension liability 0.5915% 0.6019% 0.5859% 0.6024% 0.0687%

Proportionate share of the collective net pension $ 23,686,880 $ 22,685,118 $ 23,136,342 $20,928,033 § 18,860,732

liability

Covered payroll $ 6,180,656 $ 5,894,187 $ 5,940,494 $ 5,916,822 $ 5,465,453
Proportionate share of the collective net pension 383.25% 384.87% 389.47% 353.70% 345.09%
liability as percentaae of covered pavroll

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the 61.49% 61.51% 59.30% 58.82% 60.99%

total pension liability

Notes to Schedule:

Benefit Changes:

There were no changes to benefit terms that applied to all members of the Public Agency Pool. However, individual employers in the
Plan may have provided a benefit improvement to their employees such as Golden Handshakes, service purchases, and other prior
service costs. Additionally, the figures above do not include any liability impact that occurred after the June 30, 2023 valuation date,
unless the liability impact is deemed to be material to the Public Agency Pool.

Changes in Assumptions:

Changes of Assumptions: There were no assumption changes in 2023 or 2024. Effective with the June 30, 2021 valuation date (June 30,
2022 measurement date), the accounting discount rate was reduced from 7.90% to 6.90%. In determining the long-term expected rate
of return, CalPERS took into account long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. In addition,
demographic assumptions and the price inflation assumption were changed in accordance with the 2021 CalPERS Experience Study and
Review of Actuarial Assumptions. The accounting discount rate was 7.15% for measurement dates June 30, 2017 through June 30, 2021,
and 7.65% for measurement dates June 30, 2015 through June 30, 2016.

59



VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE PENSION PLAN
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year

6/30/2025 6/30/2024 6/30/2023 6/30/2022 6/30/2021

Actuarially determined contribution $ 3,653,450 $ 3,231,162 $ 3,120,587 $ 2,907,655 $ 2,736,175

Contributions in relation to the

Actuarially Determined Contribution (3,653,450) (3,231,162) (3,120,587) (2,907,655) (2,736,775)
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - 3 - 3 - 3 - $ (600)
Covered payroll $ 8,019,556 $ 7,790,598 $ 7,329,072 ¢$ 7,018,725 $ 7,042,969
Contributions as a percentage of

covered payroll 45.56% 41.48% 42.58% 41.43% 38.86%

Notes to Schedule:
Fiscal Year End: 06/30/25
Valuation Date: 06/30/22

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Actuarial Cost Method

Amortization Method Varies by date established and source. May be level dollar
or level percent of pay and may include direct rate smoothing.

Asset Valuation Method Fair value of assets

Discount Rate 6.90% Net of Pension Plan Investment and Administrative
Expenses; includes Inflation.

Inflation 2.30%

Salary Increases Varies by category, entry age, and duration of service.

Payroll Growth 2.80%

60



VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE PENSION PLAN
Last Ten Fiscal Years

6/30/2020 6/30/2019 6/30/2018 6/30/2017 6/30/2016

Actuarially determined contribution $ 2,505,591 ¢$ 2,250,183 ¢$ 2,061,087 $ 1,945,730 $ 1,806,422

Contributions in relation to the

Actuarially Determined Contribution (2,505,452) (2,250,183) (2,061,087) (1,945,730) (1,806,422)
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ 139 $ - 5 - 3 - 3 -
Covered payroll $ 6,784,178 $ 6,180,656 $ 5,894,187 ¢$ 5,940,494 $ 5,916,822
Contributions as a percentage of

covered payroll 36.93% 36.41% 34.97% 32.75% 30.53%

Notes to Schedule:
Fiscal Year End: 06/30/25
Valuation Date: 06/30/22

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Actuarial Cost Method

Amortization Method Varies by date established and source. May be level dollar
or level percent of pay and may include direct rate smoothing.

Asset Valuation Method Fair value of assets

Discount Rate 6.90% Net of Pension Plan Investment and Administrative
Expenses; includes Inflation.

Inflation 2.30%

Salary Increases Varies by category, entry age, and duration of service.

Payroll Growth 2.80%

61



Total OPEB liability

Service cost

Interest on the total OPEB liability

Actual and expected experience difference

Changes in assumptions

Changes in benefit terms

Benefit payments
Net change in total OPEB liability
Total OPEB liability - beginning
Total OPEB liability - ending (a)

Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Contribution - employer

Net investment income

Benefit payments

Administrative expense
Net change in plan fiduciary net position
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b)

Net OPEB (asset) liability - ending (a)-(b)

Last Ten Fiscal Years*

VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE NET OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

Measurement Date

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB

liability

Covered-employee payroll**

Net OPEB (asset) liability as a percentage of covered-

employee payroll
Notes to Schedule:

Changes in assumptions:

2024 2023 2022 2021
152,035 $ 188,486 $ 164,132 $ 215,323
577,198 504,976 577,307 605,221
(128,299) 952,683  (1,092,716) (418,269)
(281,375) 113,897 694,331 (117,880)
(573,935) (467,408) (414,491) (364,965)
(254,376) 1,292,634 (71,437) (80,570)
9,750,714 _ 8,458,080 _ 8,529,517 _ 8,610,087
$ 9,496,338 $ 9,750,714 $ 8,458,080 $ 8,529,517
249,152 $ 61,549 $ 935,370 $ 656,994
899,701 491,239  (1,163,850) 1,649,671
(573,935) - - (364,965)
(2,672) (2,220) (2,097) (4,282)
572,246 550,568 (230,577) 1,937,418
8,196,878 _ 7,646,310 _ 7,876,887 _ 5,939,469

$ 8,769,124 $ 8,196,878 $ 7,646,310 $ 7,876,887

$ 727,214 $ 1,553,836 $ 811,770 $ 652,630

92.34% 84.06% 90.40% 92.35%
$ 3,997,485 $ 4,312,596 $ 3,947,784 $ 4,197,174
18.19% 36.03% 20.56% 15.55%

The discount rate of 6.40% was used in the valuation. The interest rate used in the prior valuation was 6.00% per year net

of expenses.

*Historical information is required only for measurement periods for which GASB 75 is applicable. Future years' information

will be displayed up to 10 years as information becomes available.

**The Districts contribution are not determined as a measure of pay and therefore covered-employee payroll has been

disclosed.

62



VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE NET OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
Last Ten Fiscal Years*

Measurement Date

2020 2019 2018 2017
Total OPEB liability
Service cost $ 222,328 ¢$ 180,014 $ 174,771 $ 163,337
Interest on the total OPEB liability 640,904 584,591 555,262 525,499
Actual and expected experience difference (1,031,442) 418,684 - -
Changes in assumptions - (99,117) - -
Changes in benefit terms - - - -
Benefit payments (305,133) (344,067) (288,490) (261,691)
Net change in total OPEB liability (473,343) 740,105 441,543 427,145
Total OPEB liability - beginning 9,083,430 8,343,325 7,901,782 7,474,637
Total OPEB liability - ending (a) $ 8,610,087 $ 9,083,430 $ 8,343,325 $ 7,901,782
Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Contribution - employer $ 643,050 $ 658,700 $ 722,386 $ 690,259
Net investment income 193,466 300,177 323,308 344,077
Benefit payments (305,133) (344,067) (288,490) (261,691)
Administrative expense (4,659) (2,365) (7,520) (1,759)
Net change in plan fiduciary net position 526,724 612,445 749,684 770,886
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 5,412,745 4,800,300 4,050,616 3,279,730
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) $ 5,939,469 $ 5,412,745 $ 4,800,300 $ 4,050,616
Net OPEB (asset) liability - ending (a)-(b) $ 2,670,618 $ 3,670,685 $ 3,543,025 $ 3,851,166
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB
liability 68.98% 59.59% 57.53% 51.26%
Covered-employee payroll** $ 4,664,150 $4,539,319 $5,148,345 $ 5,018,358
Net OPEB (asset) liability as a percentage of covered-
employee payroll 57.26% 80.86% 68.82% 76.74%

Notes to Schedule:

Changes in assumptions:
The discount rate of 6.40% was used in the valuation. The interest rate used in the prior valuation was 6.00% per year net
of expenses.

*Historical information is required only for measurement periods for which GASB 75 is applicable. Future years'
information will be displayed up to 10 years as information becomes available.

**The Districts contribution are not determined as a measure of pay and therefore covered-employee payroll has
been disclosed.

63



VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF OPEB CONTRIBUTIONS
Last Ten Fiscal Years*

Fiscal Year
2025 2024 2023 2022
Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC) $ 446,623 $ 249,152 ¢ 406,778 $ 482,483
Contributions in relation to the ADC (590,628) (573,935) (528,957) (656,994)
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ (144,005) $ (324,783) $ (122,179) $ (174,511)
Covered-employee payroll $ 3,953,809 $ 3,997,485 ¢$ 4,312,596 $ 3,947,784
Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 14.94% 14.36% 12.27% 16.64%

Notes to Schedule:
Actuarial methods and assumptions used to set the actuarially determined contributions for Fiscal Year 2025 were from the

June 30, 2023 actuarial valuation.

Methods and assumptions used to determine contributions:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal

Amortization Method/Period Level percent of payroll over a closed rolling 15-year period

Asset Valuation Method Market Value

Inflation 2.75%

Payroll Growth 2.80% per annum, in aggregate

Investment Rate of Return 6.40%, assuming actuarially determined contributions funded into California
Employers' Retiree Benefit Trust Investment Strategy 2.

Healthcare cost-trend rates Based on recent premium experience, assuming 1%-1% increase due to market
trends then reduced to a rate reflecting medical price inflation.

Retirement Age Tier 1 employees - 2.7% @55
The probabilities of Retirement are based on the 2021 CalPERS Experience Study

Mortality The mortality assumptions are based on the SOA Pub-2010 General Headcount

Weiahted Mortalitv Table fullv aenerational usina Scale MP-2021.

*Historical information is required only for measurement periods for which GASB 75 is applicable. Future years' information will
be displayed up to 10 years as information becomes available.

64



VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF OPEB CONTRIBUTIONS
Last Ten Fiscal Years*

2021 2020 2019 2018
Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC) $ 578,463 $ 572,254 $ 556,404 ¢$ 637,891
Contributions in relation to the ADC (643,050) (658,700) (722,386) (690,259)
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ (64,587) $ (86,446) $ (165,982) $ (52,368)
Covered-employee payroll $ 4,197,174 $ 4,664,150 $ 4,539,319 ¢ 5,148,345
Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 15.32% 14.12% 15.91% 13.41%

Notes to Schedule:
Actuarial methods and assumptions used to set the actuarially determined contributions for Fiscal Year 2025 were from the

June 30, 2024 actuarial valuation.

Methods and assumptions used to determine contributions:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal

Amortization Method/Period Level percent of payroll over a closed rolling 15-year period

Asset Valuation Method Market Value

Inflation 2.75%

Payroll Growth 2.80% per annum, in aggregate

Investment Rate of Return 6.40%, assuming actuarially determined contributions funded into California
Employers' Retiree Benefit Trust Investment Strategy 2.

Healthcare cost-trend rates Based on recent premium experience, assuming 1%-1% increase due to market
trends then reduced to a rate reflecting medical price inflation.

Retirement Age Tier 1 employees - 2.7% @55
The probabilities of Retirement are based on the 2021 CalPERS Experience Study

Mortality The mortality assumptions are based on the SOA Pub-2010 General Headcount

Weiahted Mortalitv Table fullv aenerational usina Scale MP-2021.

*Historical information is required only for measurement periods for which GASB 75 is applicable. Future years'
information will be displayed up to 10 years as information becomes available.

65



VCMWD Required Supplementary Information

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

66



Combining
Statements



Fiduciary Funds

Community Facilities District No. 2020-1

The Community Facilities District No. 2020-1 (CFD 2020-1) was created by the District on May 18,
2020, pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended to provide financing
for the design and construction of certain water and wastewater system facilities necessary to serve
new development within CFD 2020-1. The District’s board sits as the legislative body of CFD 2020-1
which approves the rate and apportionment of a special tax within CFD 2020-1 to fund the facilities.
The District acts solely as the agent in the collection and remittance of the special taxes for the CFD
2020-1 and initiates foreclosure proceedings as required under the bond covenants.

Valley Center Municipal Water District Assessment District

The Valley Center Municipal Water District Assessment District (AD 2012-1) was created by the
District to account for special assessment bonds. The limited obligation bonds and interest are paid
from general special assessments on property within AD 2012-1. The annual assessments are billed
to and collected from the AD 2012-1 property owners, along with other property taxes and
assessments, and remitted to the District. The District remits the annual assessments as well as any
prepaid assessments received from property owners to the bondholder, of which the District is the
sole bondholder.

68



VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2025

ASSETS:

Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable, net
Woods Valley Ranch Phase 1 receivable
Interest receivable
Taxes receivable
Other receivables
Current lease receivable
Inventory
Internal balances
Prepaid expenses and deposits

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Woods Valley Ranch Phase 1 receivable
Investment in VCMWD AD 2012-1
Lease receivable
Nondepreciable capital assets
Depreciable capital assets, net

Total Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:

Deferred outflows related to pensions
Deferred outflows related to OPEB
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

LIABILITIES:

Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Compensated absences
Interest payable
Customer deposits
Long-term liabilities

Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Compensated absences
Long-term liabilities
Net pension liability
Net OPEB Liability

Total Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:

Deferred inflows related to pensions

Deferred inflows related to OPEB

Deferred inflows related to leases
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

NET POSITION:

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for facility expansion
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

Lower Moosa

Woods Valley Ranch

General Wastewater Wastewater Total
$ 10,557,024 $ 1,526,661 $ 13,177,020 $ 25,260,705
14,251,934 - - 14,251,934
7,779,969 - - 7,779,969
- - 176,154 176,154
315,409 - 37,913 353,322
16,083 - 95,533 111,616
140,014 - - 140,014
257,749 - - 257,749
1,324,972 - - 1,324,972
898,929 (1,794,429) 895,500 -
274,257 - - 274,257
35,816,340 (267,768) 14,382,120 49,930,692
- 620,576 - 620,576
- - 1,989,387 1,989,387
3,010,000 - 615,000 3,625,000
6,279,369 - - 6,279,369
7,514,741 861,722 3,371,116 11,747,579
70,198,764 8,260,842 32,394,028 110,853,634
87,002,874 9,743,140 38,369,531 135,115,545
122,819,214 9,475,372 52,751,651 185,046,237
7,715,495 - - 7,715,495
1,566,487 - - 1,566,487
9,281,982 - - 9,281,982
7,222,167 119,974 50,986 7,393,127
344,424 - - 344,424
1,086,239 - - 1,086,239
- 47,998 209,765 257,763
3,633,391 22,700 5,479,766 9,135,857
440,697 - 1,187,967 1,628,664
12,726,918 190,672 6,928,484 19,846,074
1,649,999 - - 1,649,999
9,967,446 - 14,921,188 24,888,634
27,891,213 - - 27,891,213
727,214 - - 727,214
40,235,872 - 14,921,188 55,157,060
52,962,790 190,672 21,849,672 75,003,134
2,019,715 - - 2,019,715
1,378,088 - - 1,378,088
5,985,084 - - 5,985,084
9,382,887 - - 9,382,887
66,200,708 9,122,564 19,655,989 94,979,261
- 620,576 - 620,576
3,554,811 (458,440) 11,245,990 14,342,361
$ 69,755,519 $ 9,284,700 _$ 30,901,979 $ 109,942,198

69



COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Lower Moosa  Woods Valley Ranch

General Wastewater Wastewater Total
Operating Revenues:
Water sales and pumping charges $ 36,482,154 ¢ - $ - $ 36,482,154
Meter service charges 8,903,965 - - 8,903,965
Wastewater charges - 2,279,059 2,457,849 4,736,908
Meter installation fees 363,814 - - 363,814
Other water operating revenues 871,182 386 520,386 1,391,954
Total Operating Revenues 46,621,115 2,279,445 2,978,235 51,878,795
Operating Expenses:
Cost of water sold 30,868,413 - - 30,868,413
Energy and pumping costs 2,684,638 120,279 96,959 2,901,876
Water systems operations 6,845,634 - - 6,845,634
Wastewater collection and treatment - 1,241,546 804,394 2,045,940
Engineering 2,175,297 18,265 375,067 2,568,629
General and administrative 3,930,294 363,319 348,079 4,641,692
Depreciation 3,726,661 373,193 1,216,048 5,315,902
Total Operating Expenses 50,230,937 2,116,602 2,840,547 55,188,086
Operating Income (Loss) (3,609,822) 162,843 137,688 (3,309,291)
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Property taxes and assessments 4,140,486 - 526,769 4,667,255
Investment income (loss) 1,600,504 123,697 479,910 2,204,111
Other nonoperating revenues 412,972 - - 412,972
Interest expense (106,725) (85,157) (364,516) (556,398)
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets (33,918) - - (33,918)
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 6,013,319 38,540 642,163 6,694,022
Income (Loss) Before Contributions 2,403,497 201,383 779,851 3,384,731
Capital Contributions
Capacity Charges 270,624 (5,315) - 265,309
Developer Contributions 3,346,842 - 5,782,190 9,129,032
Total Capital Contributions 3,617,466 (5,315) 5,782,190 9,394,341
Change in Net Position 6,020,963 196,068 6,562,041 12,779,072
Net Position at Beginning of Year 63,734,556 9,088,632 24,339,938 97,163,126
Net Position at End of Year $ 69,755,519 $ 9,284,700 $ 30,901,979 $ 109,942,198

70



VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
CUSTODIAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2025

Assessment Community
District Facilities District
2012-1 2020-1 Total
ASSETS
Cash and Investments $ 916,307 $ 1,359,680 $ 2,275,987
Interest receivable - 2,050 2,050
Total Assets 916,307 1,361,730 2,278,037
NET POSITION
Restricted for the benefit of residents
of the AD - 2012-1 and CFD 2020-1 $ 916,307 $ 1,361,730 $ 2,278,037

71



VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

CUSTODIAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

ADDITIONS:
Property taxes and assessments
Investment income
Other revenue
Total additions
DEDUCTIONS:
Outside professional services
Bond principal
Bond interest
Total deductions
Excess of revenues over expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Proceeds from bonds
Discount on bonds issued

Transfer to project fund
Total other financing sources (uses)

Change in net position
Net Position - Beginning of Year

Net Position - End of year

Assessment Community
District Facilities District
2012-1 2020-1 Total
$ 297,115 $ 362,063 $ 659,178
36,774 39,527 76,301
- 1,691 1,691
333,889 403,281 737,170
- 34,105 34,105
215,000 - 215,000
82,115 48,539 130,654
297,115 90,872 387,987
36,774 312,409 349,183
- 5,355,000 5,355,000
- (80,414) (80,414)
- (4,813,122) (4,813,122)
- 461,464 461,464
36,774 773,873 810,647
879,533 587,857 1,467,390
$ 916,307 $ 1,361,730 $ 2,278,037

72



Statistical Section



STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the Valley Center Municipal Water District’s (the “District”) annual comprehensive
financial report presents detailed information as a context for understanding what the
information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary
information says about the District’s overall financial health.

CONTENTS PAGE

Financial Trends 75

These schedules contain trend information to help the
reader understand how the District’s financial
performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity 77

These schedules contain information to help the reader
access the District’s two most significant local revenue
sources, water sales and property levies.

Debt Capacity 87

These schedules present information to help the reader
access the affordability of the District’s current levels of
outstanding debt and the District’s ability to issue
additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information 89
These schedules offer demographic and economic
indicators to help the reader understand the environment
within which the District’s financial activities take place.

Operating Information 91
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data
to help the reader understand how the information in the

District’s financial report relates to the services the
District provides and the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the annual
comprehensive financial reports for the relevant year.

74



VCMWD Statistical Section

Table |
Net Position by Component (Last Ten Fiscal Years)

Fiscal year ended
2025 2024 2023 2022 2021
Primary government
Net investment in capital assets $ 94,979,261 $ 98,661,084 $ 92,907,867 $ 77,957,363 $ 76,127,791
Restricted for facility expansion 620,576 1,018,814 606,326 3,719,038 2,129,567
Unrestricted 14,342,361 (2,516,772) (2,249,052) 10,046,007 9,632,501
Total primary government net position $109,942,198 $ 97,163,126 $ 91,265,141 $ 91,722,408 $ 87,889,859
Fiscal year ended
2020 (1) 2019 2018 (1) 2017 (1 2016
Primary government
Net investment in capital assets $ 75,005,714 $ 74,019,639 $ 71,684,014 $ 72,382,729 $ 84,494,979
Restricted for facility expansion 1,717,852 1,550,544 1,359,327 1,177,622 1,075,636
Unrestricted 8,730,860 11,333,093 10,718,376 8,073,823 276,747
Total primary government net position $ 85,454,426 $ 86,903,276 $ 83,761,717 $ 81,634,174 $ 85,847,362

(1) As restated (See Table Il, Notes 3-6).

Source: Valley Center Municipal Water District

75



VCMWD Statistical Section

Table Il
Changes in Net Position (Last Ten Fiscal Years)

2025 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

Operating Revenues:

Water sales (" $ 42,505,063 $ 33,874,102 $34,388,425 $39,190,250 $40,125,745 $34,608,677 $34,579,905 $42,445575 $ 36,090,543 § 33,785,302

Pumping charges 2,791,056 1,962,385 1,960,517 2,286,452 2,419,527 2,045,383 2,038,850 2,773,079 2,139,381 1,978,644

Wastewater charges 4,736,908 4,500,955 4,227,215 4,601,540 3,589,915 4,041,954 4,016,703 4,056,779 4,239,359 2,521,787

Meter installation fees 363,814 477,360 984,220 933,816 365,321 320,408 224,666 222,587 196,154 215,995

Other water operating

revenues 1,391,954 674,435 710,954 986,803 2,262,881 453,037 588,436 610,544 645,435 545,347

Total operating revenues $ 51,878,795 § 41,489,237 $42,271,331 $47,998,861 $48,763,389 $41,469,459 $41,448,560 $50,108,564 § 43,310,872 $ 39,047,075

Operating Expenses:

Cost of water sold $ 30,868,413 $ 23,863,733 $24,059,220 $27,742,610 $28,666,422 $25,099,762 $25,048,234 $30,744,890 $ 26,930,842 $ 25,358,738
Energy and pumping

costs 2,901,876 2,921,438 3,239,594 3,081,255 2,848,421 2,636,432 2,457,485 2,888,038 2,631,927 2,733,376
Water systems

operations 6,845,634 6,306,714 6,026,660 6,021,235 5,901,561 5,753,366 5,571,209 5,890,653 5,304,895 5,267,718
Wastewater collection

and treatment 2,045,940 1,840,953 1,918,109 1,770,086 1,588,055 1,521,242 1,458,174 1,333,425 1,283,283 1,121,601
Engineering 2,568,629 2,354,138 2,133,505 2,320,092 2,855,523 2,000,013 1,571,413 1,455,201 1,695,911 1,450,071
General and

administrative 4,641,692 3,925,539 8,884,912 3,657,388 4,719,888 5,470,523 5,246,189 5,677,591 2,527,800 1,944,488
Depreciation 5,315,902 5,131,346 4,707,082 4,483,611 4,312,773 4,231,732 4,135,118 3,402,608 3,306,838 3,525,655

Total operating expenses _$ 55,188,086 § 46,343,861 $50,969,082 $49,076,277 $50,892,643 $46,713,070 $45,487,822 $51,392,406 $ 43,681,496 § 41,401,647

Operating (Loss) $ (3,309,291) $ (4,854,624) $(8,697,751) $ (1,077,416) $ (2,129,254) $ (5,243,611) $ (4,039,262) §$ (1,283,842) $ (370,624) $ (2,354,572)

Nonoperating Revenues and (Expenses):
Property taxes and

assessments $ 4,667,255 $ 4,486,949 $ 4,234,849 § 3,853,473 § 3,740,185 §$ 3,096,661 $ 2,985,886 $ 2,878,959 $ 2,777,382 $ 2,665,133
Investment income (loss) 2,204,111 2,046,267 1,759,216 (754,118) 277,671 866,684 861,130 345,698 169,070 201,138
Other nonoperating

revenues 412,972 397,513 389,991 474,470 360,531 384,328 336,181 325,571 350,924 328,923
Interest expense (556,398) (496,041) (467,225) (489,687) (514,995) (539,660) (557,983) (540,037) (238,935) (47,272)
Gain (loss) on disposal

of capital assets (33,918) 56,480 18,719 10,523 (61,688) 15,074 16,278 123,546 23,747 13,484

Total Nonoperating
Revenues and (Expenses) _$ 6,694,022 $ 6,491,168 $ 5,935,550 §$ 3,094,661 $ 3,801,704 $ 3,823,087 $ 3,641,492 $ 3,133,737 §$ 3,082,188 $ 3,161,406

Income (Loss) Before
Contributions $ 3,384,731 $ 1,636,544 $(2,762,201) $ 2,017,245 $ 1,672,450 $(1,420,524) $ (397,770) $ 1,849,895 $ 2,711,564 $ 806,834

Capital contributions 9,394,341 4,261,441 2,304,934 1,815,304 762,983 872,099 3,539,329 396,898 205,285 1,643,312

Change in Net Position $ 12779072 $ 5897985 $ (457,267) $ 3,832,549 $ 2435433 $ (548,425) $ 3,141,559 $ 2,246,793 $ 2,916,849 $ 2,450,146

Net Position at Beginning
of Year $ 97,163,126 $ 91,265,141 $91,722,408 $87,889,859 $85,454,426 $86,903,276 $83,761,717 $81,634,174 §$ 85,847,362 § 83,397,216

Restatement 4® $ - 8 - 3 - 8 -8 - $ (900,425) $ - $ (119,250) $(7,130,037) $ -

Restated Net Position at
Beginning of Year $ 97,163,126 $ 91,265,141 $91,722,408 $87,889,859 $85,454,426 $86,002,851 $83,761,717 $81,514,924 § 78,717,325 §$ 83,397,216

NET POSITION AT END
OF YEAR $ 109,942,198 $ 97,163,126 $91,265,141 $91,722,408 $87,889,859 $85,454,426 $86,903,276 $83,761,717 §$ 81,634,174 §$ 85,847,362

(1) A detailed schedule of water sales is presented in Table .

(2) Net of loss on termination of projects and disposition of assets.

(3) The Restatement of Net Position in 2020 is due to previously reported construction in progress projects that are not capitalizable pursuant to GASB 51 in the amount of
$544,764 in both the Lower Moosa and Woods Valley Wastewater Funds and the previously reported AD 2012-1 portion of the Tax Assessment Revenue totaling $355,661
received in the Woods Valley Ranch Wastewater Expansion Fund.

(4) The Restatement of Net Position in 2018 of $119,250 is due to a reclassification of contributed capital previously recorded as revenue in the Lower Moosa Wastewater Fund.

(5) The Restatement of Net Position in 2017 is due the requirement per GASB 75 for OPEB Liability in the amount of $3,504,756 and the reclassification of $3,625,281 in
developer deposits to be refunded in the Woods Valley Ranch Wastewater Fund.

Source: Valley Center Municipal Water District

76



VCMWD Statistical Section

Table Il
Water Sales by User Type () (Last Ten Fiscal Years)

Fiscal . : Certified Average
Domestic Commercial : @ .
Year | W Agricultural i 9 | Direct
Ended Value Acre Feet Value Acre Feet Value Acre Feet Value Acre Feet | Rate ©
2025 $21,785,453 5,006.7 $3,635,809 1,145.0( $17,173,802 7,733.0| $42,595,063 13,884.7| $3,068
2024 | $17,483,019 4,175.6| $2,855,731 958.0( $13,335,197 6,359.7| $33,673,945  11,493.3| $2,930

2023 | $17,006,069 4,468.9| $3,042,101 1,136.3| $14,340,254 7,415.3| $34,388,425  13,020.5| $2,641
2022 | $17,947,573 4,893.8| $3,362,725 1,342.3| $17,879,952 9,970.9| $39,190,250  16,207.0( $2,418
2021 | $17,835,007 4,854.2| $3,429,176 1,695.8| $18,861,563 11,132.7| $40,125,745  17,682.7| $2,269
2020 | $14,376,850 4,229.8  $3,333,040 1,567.3| $16,898,786 9,893.8| $34,608,677  15,690.9| $2,206
2019 | $13,446,211 4,379.6] $3,752,336 1,476.3| $17,381,357 10,260.4| $34,579,905 16,116.3| $2,146
2018 | $14,545,576 5,118.4| $4,438,219 1,884.2| $23,461,780 14,495.3| $42,445575  21,497.9| $1,974
2017 | $13,002,142 4,691.3| $4,010,125 1,682.1| $19,078,276 12,865.7| $36,090,543  19,239.1| $1,876
2016 | $12,000,426 4,173.4| $3,362,113 1,517.2| $18,422,763 12,678.8| $33,785,302  18,369.4| $1,839

(1) Water sales include monthly meter charges but exclude pumping charges. Amounts in acre feet are water billed.
(2) Includes only sales under interruptible agricultural water rates.
(3) Calculated average rate, including commodity and monthly meter charges. See Table IX for actual rates.

Source: Valley Center Municipal Water District

Water Sales in Acre Feet

25,000

20,000

15,000

10,000

5,000

0

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

m Agricultural Domestic mCommercial

77



VCMWD Statistical Section

Table IV
Active Water Meters (Last Ten Fiscal Years)

Fiscal All

Year Certified Total Inactive

Ended Domestic Commercial Agricultural Active Meters Total
2025 10,847 381 626 11,854 938 12,792
2024 10,798 382 633 11,813 907 12,720
2023 10,643 380 633 11,656 899 12,555
2022 10,091 380 645 11,116 886 12,002
2021 9,073 351 1,079 10,503 898 11,401
2020 8,891 367 1,051 10,309 903 11,212
2019 8,709 463 1,050 10,222 859 11,081
2018 8,633 459 1,071 10,163 864 11,027
2017 8,556 459 1,071 10,086 821 10,907
2016 8,433 456 1,087 9,976 860 10,836

(1) Includes only meters participating in an interruptible agricultural water rate.

Source: Valley Center Municipal Water District

78



VCMWD

Statistical Section

Table V

Assessed Value of Taxable Property (Last Ten Fiscal Years)

Secured

Fiscal Net Assessed Total

Year Real Personal Assessed Unsecured Assessed Tax
Ended Property Property Exemptions Value Value Value Rate
2025 $6,735,129,012 $25,195 $71,608,440  $6,663,545,767| $231,020,851 $6,894,566,618 0
2024 $6,348,327,677 $24,463 $62,864,487  $6,285,487,653| $225,132,573 $6,510,620,226 0
2023 $5,819,539,737 $23,734 $49,745,335  $5,769,818,136| $202,564,317 $5,972,382,453 0
2022 $5,313,291,879 $23,472 $47,533,219  $5,265,782,132| $44,151,557 $5,309,933,689 0
2021 $5,104,159,878 $24,442 $44,746,043  $5,059,438,277| $44,318,095 $5,103,756,372 0
2020 $4,897,386,842 $24,677 $40,888,444  $4,856,523,075| $27,269,285 $4,883,792,360 0
2019 $4,667,105,535 $25,149 $39,637,005  $4,627,493,679 $26,245,630 $4,653,739,309 0
2018 $4,440,851,377 $25,856 $37,354,411  $4,403,522,822| $26,531,923 $4,430,054,745 0
2017 $4,244,393,695 $651,184 $33,823,178  $4,211,221,701| $23,668,704 $4,234,890,405 0
2016 $4,036,249,358 $733,024 $31,225,271  $4,005,757,111| $23,401,366 $4,029,158,477 0

Source: Office of the Auditor Controller, County of San Diego

$7,000,000,000

$6,500,000,000

$6,000,000,000

$5,500,000,000

$5,000,000,000

$4,500,000,000

$4,000,000,000

$3,500,000,000

$3,000,000,000

Assessed Value of Taxable Property

2016

2017 2018

2019

79

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

2025



VCMWD Statistical Section

Table VI
Property Taxes and Assessment Levies and Collections(!) (Last Ten Fiscal Years)

Fiscal Lewy

Year Property Special Total Total Net Percent

Ended Taxes Assessments @ Lewy Collections Delinquent ) Delinquent ®
2025 $3,710,559 $4,318,337 $8,028,896 $7,953,198 $75,698 0%
2024 $3,538,047 $4,408,779 $7,946,826 $7,893,295 $53,530 0%
2023 $3,262,795 $4,073,125 $7,335,920 $7,285,709 $50,211 0%
2022 $2,862,972 $3,853,841 $6,716,813 $6,665,680 $51,133 0%
2021 $2,716,539 $3,585,758 $6,302,297 $6,264,443 $37,854 0%
2020 $2,601,005 $3,250,234 $5,851,239 $5,819,285 $31,954 0%
2019 $2,486,393 $3,213,240 $5,699,633 $5,667,517 $32,116 0%
2018 $2,366,917 $3,224,152 $5,591,068 $5,564,397 $26,671 0%
2017 $2,267,255 $3,210,182 $5,477,437 $5,448,333 $29,104 0%
2016 $2,153,564 $1,659,911 $3,813,476 $3,787,091 $26,384 0%

(1) Percent delinquencies for assessments and property taxes are the same since they are both collected on one tax bill.

(2) Increase in 2017 is due to new annual assessment for the Woods Valley Ranch Water Reclamation Facility
Expansion AD 2012-1 totaling $1,713,781.

(3) Collections do not include miscellaneous adjustments.

(4) Net Delinquent includes uncollectible portion.

(5) Percent delinquent represents current secured only. Beginning in fiscal year 1993-94, the County of San Diego remits
to the District 100% of the secured property taxes and special assessments assessed. The County of San Diego
pursues collection of any remaining delinquencies through the Teeter Plan.

Source: Valley Center Municipal Water District and the Office of the Auditor Controller, County of San Diego

80



VCMWD

Statistical Section

Table VII
Direct and Overlapping Bonded Debt (") (June 30, 2025)

2024-25 Assessed Valuation: $6,894,566.618

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING TAXAND ASSESSMENT DEBT:

Metropolitan Water District

Palomar Pomerado Hospital District

Palomar Community College District

Escondido Union High School District

Escondido Union School District

Bonsall Unified School District

Valley Center-Pauma USD Community Facilities District No. 2003-1

City of Escondido

Valley Center Municipal Water District

Valley Center Municipal Water District Community Facilities District No. 2020-1

Valley Center Municipal Water District Assessment District No. 2012-1
TOTAL DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING TAX AND ASSESSMENT DEBT

OVERLAPPING GENERAL FUND DEBT:
San Diego County General Fund Obligations
San Diego County Pension Obligation Bonds
San Diego County Superintendent of Schools Certificates of Participation
Palomar Community College District Certificates of Participation
Bonsall Unified School District Certificates of Participation
Escondido Union High School District Certificates of Participation
Escondido Union School District Certificates of Participation
City of Escondido Certificates of Participation
Valley Center Fire District General Fund Obligations

TOTAL OVERLAPPING GENERAL FUND DEBT

TOTAL DIRECT DEBT
TOTAL OVERLAPPING DEBT

COMBINED TOTAL DEBT

Ratios to Assessed Valuation:
Direct Debt
Total Direct and Overlapping Tax and Assessment Debt
Combined Total Debt

2024-25 TYPICAL TOTAL TAXRATE (TRA 94-075): 1.05635

Total Debt District's Share
6/30/2025 % Applicable!" of Debt 6/30/25
$ 17,155,000 0.169% $ 28,992
381,893,263 5.809% 22,184,180
611,941,649 4.044% 24,746,920
70,819,327 5.797% 4,105,396
165,809,622 5.980% 9,915,415
8,712,480 3.827% 333,427
4,510,000 100.000% 4,510,000
43,425,000 0.030% 13,028
0 100.000% 0
5,355,000 100.000% 5,355,000
3,625,000 100.000% 3,625,000
$ 74,817,358
$ 351,065,000 0.930% $ 3,264,905
140,370,000 0.930% 1,305,441
5,125,000 0.930% 47,663
1,030,000 4.044% 41,653
5,712,200 3.827% 218,606
42,510,000 5.797% 2,464,305
26,531,150 5.980% 1,586,563
1,935,000 0.030% 581
2,937,880 98.029% 2,879,974
$ 11,809,691
$0
$86,627,049
$86,627,049

0.00%

1.09%

1.26%

(1) The percentage of overlapping debt applicable to the district is estimated using taxable assessed property value. Applicable
percentages were estimated by determining the portion of the overlapping district's assessed value that is within the
boundaries of the water district divided by the overlapping district's total taxable assessed value.

(2) Excludes tax and revenue anticipation notes, enterprise revenue, mortgage revenue and non-bonded capital lease

obligations.

Source: California Municipal Statistics, Inc.

81



VCMWD

Statistical Section

Table VIII

Property Owners by Highest Cumulative Net Assessed Property Value (Current Fiscal Year)

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2025

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

. Percent of . Percent of
Cumulative Total Net Cumulative Total Net
Property Owner Net Assessed Property Owner Net Assessed

Value Assessed Value Assessed

Value Value
Welk Resort Platinum Owners Assoc. $64,123,871 0.93% Welk Resort Platinum Owners Assoc. $57,794,221 1.43%
Pacifica Champagne Lakes LLC 23,669,100 0.34% Bell Holdings LLC 11,687,121 0.29%
Welk Resort Properties Inc. 13,387,917 0.19% Welk Resort Properties Inc. 11,629,544 0.29%
Welk Mountain Villas Inc. 10,072,398 0.15% Welk Resort Group Inc. 10,355,999 0.26%
Skyline Ranch Country Club LLC 10,035,227 0.15% San Pasqual Band of Mission Indians 9,610,028 0.24%
Welk Resort Group Inc. 9,578,112 0.14% Welk Mountain Villas Inc. 8,216,619 0.20%
San Pasqual Economic Dev. Corp. 8,670,000 0.13%  Skyline Ranch Country Club LLC 7,917,397 0.20%
Steven Gardella Jr Trust 07-08-87 8,095,376 0.12%  Perricone California Properties 7,519,850 0.19%
McMillan Trust 11-09-05 8,021,799 0.12% ATC Realty Sixteen Inc. 6,731,797 0.17%
Federal Boulevard Properties LLC 8,011,092 0.12%  Federal Boulevard Properties LLC 6,535,104 0.16%
Total Top Ten Property Owners $163,664,892 2.39% Total Top Ten Property Owners $137,997,680 3.43%
Other Property Owners $6,730,901,726 97.61%  Other Property Owners $3,891,160,797 96.57%
Total Assessed Valuation $6,894,566,618 100.00% Total Assessed Valuation $4,029,158,477 100.00%

Data Source: 2024 Master Property Records from San Diego County Used for 2024-25 Property Taxes.

82



VCMWD Statistical Section

Table IX
Water Rates (Last Ten Fiscal Years)

Commodity Charge Monthly

Fiscal Domestic PSAWR @ Senvice Charge )
Year MWD/ MWD/
Ended" | spcwa SDCWA 1"

Wholesale ~ VCMWD Total Wholesale ~ VCMWD Total 3/4" Meter  Meter ©
2025 $2,809 $293 $3,102 $1,901 $293 $2,193 $51.28 $69.30
2024 $2,421 $279 $2,699 $1,744 $279 $2,023 $48.31 $66.00
2023 $2,199 $273 $2,472 $1,606 $273 $1,879 $47.46 $64.84
2022 $2,101 $260 $2,361 $1,518 $260 $1,778 $45.12 $61.64
2021 $2,012 $246 $2,258 $1,467 $246 $1,713 $42.77 $58.43
2020 $1,941 $241 $2,182 $1,375 $241 $1,616 $41.77 $57.06
2019 $1,884 $232 $2,116 $1,320 $232 $1,552 $39.93 $54.55
2018 $1,884 $232 $2,116 $1,320 $232 $1,552 $39.93 $54.55
2017 $1,827 $221 $2,048 $1,277 $221 $1,498 $39.93 $54.55
2016 $1,714 $201 $1,915 $1,182 $201 $1,383 $36.30 $49.59

(1) Rate as of January 1.

(2) Excludes pumping charges.
(3) Permanent Special Agricultural Water Rate effective January 1, 2021. Initially implemented by SDCWA
on January 1, 2009 as the Transitional Special Agricultural Water Rate.

(4) Excludes SDCWA Infrastructure Access Charge.
(5) Larger meters are multiples of the charge for a 1" meter.

Source: Valley Center Municipal Water District

83



VCMWD Statistical Section

Table X
Wastewater Rates® (Last Ten Fiscal Years)

. Lower Moosa Canyon WRF Woods Valley Ranch WRF @
Fiscal Year

E Senice Low Pressure Capital Senice Grinder Pump
nded .

Charge Collection System  |mprovement® Charge Maintenance®
2025 $64.86 $53.52 $12.00 $98.60 $50.93
2024 $61.72 $50.93 $12.00 $98.60 $50.93
2023 $61.72 $50.93 $98.60 $48.42
2022 $58.67 $48.42 $98.60 $48.42
2021 $57.80 $47.70 $98.60 $47.70
2020 $56.45 $46.58 $98.60 $46.58
2019 $56.45 $46.58 $98.60 $46.58
2018 $56.45 $46.58 $98.60 $44.36
2017 $53.76 $44.36 $98.60
2016 $51.20 $42.25 $98.60

(1) Rate as of January 1.

(2) Rates are per month/equivalent dwelling unit (EDU).

(3) The Capital Improvement charge at Moosa was first implemented January 1, 2024.
(4) Rates as of July 1 as they are collected on each owner's property tax bill.

(5) The Grinder Pump Maintenance charge was first implemented on July 1, 2017.

Source: Valley Center Municipal Water District

84



VCMWD Statistical Section

Table Xl
Wastewater Services

Fiscal = - =
ieeT e 00Sa a 0 D, 000 alle a D @)
Ended" | Domestic Commercial Other Total |Domestic Commercial Other Total Total
2025 2,373 99 2 2,474 939 41 4 984 3,458
2024 2,372 99 2 2,473 933 39 4 976 3,449
2023 2,396 100 1 2,497 875 38 4 917 3,414
2022 2,393 100 1 2,494 626 32 4 662 3,156
2021 2,388 100 2 2,490 353 33 3 389 2,879
2020 2,388 87 2 2,477 295 27 - 322 2,799
2019 2,383 84 2 2,469 274 19 - 293 2,762
2018 2,384 79 2 2,465 270 15 - 285 2,750
2017 - - - 2,463 - - - 279 2,742
2016 - - - 2,476 - - - 271 2,747

(1) Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) upgrade was implemented during FY 2017. Detailed customer type
data is only available beginning FY 2018 as the legacy software did not track this information.
(2) Equivalent Dwelling Units.

Source: Valley Center Municipal Water District

85



VCMWD Statistical Section

Table XII
Principal Water Customers

Fiscal year ended June 30, 2025 Fiscal year ended June 30, 2016

Customer Usage in  Percent of Customer Usage in  Percent of

Acre Feet Water Sold Acre Feet Water Sold
Harold Investments LP 630.6 4.54% Grandon Ranch Corp. 617.5 3.36%
2K Commercial CDV LLC 542.1 3.90% Coykendall, H. C. J. 505.7 2.75%
BSTCO 400.8 2.89% Harlan Beck & Associates 493.7 2.69%
Jackson Ranch LLC 361.2 2.60% BSTCO 450.2 2.45%
A-1 Sunshine Farms 294.8 2.12% Stehly, N. J. C. 324.8 1.77%
Rancho Sereno 241.4 1.74% Rancho Erico 274.2 1.49%
W A Grant Il 181.7 1.31% Sundance Natural Foods 268.3 1.46%
Rancho Erico 160.5 1.16% Rancho Sereno 255.8 1.39%
San Pasqual Band of Mission Indians 156.5 1.13% Golden Park Ranch 224.4 1.22%
E Holtz 158.3 1.14% Fallbrook Venture One 214.0 1.16%
Total Top Ten Customers 3,127.9 22.53% Total Top Ten Customers 3,628.6 19.74%
Other Customers 10,756.8 77.47% Other Customers 14,740.8 80.26%
Total Water Sales 13,884.7 100.00% Total Water Sales 18,369.4 100.00%

Source: Valley Center Municipal Water District

86



VCMWD Statistical Section

Table XIlI
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type (Last Ten Fiscal Years)

Fiscal General Notes Financing Percentage

Year Obligation Revenue Payable Loan Lease of Personal Per
Ended Bonds”  Bonds® SRF Loan Agreement ) Payable Total Income ©®  Capita ©
2025 - - $26,470,847 $0  $46,450 $26,517,297 1.11% $879
2024 - - $19,849,405 $0  $91,526 $19,940,931 0.84% $663
2023 - - $21,163,845 $0 $135,186 $21,299,031 0.96% $711
2022 - - $22,451,002 $11,114  $42,777 $22,504,893 1.04% $758
2021 - - $23,711,447 $27,081 - $23,738,528 1.31% $886
2020 - - $24,945,739 $39,349 - $24,985,088 1.41% $876
2019 - - $25,809,665 $58,943 - $25,868,608 1.70% $1,004
2018 - - $26,753,731 $78,537 - $26,832,268 1.83% $1,042
2017 - - $23,029,735 $98,130 - $23,127,865 1.64% $902
2016 - - $7,679,830 $117,724 - $7,797,554 0.57% $304

(1) The District has had no General Obligation Bonded Debt since 1999.

(2) The District has had no Revenue Bonds since 2012.

(3) Financing Loan Agreements consist of two unsecured, non-interest bearing loan agreements with San
Diego Gas & Electric. The final payment on the outstanding loans was made in Fiscal Year 2022.

(4) In Fiscal Year 2022 the District recorded a Lease Payable for the right-to-use a leased asset known as the
Palomar repeater site.

(5) See Table XV for personal income and population data.

Source: Valley Center Municipal Water District

87



VCMWD Statistical Section

Table XIV
Pledged-Revenue Coverage (Last Ten Fiscal Years)

Fiscal Less: Net
Year Operating Nonoperating Gross Operating Available Debt Senice Cowerage
Ended | Revenues " Rewvenues " Revenues Expenses 2 Revenues Principal Interest Total Ratio®

2025 | $51,878,795 $7,250,420 $59,129,215 $49,872,184 $9,257,031| $1,387,383  $556,398 $1,943,781 4.76
2024 | $41,489,237 $6,987,209 $48,476,446 $41,212,515 $7,263,931| $1,356,863  $496,041 $1,852,904 3.92
2023 | $42,271,331  $6,402,775 $48,674,106 $46,262,000 $2,412,106| $1,308,100  $467,225 $1,775,325 1.36
2022 | $47,998,861 $3,584,348 $51,583,209 $44,592,666 $6,990,543| $1,275,618  $489,687 $1,765,305 3.96
2021 | $48,763,389 $4,316,699 $53,080,088 $46,579,870 $6,500,218( $1,252,207  $514,995 $1,767,202 3.68
2020 | $41,469,459 $4,362,747 $45,832,206 $42,481,338 $3,350,868( $1,211,612  $539,660 $1,751,272 1.91
2019 | $41,448,560 $4,199,475 $45,648,035 $41,352,704 $4,295,331( $1,182,874  $557,983 $1,740,857 2.47
2018 | $50,108,564 $3,673,774 $53,782,338 $47,989,798 $5,792,540| $1,108,980  $540,037 $1,649,017 3.51
2017 | $43,310,872 $3,321,123 $46,631,995 $40,374,658 $6,257,337 $19,5904  $238,935  $258,529| 24.20
2016 | $39,047,075 $3,195,194 $42,242,269 $37,875,992 $4,366,277 $19,594 $47,272 $66,866| 65.30

(1) See Table Il

(2) Operating expenses excluding depreciation.

(3) Coverage ratio decreased dramatically in Fiscal Year 2018 because the District's debt payments increased significantly.
See Table XII, Notes 2 — 4.

Source: Valley Center Municipal Water District

88



VCMWD

Statistical Section

Table XV

Demographic and Economic Statistics (Last Ten Fiscal Years)

Fiscal o Total Farapia Unemployment
Year Population Personal Personal @)

Ended Income Income © e
2025 30,166 $2,386,794,000 $79,122 2.7%
2024 30,079 $2,379,911,000 $79,122 2.6%
2023 29,938 $2,229,662,000 $74,476 2.3%
2022 29,708 $2,171,179,000 $73,084 2.3%
2021 26,780 $1,809,498,000 $67,569 3.2%
2020 28,507 $1,768,774,000 $62,047 6.4%
2019 25,766 $1,520,555,000 $59,014 3.5%
2018 25,760 $1,467,521,000 $56,969 3.1%
2017 25,630 $1,411,547,000 $55,074 2.3%
2016 25,608 $1,366,366,000 $53,357 3.6%

(1) Beginning FYE 2022, population estimate is based on data from the 2020 federal census. This
figure was also used for the Division Boundary Reapportionment that was approved in April 2022.
The FYE 2021 population estimate is based on SanDAG Series 14 Regional Growth Forecast
(Version 17). The FYE 2020 population estimate is based on ESRI Demographics. Prior to
that, years 2013 - 2019 were estimated by VCMWD using average household size estimated by
SanDAG.

Calculated using the estimated per capita personal income.
Per capita personal income estimated using San Diego-Carlsbad Metropolitan Statistical Area

(MSA), a close approximation of the VCMWD area. U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of
Economic Analysis, St. Louis Federal Reserve Economic Data (FRED). Data for 2025 was not
updated at the time of this report. The most recent available Data is for Calendar Year 2023.

(4) Source: State of California Employment Development Department for the Valley Center Census
Designated Place (CDP) which is a close approximation of the VCMWD area.

Source: Valley Center Municipal Water District except as noted.

Per Capita Income

Per Capita Personal Income and Population

$90,000

32,000

$80,000

$70,000

$60,000
$50,000
$40,000
$30,000
$20,000
$10,000

$0

N
o
=
(o))

4102
810¢
6102
0coc

lcoe

¢coc
€coc
¥eoe

mmm Personal Income

—— Population

89

- 28,000
- 24,000
- 20,000
- 16,000
- 12,000
- 8,000

- 4,000

Population

§geoc



VCMWD

Statistical Section

Table XVI
Principal Employers — County of San Diego (Curre

Fiscal year ended June 30, 2024""

nt Fiscal Year and Nine Years Prior)

Fiscal year ended June 30, 2015®

#of % of Total

#of % of Total

Employer Rank Employees Employment Employer Rank Employees Employment
University of California, San Diego 1 35,802 2.37%  State of California 1 40,100 2.57%
Sharp Healthcare 2 19,468 1.29%  University of California, San Diego 2 29,287 1.88%
County of San Diego 3 17,954 1.19%  Federal Government 3 24,200 1.55%
City of San Diego 4 11,820 0.78%  U.S. Department of Defense 4 21,500 1.38%
General Atomics 5 6,745 0.45%  County of San Diego 5 20,100 1.29%
San Diego State University 6 6,454 0.43%  Sharp Healthcare 6 16,846 1.08%
Rady Children's Hospital-San Diego 7 5,711 0.38%  Scripps Health 7 14,644 0.94%
San Diego Community College Dist. 8 5,400 0.36%  Qualcomm 8 13,500 0.87%
Sempra Energy 9 5,063 0.34%  City of San Diego 9 10,584 0.68%
YMCA of San Diego County 10 5,057 0.33%  Kaiser San Diego Medical Center 10 7,535 0.48%
Total Top Ten 119,474 7.92%  Total Top Ten 198,296 12.71%

2024 Total Number employed in
San Diego County 1,510,700

2015 Total Number employed in
San Diego County 1,559,629

(1) 2024 Source: Courtesy of County of San Diego, Fiscal Year 2025 Information not available at time of publication.

The Naval Base was excluded.
(2) 2015 Source: Fiscal Year 2014-2015 ACFR Table XV.

90



VCMWD Statistical Section

Table XVII
Number of Employees (Last Ten Fiscal Years)

Full-Time-Equivalent Employees Authorized as of June 30,

2025 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

Pumping 436 460 485 488 507 415 443 363 420 3.58
Water Systems Operations 30.48 29.60 30.40 29.46 29.36 30.30 29.99 28.94 2851 2869
Wastewater Collection and Treatment 8.24 7.62 6.95 6.75 7.18 7.03 7.28 6.66 6.39 5.57
Engineering 9.14 1055 1000 9.27 927 875 835 880 860 8.80
General and Administrative 1468 1345 13.35 14.35 1365 13.00 11.00 10.00 10.00 11.00
Capital Outlay (") 436 521 424 327 355 405 324 303 432 371
Developer Projects 174 197 2.21 202 192 272 1.71 094 098 065
Total Employees 73.00 73.00 72.00 70.00 70.00 70.00 66.00 62.00 63.00 62.00
Average Years of Senvice 11.89 1140 1161 11.97 1334 1387 1500 1544 1530 15.90

(1) Capitalized into construction in progress.
(2) Charged to work in progress for others.

Source: Valley Center Municipal Water District

91



VCMWD Statistical Section

Table XVIII
Operating and Capital Indicators (Last Ten Fiscal Years)

2025 2024 2023 2022 2021

N
N
o

2019 2018 2017 2016

Water:
Seniice area (acres) 64,293 64,293 64,293 64,293 64,293 64,559 64,557 64,540 64,540 64,540
Miles of water main
(8 inches and larger)!"
Number of enclosed
reservoirs
Capacity of enclosed
reservoirs (AF)
Number of open
resenoirs (emergency 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
water only)
Capacity of open
resenoirs (AF)
Number of pump
stations
Number of pumps 105 105 105 105 105 105 105 105 105 106
Total pump capacity 19,960 19,960 19,960 19,960 19,960 19,960 19,960 19,960 19,960 20,310
(horsepower)
Number of senice
connections
Number of meters in
senice

Production peak (m.g.d.) 36.13 28.90 3520 4450 34.74 37.73 4258 41.48 39.90 42.00

341 341 341 339 335 333 333 332 332 301
40 40 40 40 40 41 41 42 43 43

431 431 431 431 431 428 433 433 433 421

1,612 1612 1612 1612 1612 1612 1612 1,612 1,612 1,612

29 29 29 29 29 29 29 29 29 29

12,792 12,720 12,555 12,002 11,401 11,212 11,081 11,027 10,907 10,836

11,854 11,813 11,656 11,116 10,503 10,309 10,222 10,163 10,086 9,976

Average production
(m.g.d.)

Total rainfall (inches) 824 2084 2515 10.35 7.67 2225 20.39 6.29 21.32 11.98
Awerage daily 63.23 62.00 6267 6350 6275 6225 61.80 6325 61.83 62.75
temperature (F.)
Electricity purchased
(1,000 kWh)
Natural gas purchased
(1,000 therms)

13.27  11.08 1220 1446 17.10 1413 1532 20.11 18.06  17.57

5558 6,872 7,518 7,147 6416 5636 6,414 9,608 6,997 7,344

491 351 398 523 760 637 660 729 786 591

Mainline repairs 18 25 20 15 21 23 21 23 21 22
Wastewater:
Miles of sewer lines‘" 49 49 48 47 42 41 38 38 37 57

Number of treatment
plants

Maximum capacity of

0.77 0.77 0.77 0.77 0.77 0.77 0.77 0.77 0.57 0.57
treatment plants (m.g.d.)

Average dry weather flow
(m.g.d.)

Number of sewer
connections

0.45 0.48 0.42 0.40 0.37 0.37 0.39 0.37 0.36 0.33

3,458 3,449 3,414 3,165 2,888 2,799 2,762 2,750 2,742 2,761

AF - Acre feet
m.g.d. - Million gallons per day

Source: Valley Center Municipal Water District

(1) The methodology for estimating the Miles of water main and Miles of sewer lines was changed during Fiscal Year
Ended June 30, 2017, when the District began using Esri's ArcGIS mapping software.

92



VCMWD Statistical Section
VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT EMPLOYEES
2024-25
PAUL ADRIAN MATTHEW GOSWICK THANG PHAM
JULIAN ALVAREZ WALLY GRABBE ANDO PILVE
JAMES AMADOR MENDIVIL MICHELLE HEIDEMANN MICHAEL POWERS
GARY ARANT CLARENCE LEE HICKS JAMES PUGH
ALEJANDRA BARRETO VALENZUELA ANDREW HUERTA CLIFFORD REEH
RICHARD BEATH RYAN HUGHES RYAN REEH

GARRETT BRANDENBURG
LEONARD BROWN

RONALD BURKE

FERNANDO CARRILLO
DANIELLE CATTANEO

JOSIAH CRESPO

RON DARLAND

CORT DAY

EDUARDO DE ALBA

MARIO DE ALBA

GABRIEL DE LA CRUZ

ROMAN DE MANRIQUEZ
BRANDON DENDY

KARL DAVID FRANK GUNNARSON
ENRIQUE GARCIA

RODOLFO GARCIA

BEATRIZ GARNICA

MARIO CORTES GARRATACHEA
DOMINGO GONZALEZ

ERIK GONZALEZ

CORAL HUTCHINS
TONY JACQUEZ
CHRISTOPHER KRATZ
STEPHANIE LACKERDAS
BENJAMIN LAWSON

FERNANDO LEON MARTINEZ
BRIAN LOVELADY
JESSICA LOVELADY
NIKOLAY LYUBER
RYAN MADSON
JAMIE MARTINEZ
MARLENE MARTINEZ
WILLIAM MORRIS
ISMAEL NAVARRO
ALISA NICHOLS
JAMES NICHOLS
MICHAEL NICHOLS
JESON NIKRASCH
GABRIELA OLSON
KIRSTEN PERAINO

For additional copies contact:
Valley Center Municipal Water District
Post Office Box 67
Valley Center, California
Telephone (760) 735-4500
Facsimile (760) 749-6478

Visit us on the Internet at:

www.valleycenterwater.org

93

ROY RUTHERFORD
PAYTON RUTHERFORD
AURORA SANCHEZ
BRENNAN SCOTT
JULEE SCOTT

JAMES SEDILLO
DANIEL SHUBIN
MOSES SHUBIN
BRAYDEN STANSEL
PAUL STEHLY

JARED THOMAS
BLAKE TOTH

ASHLYN VAN HOUTEN
VANESSA VELASQUEZ
ANNELISE VILLALOBOS
JACOB VILLALOBOS
DUSTIN WINGROVE
GRETCHEN YOUNG
MICHAEL YOUNG



VCMWD Statistical Section

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

94



Valley Center Municipal Water District

29300 Valley Center Road - P.O. Box 67 - Valley Center, California 92082
(760) 735-4500 - www.valleycenterwater.org - e-mail vcwater@valleyventerwater.org




DATE: December 1, 2025
TO: Honorable President and Members of the Board of Directors
FROM: Lindsay Leahy, General Manager

SUBJECT: REQUEST APPROVAL TO ENTER INTO A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
AGREEMENT WITH INTERFACE AUTOMATION FOR THE HMI
SOFTWARE UPGRADE AT THE WOODS VALLEY RANCH WATER
RECLAMATION FACILITY

PURPOSE:

Request the Board of Directors adopt Resolution No. 2025-31 authorizing the General
Manager or her designee to enter into a Professional Services Agreement with Interface
Automation in the amount of $75,000 for HMI software upgrade services at the Woods
Valley Ranch Water Reclamation Facility.

SUMMARY:

The Woods Valley Ranch Water Reclamation Facility’'s existing Human-Machine
Interface (“HMI”) software requires an upgrade to match the web-based Ignition
Perspective platform being used for the wastewater system at the Lower Moosa Canyon
WRF (Moosa) to provide operators with the same, consistent operational interface
capabilities. The District's HMI software for the water system is also being upgraded to
the same platform. This leaves the Woods Valley Ranch WRF as the only remaining
system not utilizing Ignition Perspective.

The District requested two proposals for this HMI upgrade, one from Interface Automation
(“IA”) (the original system integrator for the Woods Valley ranch WRF) and one from
Enterprise Automation (the integrator selected for upgrading the water system HMI
software). Staff is recommending the contract be awarded to Interface Automation.

Interface Automation $75,000
Enterprise Automation $325,272

Interface Automation is uniquely qualified to perform the upgrade due to their direct
knowledge of the system architecture, programming, and configuration standards.
Engaging the original system integrator will ensure technical continuity, reduce downtime,
and enhance project efficiency. Interface Automation originally configured the current
HMI software at the Woods Valley Ranch Facility, utilizing the earlier version of Ignition,
and later upgraded the Moosa Facility from Wonderware to Ignition Perspective.

Page 1 of 2



Although the District’'s Administrative Code generally requires obtaining a minimum of
three quotes for professional services, staff recommends proceeding directly with
Interface Automation due to their prior involvement and system familiarity.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Funding for the project is included in the FY 2025-2026 Annual Budget and is sufficient
for awarding the professional service agreement to Interface Automation. The following
summary of the project budget shows a line item adjustment for this work that will result
in a significant savings that can be reallocated to other projects.

Engineering Staff 17,000 18,000 35,000
IT/SCADA Staff 28,000 2,000 30,000
Integration Consultant 330,000 (255,000) 75,000
Hardware/Software 20,000 5,000 25,000
Miscellaneous 5,000 10,000 15,000
Contingency (22%) 40,000 0 40,000
Available for Reallocation 220,000 220,000
RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the Board of Directors adopt Resolution No. 2025-31, authorizing
the General Manager or her designee to enter into a Professional Services Agreement
with Interface Automation in the amount of $75,000 for the HMI software upgrade at the
Woods Valley Ranch Water Reclamation Facility.

PREPARED BY: SUBMITTED BY:
| L
Wally Grabbe, PE dsay L ahy
District Engineer neral M nag
Attachments:

Resolution No. 2025-31
Interface Automation Proposal

Page 2 of 2



RESOLUTION NO. 2025-31

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
THE VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
APPROVING A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
WITH INTERFACE AUTOMATION FOR THE HMI SOFTWARE UPGRADE
AT THE WOODS VALLEY RANCH WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY

WHEREAS, the Valley Center Municipal Water District (“District”) operates and
maintains the Woods Valley Ranch Water Reclamation Facility (“Facility”’) to provide
reliable wastewater treatment service to the community;

WHEREAS, the Facility’'s existing Human-Machine Interface (“HMI”) software
requires an upgrade to match the HMI software (Ignition Perspective) being used for the
Lower Moosa Canyon Water Reclamation Facility and for the water system.

WHEREAS, two proposal were requested and received for the proposed project
with the following results:

interface Automation $75,000
Enterprise Automation $325,272

WHEREAS, Interface Automation originally configured the HMI software for the
Facility and possesses direct knowledge of the system architecture, programming, and
configuration standards, making them uniquely qualified to perform the software upgrade;

WHEREAS, engaging the original system integrator will ensure technical
continuity, reduce downtime, and enhance project efficiency;

WHEREAS, although the District's Administrative Code generally requires
obtaining a minimum of three quotes for professional services, staff recommended
proceeding directly with Interface Automation due to their prior involvement and system
familiarity; and

WHEREAS, sufficient funds for this work are available within the approved budget
for the Woods Valley Ranch Water Reclamation Facility Capital Improvements Program.

Resolution No. 2025-31 Page 1 of 2



NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, DETERMINED, AND ORDERED BY
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER
DISTRICT as follows:

1. The Board finds and determines that the foregoing recitals are true and correct.

2. The Board hereby approves entering into a Professional Services Agreement with
Interface Automation in the amount of $75,000 for the HMI Software Upgrade at
the Woods Valley Ranch Water Reclamation Facility.

3. The General Manager, or her designee, is authorized and directed to execute the
Professional Services Agreement on behalf of the District, with total compensation
not to exceed $75,000, without further Board action.

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the
Valley Center Municipal Water District held on the 15t day of December 2025, by the
following vote:

Enrico Ferro, President

ATTEST:

Coral Williams, Acting Board Secretary

Resolution No. 2025-31 Page 2 of 2



[ INTERFACE Quotation # 1161

UTOMATION

CONSULTING AND AUTOMATION SOLUTIONS

945 Delaware St.
Imperial Beach, CA 91932
TEL (619) 503-0345

November 24, 2025

SCADA Upgrade Project Proposal

Scope:

e Convert Woods Valley Ignition from Vision to Perspective
Add Woods Valley project to Moosa gateway.
e  Bring all features of Woods to Moosa project and vice versa.
o Report Selection (Woods to Moosa)
o Redundancy (Woods to Moosa)
o Notification with SMS and Voice as backup (Woods to Moosa)
o Alarm enables and notification with delay setpoint (Moosa to Woods)

Experience:

¢ Olivenhain Municipal Water District, 4S Water Reclamation Facility
o Complete SCADA upgrade from Ignition 7.9 to 8.1, all screens were recreated in Perspective
¢  Olivenhain Municipal Water District, David C. McCollum Water Treatment Plant
o Complete SCADA upgrade from Ignition 7.9 to 8.1, all screens were recreated in Perspective
e  Olivenhain Municipal Water District, Distribution System
o Complete SCADA upgrade from Ignition 7.9 to 8.1, all screens were recreated in Perspective
¢ Olivenhain Municipal Water District, David C. McCollum Water Treatment Plant
o Replace ControlNet communications with Ethernet I/P
¢  Globe Machine Manufacturing, Huber Engineered Wood
o Design PLC panels, LCP panels, remote I/O panels using Ethernet 1/P.
o Program all logic for entire OSB finishing line.
o Created HMI’s using Aveva InTouch.
e Valley Center Municipal Water District, Moosa WWTP:
o Complete SCADA upgrade from Wonderware to Ignition 8.1, all screens were created in Perspective along with
PLC upgrade with distributed I/O.
e US Beverage Packers (Arizona Iced Tea) Keasbey, New Jersey:
o Sub-contractor of Vertech
o New SCADA system using Ignition 8.0 and PLC with distributed I/O for batch processing, storage, and CIP.
e Valley Center Municipal Water District, Woods Valley Ranch WREF:
o  Complete unfinished SCADA work using Ignition 7.9, where another Integrator left off.

Schedule:

e  Estimated start date February 1, 2026.
e  Estimated completion date: May 15, 2026

Additional Scope Clarifications:

Ignition SCADA software to be provided by VCMWD.

SCADA server or virtual machine with Windows OS to be provided by VCMWD.

Ethernet communications to and from SCADA server or virtual machine to each PLC to be provided by VCMWD.
Microsoft SQL. server for historian to be provided by VCMWD.



Interface Automation Exclusions and Exceptions:

e Any other material or labor that is not explicitly mentioned above as being provided.

Terms of Sale:

e  These prices are valid for 60 days.
e  Monthly payments of actual work performed: Net 30
e All quotes are subject to price change due to scope change, additions, and vendor/market impacts beyond our control.
o FOB: Interface Automation.
Options:
A. HMI upgrade only (looks and feels like Moosa)
B. HMI upgrade and re-do PLC program just like Moosa)
Option A Total Lump Sum Price, Not-to-EXceed: ...cciiiiiiiiiiiiruiiniiniiniiisiniaiieiiiimiiiesiessssiessissecssirsesssesoon $65,000.00
Option B Total Lump Sum Price, NOt-t0-EXCEEA: cuiuiuiririeisiiiieererrsracacsosorsensnsecsssossrcosssasassssssosessssosssssases $75,000.00
Regards,

Richard Torres
Interface Automation



December 1, 2025

TO: Honorable President and Board of Directors
FROM: Lindsay Leahy, General Manager

SUBJECT: San Diego Local Agency Formation Commission Special Districts
Advisory Committee Call for Ballots

PURPOSE:

To request the Board of Directors approve the recommended selection of candidates and cast
an election ballot for the San Diego Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) Special
Districts Advisory Committee (SDAC).

SUMMARY:

Nominations for the SDAC were solicited by LAFCO in October and Valley Center Municipal
Water District (District) nominated General Manager, Lindsay Leahy.

On November 12, 2025, LAFCO issued a Call for Ballots for the election to the SDAC (see
attached) to all 58 Independent Special Districts in San Diego County. The SDAC Call for
Ballots includes the resumes and qualifications of ten candidates nominated from San Diego
County special districts. There are seven open seats to be filled in the SDAC election.

Board President Ferro reviewed the candidates and recommends the following seven
candidates for their experience and qualifications to best represent special districts’ interests
through the SDAC and the completed Election Ballot and Vote Certification form (attached) be
approved by the full Board:

Mike Sims Bonita-Sunn side Fire Protection District
James Gordon DeerS rings Fire Protection District

Jack Bebee Fallbrook Public Utilit District

Lindsa Leahy Valle Center Municipal Water District
Albert C. Lau Santa Fe Irrigation District

Kimberl Thorner Olivehain Munici al Water District
David McQuead Rancho Santa Fe Fire Protection District

The Election Ballot and Vote Certification form must be signed by the Board President and
submitted to LAFCO by the December 22, 2025 deadline.



RECOMMENDATIONS:

After review and discussion, staff recommends the Board approve Board President Ferro’s
recommended seven selected candidates and direct staff to submit the Election Ballot and
Vote Certification by the stated deadline.

PREPARED BY: SUBMITTED BY:
Alisa Nichols i sa L
Special Projects & neral Man er

Regulatory Compliance Manager

Attachments:

Attachment 1 — LAFCO Call for Ballots
Attachment 2 — Completed Election Ballot and Vote Certification Form



San Diego County
Local Agency Formation Commission

CALL FOR BALLOTS
November 12, 2025
TO: Independent Special Districts in San Diego County
FROM: Erica Sellen, Commission Clerk

SUBJECT: Call for Ballots |
Election to Special Districts Advisory Committee

On September 29, 2025, the San Diego Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) solicited
nominations pursuant to Government Code Section 56332 to fill seven open seats on the 15-member
Special Districts Advisory Committee. A total of ten nominations were received following a 30-day
filing period. All terms on the Special Districts Advisory Committee are four-years.

San Diego LAFCO is now issuing ballots to all 58 independent special districts in San Diego County and
inviting each district to cast a ballot selecting up to seven eligible nominees. Write-in candidates are
permitted, and spaces have been provided for that purpose. Only cast one vote for each nominee
on the ballot and vote certification form; a ballot that is cast for more than the indicated number of
positions will be disregarded. The ballot and vote certification form along with nominee resumes
provided by the candidates are attached.

State Law specifies a district’s vote is to be cast by its presiding officer, or an alternate member
designated by the board and a valid signature is required on the ballot. A ballot received without a
signature will be voided. A minimum of 30 ballots must be received to certify that a legal election
was conducted. A candidate for a special districts advisory committee member must receive at least
a majority of the votes cast to be elected. The ballots will be kept on file in this office and will be
made available upon request.

Ballots may be submitted by mail, courier, hand delivered, or via email to Erica.Sellen(@sdcounty.ca.gov.
The deadline for receipts of the ballots by LAFCO is 5:00 p.m. on Monday, December 22, 2025, any

ballots received after the deadline will be voided. All election materials are available on the website:
www.sdlafco.org. Should you have any questions, please contact me by email or at (619) 321-3380.

Erica Sellen Attachments:

Commission Clerk A) Ballot and Vote Certification form
B) Nominee Resumes



November 12, 2025
Call for Ballots | Special Districts Advisory Committee

Blank for Photocopying

2{r

e



SPECIAL DISTRICTS ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEMBER
ELECTION BALLOT and VOTE CERTIFICATION

VOTE FOR ONLY SEVEN NOMINEES
* Mike Sims (Bonita-Sunnyside Fire Protection District) [ 1]
* James Gordon (Deer Springs Fire Protection District) [ ]
Erica Wolski (Ramona Municipal Water District) [ ]
* Jack Bebee (Fallbrook Public Utility District) [ ]
Kurt Worden (Lower Sweetwater Fire Protection District) [ ]
Lindsay Leahy (Valley Center Municipal Water District) [ ]
* Albert C. Lau (Santa Fe Irrigation District) [ 1]
* Kimberly Thorner (Olivenhain Municipal Water District) [ 1]
* Dave McQuead (Rancho Santa Fe Fire Protection District) [ ]
* Mark Robak (Otay Water District) [ ]
Write-Ins
[ ]
[ ]

As presiding officer or his/her delegated alternate as provided by the governing board, | hereby certify that | cast the

votes of the for the Special Districts Advisory Committee election.
(Name of Independent Special District)

(Signature)

(Print Name)

(Print Title)

(Date)

Please note: The order in which the candidates’ names are listed was determined by random selection.

Return this Election Ballot and Vote Certification form to:
San Diego LAFCO
Erica Sellen
2550 Fifth Avenue, Suite 725
San Diego, CA 92103
Email: Erica.Sellen@sdcounty.ca.gov

* Incumbent member



Blank for Photocopying



Attachment B

Bio for Chief Mike Sims

| have been with Bonita FD for 30 years and in the Fire Service for 35 years

Promoted to Fire Chief at the Bonita Fire Protection District in 2018

Secretary for the San Diego County Fire Chiefs Association and Fire Districts Association
Chair of the Heartland Communications Facility Authority (our 911 dispatch center)

Chair of the Heartland Training Facility Authority (the training facility for all Central Zone FDs)
Advisory Committee member for San Diego LAFCO

Married for 30 years with 2 adult children

Hobbies include mountain biking, metal fabrication and working on classic cars



Blank for Photocopying



James E. Gordon
Director, Deer Springs Fire Protection District
415.852.1086
e ordon888@ mail.com

Professional History

* Director, Berkeley Research Group; October 2012 to 2014

¢ Managing Director, Navigant Consulting Asia; March 2005 to October 2012.

¢ Vice President of Pinkerton Consulting & Investigations; March 2001 to March 2005.
* Executive Vice President and CEO of Online Security; March 2000 to March 2001.

* Managing Director of Kroll Associates: March 1999 to March 2000.

¢ Managing Director of The Investigative Group, Inc.; June 1990 to March 1999.

* Partner, Philips & Gordon, Litigation Consulting Firm: May 1980 to June 1990.

Former Professional Associations

* American Bar Association (Associate Member)
® Inter-Pacific Bar Association
¢ figh Technology Crime Investigator Association (HTCIA)

James Gordon retired in 2014 after a successful international consulting career and is serving his third
term as a Director of the Deer Springs Fire Protection District. Mr. Gordon’s professional career includes
more than 25 years of experience and expertise advising clients faced with complex high stakes business
disputes, litigation and investigations, especially in cross-border matters. Mr. Gordon has served as a
consulting and testifying expert as well as a third-party neutral in a diverse range of business and
discovery disputes.

Mr. Gordon was based in Hong Kong from 2009 to 2012 as Managing Partner for a global expert services
and consulting firm. Mr. Gordon was the consulting expert and project lead on a diverse range of
complex matters, including: special committee forensic investigations for Boards of U.S. listed Chinese
companies; cross-border discovery; allegations of business fraud; undisclosed related third party asset
transfers; Foreign Corrupt Practices Act (FCPA) investigations; deep-dive M&A and FCPA due diligence;
international arbitration; royalty disputes; intellectual property rights (IPR); and dumping/trade issues.

Mr. Gordon worked on many of the highest-profile regulatory and enforcement investigations in US
history, including: the Wall Street IPO Securities Litigation; Tyco; WorldCom; Parmalat; HealthSouth;
and Enron. His work involved matters throughout Asia, China, Canada, UK and the United States

advising clients and their counsel in responding to investigations by: U.S. Department of justice (DOJ);
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC); Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC); the New
York Stock Exchange (NYSE); NASDAQ; Federal Trade Commission (FTC); United States International
Trade Counsel (USITC) and Congressional and Senate Investigations.

Mr. Gordon was a frequent presenter at In-House Corporate Counsel events, American Bar Association
conferences and at the International Pacific Bar Association on topics critical to managing business risks



James E. Gordon

and resolving cross-border disputes including; “Aunti-Corruption and Fraud Investigations in Asia,

" Managing Counterparty Business Risk with Business Intelligence and Analytics,” " Developing Cost Effective
Strategies for Managing Cross-Border Discovery,” “Electronic Discovery in Asia-U.S. Cross-Border Disputes,”
and " Evidentiary Issues in CIETAC Arbitrations.”

Representative Client Assignments

S ecial Committee Investi ‘ation for Chinese Board of US Listed Com; an -

For a US listed Chinese company, Mr. Gordon was retained by the Board of Directors to conduct
an internal investigation in response to whistle blower allegations. Mr. Gordon led an extensive
investigation throughout China to drill down on allegations of accounting irregularities;
numerous dealings with related undisclosed third parties; and the sale of one of the company’s
manufacturing facilities that was not an arm’s length transaction. Based on Mr. Gordon's
investigation, the company restated its financial statements, changed auditors and Mr. Gordon
presented his team’s findings to US based regulatory agencies.

Audit Committee Internal Bank Investi ation

Mr. Gordon worked the bank’s general counsel and the auditors pertaining to a wide-ranging
internal investigation which included: investigating whistle blower allegations; an in-depth
information technology review; investigation of an external data breach; and investigation of
internal misconduct. The summary of Mr. Cordon’s findings was provided to numerous
regulatory and law enforcement agencies as well as the AMEX and NASDAQ stock exchanges
resulting in no adverse impact to the client.

Ma’or US Financial Institution — Breach of Contract Dis ute

Mr. Gordon was retained as the Court appointed Third-party Neutral Expert in a matter
pertaining to allegations of a breach of an Insurance Recovery Agreement for thousands of real
estate properties owned by the bank. Mr. Gordon led a team in analyzing hundreds of millions
of fields of data from disparate sources including bank loan foreclosure and real estate owned
(“REQ”) property records, asset manager records, hazard insurance recovery provider data, and
insurance claims. The case successfully resolved within a week of Mr. Gordon'’s testimony.

Page 2



ERICA WOLSKI

105 Earlham St | Ramona, CA 92065 | 760.877.9247 | ewolski@rmwd.org

EDUCATION

California State Polytechnic University Pomona, Pomona, CA B.S. Civil Engineering,
Environmental Option, December 2001

EXPERIENCE

General Manager
Ramona Municipal Water District | Ramona, CA June 2022 — Present

Responsible for administrative activities of an agency that provides water, wastewater
and parks and recreation services. Duties include budget development, contract
negotiations, and oversight of day-to-day service delivery including of the above
services. Implements vision and direction of the elected board of directors. Informs board
of issues and opportunities. Interfaces with community organizations, government
entities, and individuals on behalf of the organization. Items worked while at Ramona
MWD that are related to LAFCO:

e Implementation of 2021 Municipal Service Review recommendations

e  Fire/EMS Transfer from Ramona MWD to County Fire Protection District

e Out of Agency Service agreement to provide potable and recycled water to the
Barona Reservation

Regional Manager
Woodard & Curran, San Diego, CA September 2018 — June 2022

Managed a team of 23 people that included water resources/stormwater planners,
engineers and hydrologists; environmental planners, and the software development team.
Led or advised on technical completion for complex and challenging projects and
performed technical tasks of significant difficulty or complexity in recycled water and
regulatory work, primarily for potable reuse projects.

Associate Sanitary Engineer -
State Water Resources Control Board — Division of Drinking Water, Multiple, CA 2002-2005 & 2010-2018

Worked in multiple field offices inspecting and permitting drinking water and recycled
water systems throughout the state of California. Provided oversight of County Local
Primacy Agency program for San Diego and Imperial County small water system
programs.

MEMBERSHIPS/ACTIVITIES

e  American Water Works Association — member since 2002

e American Water Works Association — Water Utility Council 2017-present

e  (California Special Districts Association, member

o  WateReuse California, member

¢ Ramona Leadership Council — monthly gathering of local heads of governments
and non-profits to discuss community needs



Blank for Photocopying



Jack Bebee, Fallbrook Public Utility District

SUMMARY:

EXPERIENCE:

EXPERIENCE:

EXPERIENCE:

EXPERIENCE:

Over twenty years experience in all aspects of management and
operation of public water and wastewater utilities. Oversee District
operation with a staff of 68 FTE’s with water treatment and
distribution, wastewater treatment, reclamation and collection
services.

Fallbrook Public Utilities District 9/2017-Present
General Manager

Oversee all District functions including Finance, Customer
Service, Public Relations, Human Resources, Operations, and
Engineering. Responsible for establishing a productive and
positive work environment. Facilitates development and
implementation of the Board of Directors overall vision for the
District. Communicates and Coordinates District operational
needs with the Board of Directors.

Fallbrook Public Utilities District 2009-2017
Assistant General Manager/District Engineer

Oversee all operations, engineering and planning functions of the
District including maintenance/construction, meter services,
purchasing, water system operations and wastewater
treatment/water reclamation. Responsible for Planning and setting
goals for each department and monitoring performance.
Responsible for developing and implementing all capital projects.

Palomar College 2010-Present
Instructor — Advanced Water Treatment and Water
Reclamation

Instructor of the advanced water treatment and water reclamation
course at Palomar College. Course is designed for operators
seeking their Grade III or IV water treatment operator or advanced
water treatment certifications and additional training in advanced
water treatment concepts including ozonation, UV, membranes and
water recycling. Course reviews advanced water treatment and
water recycling concepts and calculations.

Malcolm Pirnie, Inc. 2000-2009
Environmental Engineering Consulting
Sr. Project Engineer/Project Manager



Jack Bebee, Fallbrook Public Utility District

Served as project Manager and/or Design Manager on 5-10
projects at any time. Managed overall project budget and
resources for projects. Coordinated design and start-up with
operations staff. Responsible for technical quality on numerous
design projects valued at $6 to $50 million dollars in construction.
Developed planning studies for facilities or agencies to guide
future improvements, detailed design drawings for civil and
mechanical and instrumentation and control disciplines and
oversee construction of facilities.

EDUCATION: California State University — San Marcos 2005-2007
Masters of Business Administration

University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign 1998-2000
M.S. Environmental Engineering

Washington and Lee University 1994-1998
B.S. Physics-Engineering

LISCENCES: Professional Civil Engineer, State of California.
Grade 5 Water Distribution Operator California
Grade 4 Water Treatment Operator California
Grade 5 Wastewater Treatment Operator California
Grade 4 Advanced Water Treatment Operator Certification
Certified Special District Manager, California Special Districts

PROFESSIONAL ORGANIZATIONS/COMMITTEES:
San Diego California Special District Association Past Chair
San Diego LAFCO — Special District Advisory Group Vice Chair

American Water Works Association — Chair of Management and Leadership Technical
Advisory Workgroup. Member Technical Advisory Group (TAG) to help establish
legislative and policy priorities.

American Water Works Association CA/NV Section Trustee
ACWA, CSDA, WateReuse, California Water Environment Association - Member
Member of Fallbrook Village Rotary

Past Assignments

Chair of AWWA Management and Leadership Division. Chair and Vice chair of various
CA-NV AWWA committees. Member of AWWA Technical and Education Council.
Chair of San Diego Chapter of Water Reuse. Board member San Diego County Water
Authority.



{619) 245-4550
kwordenO  mail.com

Lincoln Acres
CA 91950-7748
United States

PROFILE

Special district board president with two decades of governance leadership,
fiscal discipline, and intergovernmental collaboration. Experienced in
advancing community safety, ensuring transparent operations, and
representing small district interests in countywide planning and service
delivery.

EXPERIENCE

Lower Sweetwater Fire Protection District (LSFPD) — Board President
(2004 - Term Expiring December 6, 2028)

Led board oversight of fire protection and emergency medical services for
Lincoln Acres through contract with National City Fire Department.

Chaired monthly public meetings, ensuring transparency, accountability, and
meaningful community participation.

Maintained structurally balanced budgets, formal reserve policies, and timely
audits; resolved historical compliance issues to strengthen fiscal
accountability.

Coordinated with San Diego County Supervisors and departments to align
fire protection priorities and support community risk reduction initiatives.

Represented Lincoln Acres residents in county-level forums and LAFCO
processes, advocating for small district needs in regional service delivery
and boundary planning.

Collaborated with regional agencies and service providers to ensure
operational continuity, effective emergency response, and long-term service
sustainability.

FISCAL ACCOMPLISHMENTS
Maintained structurally balanced budgets and formal reserve policies.

Ensured transparency through public posting of budgets and audits.

Resolved historical compliance issues, strengthening accountability.



INTERGOVERNMENTAL & COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

Partnered with San Diego County Supervisors and departments to secure
funding, align fire protection priorities, and strengthen community risk
reduction initiatives.

Represented Lincoln Acres residents in county-level discussions, ensuring
small district needs were considered in broader service delivery planning.

Chaired open public meetings and maintained transparent communications,
reinforcing trust and accountability between the district and the community.

Collaborated with regional agencies and service providers to maintain
operational continuity and improve emergency response coordination.

PROFESSIONAL BACKGROUND
President, NDIA San Diego Chapter - Led board governance and industry-
government collaboration initiatives.

Business Development Manager, Nova Power Solutions, Inc. (2006-Present)
Retired Master Chief Petty Officer, U.S. Navy (1981-2006)

EDUCATION
University of Redlands - Business Studies (coursework completed toward
B.S., 2012)

AB1234 Ethics & Brown Act training (current)

SKILLS
Executive Advising & Policy Guidance - Principal advisor to senior leadership
on workforce readiness, organizational policy, and community well-being.

Governance & Regulatory Oversight -~ Experienced in special district
governance, compliance, and service delivery review.

Community & Stakeholder Engagement - Skilled in representing diverse
groups, bridging leadership decisions with community impact.

Cross-Functional Collaboration - Adept at building consensus across
agencies, partners, and stakeholders.

AWARDS

Meritorious Service Medal - Recognized for executive-level leadership as
Senior Enlisted Advisor to a U.S. Navy Carrier Strike Group and Senior
Cryptologic Manager for Naval Surface Forces.

Navy and Marine Corps Commendation Medal (5 awards) - Sustained
excellence in leadership, policy advising, and workforce development.

NDIA Certificate of Recognition - Honored for fostering government-industry
collaboratior as Chair of the Navy Gold Coast Conference.



Lindsay Leahy, PE

General Manager - Valley Center Municipal Water District

SUMMARY

Accomplished water industry professional with over sixteen years of experience in the planning,
design, construction, and operation of complex water, wastewater, and recycled water systems.
Oversees comprehensive utility operations, including water distribution, wastewater collection and
treatment, and water recycling programs serving 30,000 residents. Recognized for fostering
collaboration, advancing innovation, and championing sustainable resource management within
the public utilities sector.

EXPERIENCE

General Manager -~ Valley Center Municipal Water District
November 2025 ~ Present

Oversee all functions of the District, including Finance, Customer Service, Human Resources,
Operations, and Engineering. Responsible for implementing Board directives, coordinating District
operations, and maintaining an efficient, professional, and collaborative work environment.

Deputy General Manager - Santa Margarita Water District
February 2025 - October 2025

Oversaw all operations, engineering, and planning functions of the District, including maintenance
and construction, water and recycled water treatment and distribution, and wastewater collection,
treatment, and disposal serving over 200,000 residents and 74,000 customers. Directed capital
project development and implementation while modernizing District policies and procedures.

Water Utilities Director / Principal Water Engineer - City of Oceanside
October 2018 - February 2025

Oversaw all water, wastewater, solid waste, and recycling services for the City, serving 180,000
residents and over 44,000 customers. Managed water, wastewater, recycled water, and advanced
water treatment operations, including distribution, indirect potable reuse, and waste collection and
disposal. Directed and managed a five-year, $500 million Capital Improvements Program.
Responsible for utility rate setting and for fostering a productive and positive work environment
for more than 170 employees across the three utilities.

Senior / Associate / Assistant Engineer - City of Carlsbad
November 2015 - October 2018

Served as Project Manager overseeing up to five concurrent projects, managing budgets, contracts,
and project delivery. Coordinated design, construction, and startup activities with consultants and
Operations staff. Ensured technical quality for design projects valued up to $15 million and
mentored staff to enhance technical expertise and project execution efficiency.



Engineering Manager - Everest Solar System
November 2012 — November 2015

Established and managed the Engineering, Research & Development, and Project Management
departments. Led the development of a commercial rooftop product line that reduced component
costs and installation time.

Project Engineer - J.R. Filanc Construction Company, Inc.
June 2009 - November 2012

Managed construction of $40-$160M water and wastewater treatment plant projects, overseeing
field operations including job cost control, scheduling, and safety compliance.

EDUCATION & CERTIFICATIONS

e Master of Public Administration, San Diego State University - 2019

e Bachelor of Science, Mechanical Engineering, California State University, Chico - 2009

e Water Management & Leadership Certificate, California State University, San Marcos - 2018
e Professional Engineer, CA - License No. M36974

LEADERSHIP & BOARD SERVICE

e San Diego County Water Authority Board - Director
e  Audit Committee
e  Engineering and Operations Committee
¢  Administration and Finance Committee
e  Water Planning and Environmental Committee
e  Legislative and Public Qutreach Committee
e  Board Governance Workgroup

e South Orange County Wastewater Authority Engineering Committee - Member

e LAFCO San Diego County Water Authority Municipal Service Review Working Group - Member



—

Ib rtC. u, P.E.,

ua i ication Summa

Over 30 years of progressively responsible and successful utility management, engineering and planning
experiences and including 25 years in leadership and senior management capacity overseeing in-house
staff, consultants, and contractors. In my current position as the General Manager with Santa Fe
Irrigation District, | am responsible for interfacing with elected officials, regulatory agencies, and other
public agencies. | am also responsible for, under directions of the Board of Directors, plans, organizes,
directs and reviews the overall activities and operations of the District. Receives policy direction from
the Board of Directors and advises and assists the Board of Directors. Represents the District’s interests
at local, regional, State and Federal levels, and coordinates activities with outside agencies and the
community.

¢ M.B.A. (2004), San Diego State University, San Diego, CA
¢ M.S. Civil Engineering (1994), University of Colorado, Boulder, CO
¢ B.S,, Civil Engineering (1992}, California Polytechnic State University, Pomona, CA

General Manager | March 19’ to present | Under policy direction from Board of Directors,
Santa Fe Irrigation District directly responsible for plans, organizes, hires
Rancho Santa Fe, CA staff, directs and reviews the daily operations
of the District to ensure District’s mission is
fulfilled.
Director of Engineering and Planning July 09’ to March 19’ Member of the executive team for PDMWD.
Padre Dam Municipal Water District Successful re-organized the department to
Santee, CA improved efficiency and effectiveness that has
received numerous project awards.
Engineering Manager Sep ’00 to July 09’ Directly responsible for capital project
Padre Dam Municipal Water District implementation and increased the quality,
Santee, CA timeliness, responsiveness, efficiency, and
overall production of my working group.
Senior Engineer Apr'98 to Sep ‘00 Project manager/engineer consistently
Dudek & Associates completed assignments/ projects on time and
Encinitas, CA within budget. Maintained strong working
relationships with public agencies and clients.
Project Manager/Engineer July '94 to Apr ‘98 Project engineer in charge of civil works for
Tetra Tech, Inc. various projects.

San Diego, CA



Key Accomplishments

»  Provide leadership, under policy directions from the Board of Directors, to develop a fair and
equitable rate structure that would fit the unique and diverse consumption profile of Santa Fe
Irrigation District.

= Key member of the senior executive team that developed a new strategic plan that focused on
self-reliance and increased independence from imported water supply, more local control of
wastewater treatment services, and strengthen financial position.

= Provided strategic leadership in updating the organization’s strategy plan and champion for key
initiatives of creating asset management plan and developing local water supply and resources.

= Act as the general manager in the absence of the general manager as required.

= Direct the implementation of the East County Advanced Water Purification Program, a
partnership between Padre Dam, County of San Diego, Helix Water District and City of El Cajon.
This is a $500M surface water augmentation program, one of the first in the State of California.
This regional water supply program will produce up to 30% of East San Diego County drinking
water supply locally and provide long term price certainty and enhance local control for the
program partners. To date, this program has received approximately $40M in grants and over
$101M in State Revolving Fund and received regulatory approvals. Served as media
spokesperson for interviews and conducted key elected official briefings.

= Served on the statewide advisory panel for the State Water Resources Control Board and
Division of Drinking Water to investigate and report to the Legislature on the feasibility of
developing uniform water recycling criteria for direct potable reuse and reservoir
augmentation.

= Member of Regional Advisory Committee for the San Diego Integrated Regional Water
Management Program. Work closely with Regional Water Management Group to develop
criteria for prioritizing projects for IRWM grant programs for the region.

= Successfully negotiated multiple agreements with County of San Diego, City of El Cajon and Helix
Water District to financially participate in determining the feasibility of the East County
Advanced Water Purification Program.

= Directed and successfully negotiated Water Service Agreement in conjunction with the San
Diego County Water Authority and Metropolitan Water District of Southern California with the
Sycuan Band of Kumeyaay, first water service agreement to the tribal government in San Diego.

= Served as the co-chair for the Technical Advisory Committee for the Metropolitan Wastewater
Joint Power Authority. Review budgets and monitor progress to ensure the regional wastewater
treatment and transportation facilities are operated in an efficient and cost effective manner.

= Successfully negotiated with the Regional Water Quality Control Board for the renewal of the
NPDES permit(s) for the Stoyer Wastewater Treatment Facility {three cycles). This is the only
remaining inland live stream discharge permit in San Diego County.

= Successfully negotiated $16M of refund from the City of San Diego, Metropolitan Wastewater
Department for overbilling of wastewater treatment.

= Directed the implementation of the Advanced Water Purification Demonstration Project.
Received $3M in Department of Water Resources grant {Prop. 50) in constructing an advanced
water treatment demonstration facility. Project received state-wide recognitions and regulatory
approvals for final implementation from the Division of Drinking Water.



Pro essional ivlem erships, Registration, Certifications

*

® & & & O O o

Registered Professional Engineer - Civil (CA 59053)

Committee member, San Diego Local Agency Formation Commission {LAFCO), Special District
Advisory Committee

Past President, California Special District Association (CSDA), San Diego Section

Member, American Water Works Association (AWWA)

Committee member, CA-NV AWWA, Advanced Water Operator Certification Committee
Member, American Society of Civil Engineers (ASCE)

Committee member, Water and Environment Committee, ASCE region 9

Member, Water Reuse Association

Member, Water Environment Federation & California Water Environmental Association

ecent Professional Recogn ons, Publications, nd

2016 Leadership Award, Water Environmental Federation, White House Water Summit.

Lau, A., Huston, P. & Pecson, B., 2016. Padre Dam's Advanced Water Purification Program:
Building a Better Future Inspired by Creativity from the Past. J. - Am. Water Works Assoc.,
108:11:68.

WateReuse California (2015) “Breaking IPR Boundaries at Padre Dam’s Advanced Water
Purification Demonstration Project” by Brian Pecson, Los Angeles, CA, in March, 2015.

AWWA Annual Conference and Exhibition (2015) “Pushing the Boundaries of IPR at Padre Dam’s
Advanced Water Purification Demonstration Project”, Anaheim, CA, in June, 2015.

IWA International Symposium: Potable Reuse (2016) “Reducing the Need for the Environmental
Buffer: Results from Padre Dam’s Advanced Water Purification Testing”, Long Beach, CA, in
January, 2016.

WateReuse California (2016) “Dual Pursuit of Surface Water Augmentation and Groundwater
Recharge at Padre Dam”, Santa Rosa, CA, in March, 2016.

WateReuse Symposium (2016) “Maximizing Product Water through Brine Minimization”,
Tampa, FL in September, 2016.

AWWA California-Nevada Annual Fall Conference (2016) “Maximizing Product Water through
Brine Minimization”, San Diego, CA in October, 2016.

WateReuse California (2017) “Maximizing Disinfection Infrastructure for Both Potable and Non-
Potable Reuse”, San Diego, CA, in March, 2017.

IWA International Conference on Water Reclamation and Reuse (2017) “Modifying Existing
Infrastructure to Maximize Pathogen Control for Potable and Non-Potable Reuse”, Long Beach,
CAin July, 2017.

WateReuse Symposium (2017) “Potable Reuse Case Study for Full-scale Predesign of RO with
95% Recovery”, Phoenix, AZ in September, 2017.



Mr. Lau has served as the General Manager for Santa Fe Irrigation District since January, 2019.
Mr. Lau holds a bachelor's degree in civil engineering from Cal Poly Pomona, a master's in civil
engineering from the University of Colorado (Boulder), and an MBA from San Diego State
University. Mr. Lau has over 30 years of experience in the water/wastewater industry.
Previously, Mr. Lau served as Director of Engineering and Planning at Padre Dam MWD, where
he was responsible for planning, engineering, capital improvements, and contract negotiations.
Mr. Lau also oversaw the East County Advanced Water Purification Program, a new local and
reliable water supply project for East San Diego County. Prior to Padre Dam, Mr. Lau worked at

various private engineering consulting firms focusing on water and wastewater projects.

Mr. Lau currently serve on San Diego Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO), Special
District Advisory Committee. Mr. Lau also serves on the American Society of Civil Engineers,
region 9, Water and Environment Committee, member of the San Diego Integrated Regional
Water Management Regional Advisory Committee. He was a member of the Advisory Group on
Feasibility of Developing Criteria for Direct Potable Reuse and served as the vice-chair for the
Technical Advisory Committee for the Metro Wastewater JPA. Mr. Lau also received leadership
award in 2016 from Water Environmental Federation. He is also past president for San Diego

chapter of California Special District Association.



Kimberly A. Thorner, Esq.
General anager
Olivenhain ! unicipal Water District

October 30, 2025

It is with great interest that | submit the attached nomination for the Special District Representative for the
San Diego Local Agency Formation Commission Special District Advisory Committee. | am the General
Manager of Olivenhain Municipal Water District (OMWD) where | have served for the last 29 years. OMWD
provides water, wastewater services, recycled water, hydroelectricity, and park/recreation facilities on
behalf of approximately 87,000 customers over 48 square miles in northern San Diego County.

| currently serve as Chair of the San Diego Local Agency Formation Commission’s Special Districts Advisory
Committee (SDAC) and have served on the SDAC for the last 17 years where | have participated and
provided input and guidance on dozens of important LAFCO issues during my tenure and have spoken at
many LAFCO hearings on behalf of the SDAC.

I have served on WateReuse California’s Board of Trustees for several past terms along with six terms as a
member of the Association of California Water Agencies’ Federal Affairs Committee. Previously, | was
OMWD’s representative to San Diego County Water Authority, serving on the Audit, Administrative and
Finance, and Engineering and Operations committees. | also served as Project Manager for the David C.
McCollom Water Treatment Plant and the Olivenhain Water Storage Project.

Throughout my tenure in the water industry, | have proven to be thoughtful, forthright, solution-oriented,
and collaborative when tackling complex issues that affect multiple stakeholders. It would be my honor to
continue serving on LAFCO’s SDAC and | respectfully ask for your support and vote.

Sincerely,

Kimberly A. Thorner, Esq.
General Manager
Olivenhain Municipal Water District



Kimberly A. Thorner, Esq.
kthorner@olivenhain.com

PUBLIC AGENCY WORK EXPERIENCE

Olivenhain Municipal Water District, Encinitas, CA 2006- Current

General Manager - Under my tenure, OMWD became a AAA rated agency, with rates in the lower half in the county, a
customer satisfaction survey rating of 92% in 2022, a Platinum Accreditation from Special Districts Leadership Foundation,
and the employees have voted OMWD Best Place to Work several times.

Olivenhain Municipal Water District, Encinitas, CA 2002 - 2006
Assistant General Manager

Olivenhain Municipal Water District, Encinitas, CA 1896 - 2002
Project Manager - Constructed World’s Largest Immersed Membrane Treatment Plant at that time; Served on Project Team for
the Olivenhain Dam

Thomas Jefferson School of Law, San Diego, CA - Juris Doctorate, May 1995
Editor for "The Restater" Law School Newspaper - 1993-1995
Teaching Assistant, Legal Analysis -1993-1994
President-Student Bar Association -1994-1995
Academic Chairperson-Student Bar Association - 1993-1994
American Jurisprudence Award - Fall 1992
American Jurisprudence Award - Spring 1993
West Publishing "Corpus Juris Secundum Award" - 1992-1993

University of Colorado, Boulder, CO - Bachelor of Arts in Political Science, May 1992
Secondary Emphasis - German
Active member of CU Law Club; CU Election Poll Manager -1991
Interned with Former State Legislator and then County Commissioner, Sandy Hume - 1991

AQHIEMEMENIS_&.EBQEES.SIQNALB_QABD_S_(L&IJM)

Certified Special District Administrator from the Special District Leadership Foundation (2007 — present)

- 2019 Special District Leadership Academy (Governance Foundations)

- Licensed Attorney

- WateReuse California Board of Directors (2018-2024)

- 2015 California WateReuse Advocate of the Year

- Founding member and lead for the North San Diego County WateReuse Coalition (2010 to present)

- Association of California Water Agencies Federal Affairs Committee (2006 — 2021)

- San Diego Local Agency Formation Commission Special Districts Advisory Committee (2008 to present) & Chair
(2014 to present)

- Board of Directors of the San Diego North Economic Development Council (2007 -2020)

- Integrated Regional Water Management Regional Advisory Committee {2008 to present)

- Kenneth Miller Founders Award Recipient — Water for People {(2025)

- Countless presentations in the community, at Senate and Assembly hearings, & regulatory meetings

- Water for People (San Diego Core Committee) & Emcee at Annual Lunch (2013 to present)
- Lead Planner and Host for the North County Water Summit with the SDNEDC (2015)

- Board of Management — Magdalena Ecke YMCA (2007 - 2017)

- Board of Directors (President) — Arroyo Vista Homeowner’s Association (2009 — 2023)

- Classroom Volunteer — Olivenhain Pioneer Elementary - 2012 to 2018

- Hands On San Diego Volunteer



David C. McQuead

2375 Rock View Glen, Escondido, Ca. 92026
Office (858) 756-6001 Cell (858) 775-7602

mc~uead‘@rsf-fire.or~

Dave McQuead, serving as the Fire Chief for the Rancho Santa Fe Fire Protection
District with currently 22 years of experience in the fire service and 10 years of
experience as a self-employed licensed landscape contractor and designer for
commercial and residential projects.

Education:
e Columbia Southern University - Bachelor’s degree, Fire Administration. 2018
¢ Rio Hondo College - Associate’s degree, Fire Science. 2009
e Palomar College - Fire Academy and Paramedic School. 2001

Professional Fire Ex erience:

e Fire Chief, Rancho Santa Fe FPD 2022 - Present
e Deputy Chief — Operations, Rancho Santa Fe FPD 2018 —2021

e Battalion Chief, Rancho Santa Fe FPD 2015-2018

e Fire Captain, Rancho Santa Fe FPD 2010-2015

e Fire Engineer, Rancho Santa Fe FPD 2006 — 2009

e Firefighter/Paramedic, Rancho Santa Fe FPD 2003 — 2005

Prafeccinnal Fvy arience:

e Contractor, McQuead Landscaping (C-27 License # 750923) 1998 — 2003
e Contractor, McQuead and Gunn Landscaping 1995 — 1997

Professional Involvement:

e SANDAG - Public Safety Committee 2022 — Present
e LAFCO - Special Districts Advisory Committee 2022 — Present
e San Diego County Fire Chiefs Association -Vice President 2022 - 2023

¢ North Zone Coordinator — XSD Op Area 2023 — Present
e North Zone Chiefs Officers — Co-Chair 2023 — Present
¢ San Diego County Fire Chiefs Association — President 2024 — Present

2025



La Mesa, CA 91942

www.OtayMark.com | OtayMark@cox.net
Cell Phone 619-778-3800

WATER INDUSTRY - ELECTED OFFICE

2005 - Present = Otay Water District Spring Valley, CA
Board Member, Treasurer, Former President & Vice-President

¢ Oversee a public agency with $150M annual budget, providing water and sewer and recycled water to
242,000 customers in a 126 square mile service area. Represent all of the District sewer ratepayers.
Chair of Finance and Administration Committee. Provide guidance to finance department staff for annual
budget cycle and instrumental in Board audits of District finances.

Former Head of Labor Negations Committee.

Former Chair of Engineering Committee. Fully engaged in oversight of key District CIP projects.

Chief advocate at Board level for continuing development of District strategic plan and benchmarking
study, including advocating for peer review as presented by AWWA,

Instrumental in securing a feasibility study to bring recycled water to northemn service area of the District.
Public speaking on expansion of recycling water to the media, including local television.

¢ Represented District to Water Reuse Association, attending local, state and national level conferences.
¢ Was instrumental in the recent introduction of live streaming of Otay Board meetings.

1997 - Present  San Diego Metro Wastewater Joint Powers Authority San Diego, CA

Board Member/Former Chair/lLongest serving Board Member

¢ A joint-powers authority comprised of 15 other cities and districts that pay for 35% of the upkeep and
capital costs of the City of San Diego’s regional wastewater facilities, with 2.2 million customers in a 450
square mile service area, treating 180 million gallons a day.

» Former Member of the Independent Rates Oversight Committee (IROC) for City of San Diego.

o Former member of the Finance Committee, that reviewed and advised on City of San Diego Bond
offerings affecting Municipal and Metro systems (approx. $1.2B placed - May 2009)

o Former head of Strategic Ad-Hoc Committee charged with shaping vision and mission for the
organization, along with a plan to achieve those goals.

¢ Assisted in development of a communications plan and design of organization website.

¢ Participant in American Assembly Il process in 2005 that endorsed Indirect Potable Reuse.

2025 — Present  San Diego County Water Authority San Diego, CA
Board Member
» A 34-member board representing 22 water agencies and cities with a $1.8B budget for FY 24-25

o Member of the Engineering & Operations, and Water Planning & Environmental Committee’s

2005 - 2025 Water Conservation Garden El Cajon, CA

President/Board Member

¢ Oversaw a joint-powers authority comprised of six public agencies creating an award winning five-acre
display area that showcases water conservation to the general public and landscaping professionals.

1996 - 2001 Padre Dam Municipal Water District Santee, CA

President, Treasurer, Board Member

¢ Oversaw public agency with $40M annual budget, providing water, sewer and recycled water to 135,000
customers in an 85 square mile area.

¢ While President of the Board the Board (1998), championed a Competitive Challenge program that was
instituted comparing the agency to best management practices of the private sector. Has saved Padre
Dam ratepayers $1,800,000 annually to date.

¢ Represented Santee Lakes area and helped develop a Master Plan for 190-acre Santee Lakes Park &
Campground, allowing it to become self-supporting and enhance recreational benefits for the community.

+ Assisted in negotiations with employee bargaining unit in securing a new labor agreement.

1



WATER INDUSTRY

Council of Water Utilities — Former President
e Brought speakers on regional water issues to regular lunch meetings

e Combined it with local Chapter of the CSDA in 2024

Water Conservation Garden

¢ Led formation and recruitment of Board Members that led to creation of Friends of the Garden
foundation to assist in fundraising for the operation of the facility. This entity become the management
structure for the Garden effective January 2011, which was disbanded in 2024. Our goal when we
formed it was to achieve at least half of our funding from outside the industry, which the Garden did
achieve.

« Obtained signage on Jamacha Road through my political connection with former Senator Dennis
Hollingsworth. The Garden had previously been rebuffed by Caltrans who has jurisdiction on road.

¢ Started and maintained their Facebook site, which | turned over to them, as well helping start other
social media sites.

Water-Wise AA Degree program/Cuyamaca College

o During my tenure (4 years) as President of the Water Conservation Garden, | was the chief advocate
getting a new Water-Wise AA Degree program implemented in conjunction with Horticulture Department
at Cuyamaca College. Worked with the College and SDCWA staff to achieve it.

o The program is a model for junior colleges throughout the state.

YesToTap on Twitter

¢ Developed and maintain the leading Tap Water advocacy site in San Diego County.
¢ Averages 3,000+ impressions per month. Followers throughout U.S. and world.

¢ Developed a tapwater pledge for organizations.

¢ Goal is to develop website and other advocacy methods.

Otay Mark

+ Have the leading water Twitter site (non SDCWA) in San Diego averaging approximately 30,000 views
per month with a high of approximately 100,000+. Followed by opinion leaders throughout the state.

¢ Leading advocate of SDCWA’s member agencies on their specific accomplishments.

o Also have a website, with Facebook, Instagram, YouTube and Flickr.

Television & Media

e Have appeared in interview format on local news on water and wastewater issues

» Have relationships with local print, online and television reporters

¢ Was guest curator for a week on Voice of San Diego’s Instagram page for water issues

Political

e Have advised locally elected officials on water issues, including current Supervisor Joel Anderson, when
first elected to Padre Dam, prior to higher office.

e Have extensive connections with locally elected officials throughout San Diego County.

¢ Have helped develop social media strategy for locally elected officials.

Social Media Instruction

¢ Taught social media with a focus on Twitter to agencies at the San Diego Chapter of the California
Special Districts Association. Analyzed all water agencies for their social media effectiveness.

o Started the Chapter’s Facebook and Twitter sites.

¢ Advised agencies on areas of improvement including SDCWA.

Water & Wastewater Technology Program
¢ Completed Water Distribution Systems ~ WWTR 130 — Grade A
o Completed Wastewater Collection Systems — WWTR 132 — Grade A

2



SPECIAL DISTRICTS ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEMBER
ELECTION BALLOT and VOTE CERTIFICATION

VOTE FOR ONLY SEVEN NOMINEES
* Mike Sims (Bonita-Sunnyside Fire Protection District) [X]
* James Gordon (Deer Springs Fire Protection District) [x]
Erica Wolski (Ramona Municipal Water District) [ ]
* Jack Bebee (Fallbrook Public Utility District) [X]
Kurt Worden (Lower Sweetwater Fire Protection District) [ 1]
Lindsay Leahy (Valley Center Municipal Water District) [X]
% Albert C. Lau (Santa Fe Irrigation District) [X]
* Kimberly Thorner (Olivenhain Municipal Water District) [Xx]
* Dave McQuead (Rancho Santa Fe Fire Protection District) [X]
* Mark Robak (Otay Water District) [ ]
Write-Ins
[ ]
[]

As presiding officer or his/her delegated alternate as provided by the governing board, | hereby certify that | cast the

votesof the  Valle Center Munici al Water District for the Special Districts Advisory Committee election.
(Name of Independent Special District)

(Signature)

Enrico P. Ferro
(Print Name)

Board President
(Print Title)

(Date)

Please note: The order in which the candidates’ names are listed was determined by random selection.

Return this Election Ballot and Vote Certification form to:
San Diego LAFCO
Erica Sellen
2550 Fifth Avenue, Suite 725
San Diego, CA 92103
Email: Erica.Sellen@sdcounty.ca.gov

* Incumbent member



December 1, 2025

TO: Honorable President and Board of Directors
FROM: Lindsay Leahy, General Manager

SUBJECT: WATER USE EFFICIENCY AND WATER LOSS PERFORMANCE
STANDARDS UPDATE

PURPOSE:

To provide the Board of Directors with an update on the District's implementation and
compliance status of the State Water Resource Control Board’'s (State Board) Water Use
Efficiency and Water Loss Performance Standards.

SUMMARY:
Le islative and Re ulato Back round

In 2009, the Water Conservation Act of 2009 was adopted and required a 20% statewide per
capita urban water use reduction by 2020 (SBx7 7).

In 2015, Senate Bill 555 was passed and signed into law requiring water suppliers to monitor
and report water loss through validated water loss audits beginning October 2017 and for
regulatory Water Loss Performance Standards to be developed by July 2020.

in 2016, after the severe drought lasting from 2012 through 2016, then-Governor Brown issued
Executive Order B-37-16, which established the goal of “making water conservation a
California way of life” and directed the state to develop water use targets as part of a permanent
long-term water conservation framework.

In 2018, Senate Bill 606 and Assembly Bill 1668 were passed and signed into law, which
established the long-term water conservation framework. This framework required the
Department of Water Resources (DWR) and State Board to work together to develop urban
water use efficiency targets for water suppliers to meet (Urban Water Use Objectives).

On December 24, 2021, the State Board initiated the formal rulemaking process for the Water
Loss Performance Standards and the final regulations were adopted by the State Board on
August 19, 2022.

On August 18, 2023, the State Board initiated the formal rulemaking process for the “Making
Conservation a California Way of Life” regulations (Regulatory Framework) and after various
draft proposals, the final regulations were adopted by the State Board on July 3, 2024.

Water Use Efficienc Standards

The Regulatory Framework outlines specific District-level water use objectives and compliance
requirements related to Commercial, Industrial and Institutional (Cll) customer water use and

1



classification. The Urban Water Use Objective (UWUO) is a supplier-specific water budget that
is the sum of three water use efficiency standards, which include residential indoor water use,
residential outdoor water use, Cll landscapes with dedicated irrigation meters and supplier
system real water loss as established by Water Loss Performance Standards. The District’s
UWUO, based on historic demands, is currently 29,343 acre-feet per year.

Beginning January 1, 2025, and by January 1 each year thereafter, water suppliers are
required to calculate the UWUO for the previous year and submit a detailed report to the State
Board. The District’s Fiscal Year 2024 UWUO Report was submitted on December 27, 2024.

Water Use Efficienc Com liance

Attached is the State Board’s April 22, 2025, FY 2023-2024 Urban Water Use Objective
(UWUO) Report compliance summary entitled “Conservation as a Way of Life” Compliance
Summary: Valley Center Municipal Water District’ (Compliance Summary) prepared for the
District. The Compliance Summary identifies that the District is in compliance with the
Regulatory Framework requirements for the FY 2023-2024 UWUO Report.

The State Board developed and distributed Compliance Summaries providing water suppliers
with a high-level summary of compliance with the FY 2023-2024 UWUQ Report and includes
information on whether the District's UWUO for FY 2023-2024 was met, identifies data error
flags for specific sections and details the calculated objectives (using current standards as well
as future standards) that are unique to each supplier. The State Board will provide a
Compliance Summary for each reporting year moving forward.

An option to resubmit the UWUO Report with corrected data was available, however, staff
reviewed the Compliance Summary and determined there was no need to resubmit the District
UWUO Report as the only identified “data errors” were UWUO Report sections that do not
require compliance until June 30, 2027.

Formal compliance with the UWUO began July 1, 2025. The District will be formally assessed
for compliance with the UWUO occurring July 1, 2025 to June 30, 2026, as reported in the FY
2025-2026 UWUO Report due January 1, 2027.

Cll Performance Measures Im lementation Status

In addition to the UWUO, water suppliers must comply with a set of Cll Performance Measures
intended to enable customer water-usage benchmarking per twenty-two (22) Cll classification
categories, as well as establish and implement sector specific best management practices for
Cll indoor and outdoor water use. Water suppliers must comply with the Cll Performance
Measures even if the UWUO has been met.

During staff review of Cll Performance Measures requirements, staff identified District
Commercial Agriculture and Commercial Agriculture/Domestic(Non-Certified Ag) customers
who were not enrolled in the Permanent Special Agriculture Water Rate program (Certified Ag)
had been incorrectly assigned to a Commercial Class Code. These customers have now been
reclassified into the appropriate Non-Certified Ag class codes. Staff is also in the process of
reclassifying all Cll customers into the required twenty-two (22) Cll classification categories.
This work is on track to be completed well before the regulatory deadline of June 30, 2027.



Water Loss Performance Standards

The Water Loss Performance Standards require water suppliers to reduce real losses (physical
leaks and breaks in the distribution system) and properly manage apparent losses (metering
inaccuracies, data handling errors, theft) in urban water systems and submit an annual
validated Water Loss Audit to the State Board. Additionally, the water loss regulations require
submission of questionnaires related to data quality, pressure management, asset
management, and other system characteristics.

While initial compliance with the Water Loss Performance Standards begins in 2028, the first
compliance period consists of the Water Loss Audits submitted for the Fiscal Years 2025, 2026
and 2027. The Real Water Loss Standard must be achieved no later than January 1, 2028, as
reflected in the District’'s annual Water Loss Audit for 2027. After 2028, compliance is assessed
every third year based on the average of the three most recent annual Water Loss Audits.

Real Loss

The State Board established a Real Loss Standard calculated using an economic model
specific to the District's system characteristics, including size, length of mains, pressure profile,
cost of producing water, etc. The Real Loss Standard is volumetric and generally set in gallons
per connection per day (GPCD). However, due to the nature of the District's system, the
District's Real Loss Standard is 1,448.6 gallons per mile per day (GPMD) of pipeline versus
GPCD like most other suppliers. Water suppliers in more rural areas with long mains relative
to the number of connections are more likely to have a GPMD standard.

A arant | nee

The District's Apparent Loss Standard is 57.4 GPCD. The regulation requires Apparent Loss
to be reported in GPCD because apparent losses scale more directly with meters and
connections versus main lengths. The two metrics are intentionally in different units as they
measure different things about the system.

The Apparent Loss Standard is the baseline Apparent Loss plus an allowable variance of 2
GPCD above or below the Apparent Loss Standard. If the supplier exceeds the allowable
variation, an Apparent Loss inventory must be submitted to the State Board.

Break Re ist

The Water Loss Performance Standards additionally require water suppliers to submit a
registry of pipe breaks, repair events and estimated water losses (Break Registry) to the State
Board. The initial reporting period for the Break Registry covers the period of 2025 to 2027 and
is due on January 1, 2029. The State Board has released draft Break Registry Specifications
(Draft Specifications) outlining proposed data collection requirements.

The District has substantial concerns with the Draft Specifications, particularly the inclusion of
data requirements that exceed the statutory intent and the potential security risks associated
with publishing operational details and pipeline location information in a publicly accessible
database.



The District participated in the development of comments regarding the Draft Specifications
submitted to the State Board by the San Diego County Water Authority (Water Authority) and
the Association of California Water Agencies (ACWA). The District will also be submitting a
letter to the State Board outlining concerns regarding the Draft Specifications. Staff will
continue to monitor and advocate for appropriate and reasonable data collection requirements.

While awaiting the final Break Registry Specifications, staff are implementing data collection
methods through CityWorks for the Break Registry and internal uses, such as condition
assessments for CIP planning.

Water Loss Com liance

As part of the Water Authority’s Regional Water Loss Control Workgroup, the Water Authority
sponsored the development of a Compliance Summary for each member agency to plan for
compliance and identify appropriate water loss and compliance strategies. The Compliance
Summary evaluated the likelihood of Water Loss Performance Standard exceedance. The
Compliance Summary included the following agency specific assessment areas:

Compliance status;

Year over year Water Loss Audit magnitude and volatility;

Likelihood of exceeding Real Water Loss Performance Standard;

Likelihood of exceeding Apparent Water Loss Performance Standard; and
Potential impacts of Water Loss Audits on Urban Water Use Objective compliance.

Current Compliance Status In Compliance
Real Loss Magnitude Low to Medium
Real Loss Volatility High
Likelihood of Real Loss Standard Exceedance in a Single Year

Based on Historic Audits (does not include +370 GPMD buffer 22.2%

that will be included in 2031 com liance -eriod

Real Loss Compliance Result Based on Last Three Audits
(single year)

Real Loss Compliance Result Based on Last Three Audits
(average, does include the +370 GPMD buffer.)

Real Loss Impact on UWUO Budget (if CY2023/FY2024 Water

In Compliance

In Compliance

Audit used in UWUO reporting) Net Gain
Likelihood of Apparent Loss Standard Exceedance in a Single
Year Based on Historic Audits (includes an allowed variation of 100%

2 GPCD

Additionally, the Compliance Summary identified opportunities for improvement in Water Loss
Audit data validity grades, which impact the overall scoring metrics in the Water Loss Audits
submitted to the State Board annually.



Com liance Summa Recommendations

The Water Loss Compliance Summary provided the District four areas of focus to improve and
maintain compliance with the Water Loss Performance Standards:

Monitor Compliance with a specific focus on background and reported leakage;
Data Improvement;

Billing Data Analysis and Water Consumption Prorating; and

Small Customer Meter Testing Design and Analysis.

poON=

District staff will review and discuss the Compliance Summary recommendations internally and
determine the best approach to ensure processes and programs are in place to remain
compliant.

RECOMMENDATIONS:
No action required, informational item only.

y/ 'é (
Alisa Nichols 1day e
Special Projects and Regulatory eral na
Compliance Manager

Attachments:

Attachment 1 — State Water Resources Control Board “Conservation as a Way of Life”
Compliance Summary



“Conservation as a Way of Life” Compliance Summary:
Valley Center Municipal Water District (ORG 1D 2604)

Report prepared by State Water Resources Control Board staff on April 22, 2025

Report Sections

1 Introduction

2 Report Submittal Date

3 Comparing the Objective to Reported Water Use

4 Summary of Data Quality Flags for Objective Calculations

5 Summary of Data Quality Flags for Variance Calculations
5.1 Residential Indoor Variances . . . . . . . . . . . . . e

5.2 Residential Outdoor Variances . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ...
6 CII Performance Measures
7 Objectives Calculated with Future Standards

A Steps to Calculate Objective



1 Introduction

The “Making Conservation a Way of Life” regulation went into effect on January 1, 2025. Pursuant to the
regulation, urban retail water suppliers are annually required to submit a reporting form to the State Water
Resources Control Board (State Water Board) by January 1 of each year. This document is intended to
provide the supplier with a high-level summary of their compliance with reporting requirements for the fiscal
year 2023-2024, as well as some supplemental information that may help to inform future decision-making.
Sections 2 through 6 summarize the information that the supplier provided on the required reporting form,
as well as data quality issues identified by State Water Board staff. Section 7 calculates what the objective
for fiscal year 2023-2024 would look like if future water use efficiency standards were applied.

Note: This is the first year that water use and water use objectives have been reported and calculated
pursuant to the State Water Board’s regulation, and State Water Board staff are finding errors as review is
ongoing; these errors may impact the values shown throughout this report. Staff are taking steps to identify
the more common errors so that they are corrected by suppliers and no longer recur by the time water use
objective compliance is assessed (i.e., reports submitted January 1, 2027).

This report was generated by the State Water Board on April 22, 2025.

2 Report Submittal Date

The fiscal year 2023-2024 report was due on January 1, 2025. The version reviewed by the State Water
Board was submitted on December 27, 2024.

3 Comparing the Objective to Reported Water Use

The supplier has met its calculated objective for fiscal year 2023-2024.

The final urban water use objective and corresponding reported water use, as calculated in the reporting
workbook, is summarized in Table 1 in both million gallons (MG) and acre-feet (AF). Please note that
compliance with the objective will first be formally assessed for the fiscal year 2025-2026, based on the
report due January 1, 2027.

Quantity Value (MG) Value (AF)
Objective 9,561.4 20,342.7
Actual Water Use 1,501.5 4,607.9

Table 1: Objective and reported water use for fiscal year 2023-2024

If you have any questions about how the objective was calculated, please refer to Appendix A.

4 Summary of Data Quality Flags for Objective Calculations

Table 2 summarizes objective data-related issues as identified by State Water Board staff.



Section Data Checked Reporting Issues Flagged

Objective Calculated Final Volume None
Objective Intermediate Calculations None
Residential Indoor Calculated Volume None
Residential Indoor Required Cells Left Blank None
Residential Outdoor Calculated Volume None
Residential Outdoor LAM Data None
Residential Outdoor Required Cells Left Blank None
Bonus Incentive Calculated Volume None
Water Loss Budget Calculated Volume None
Water Loss Budget Service Connections/ Length of Mains ~ None
Actual Water Use Calculated Volume None
Actual Water Use Missing/ Zero Potable Deliveries None
Actual Water Use Required Cells Left Blank None
Real Water Loss Reported Volume None
Real Water Loss Reporting Method None

Table 2: Data quality flags for the objective-related data

5 Summary of Data Quality Flags for Variance Calculations

Tables 3 and 4 summarize variance data-related issues as identified by State Water Board staff.

5.1 Residential Indoor Variances

Variance Response Reporting Issues Flagged
Evaporative Cooler Variance No None
Seasonal Population Variance No None
Wastewater Provision No None

Table 3: Data quality flags for the residential indoor variances

5.2 Residential Outdoor Variances

Variance Response Reporting Issues Flagged
Livestock Variance No None
Dust Control Variance No None
Residential Agriculture Variance No None
Local Emergency Variance No None
High TDS Variance No None
Ponds and Lakes Variance No None
Existing Trees Variance No None
Climate-Ready Trees Provision No None
Qualifying Landscapes Provision No None

Table 4: Data quality flags for the residential outdoor variances



6 CII Performance Measures

Table 5 summarizes Commercial, Institutional, and Industrial (CII) Performance Measures data-related
issues as identified by State Water Board staff. The table summarizes flags for the CII Classification,
Dedicated Irrigation Meters (DIMs) and In-Lieu Technologies, and Best Management Practices (BMPs)
sections in the reporting form.

Section Data Checked Reporting Issues Flagged

CII Classification (972)  Required Cells Left Blank None

CII Classification (972)  Number of Service Connections None

DIMs and In-Lieu Tech  Large Landscapes Identification No large landscape identification

(973) Method method specified.

DIMs and In-Lieu Tech  Required Cells Left Blank The following required cells were left

(973) blank: B12, B33, B36, B39, B42, B45,
B46

BMPs (974) CII BMP Identification Method No CII BMP customer identification
method specified.

BMPs (974) Multiple 974 methods Multiple 974(c) tabs contain responses:

974(c)(1), 974(c)(1) (10pct or less),
974(c)(2), 974(c)(2) (10pct or less),
974(c)(3), 974(c)(3) (10pct or less)

Table 5: Data quality flags for the CII BMP sections

7 Objectives Calculated with Future Standards

The current and future standards for the urban water use objective calculations are summarized in Table 6.

Year Residential Indoor Residential Outdoor CII DIMs Water Loss Budget
2024 55 GPCD 0.8 LEF Volume as Reported Reported or Budget
2025 47 GPCD 0.8 LEF Volume as Reported Reported or Budget
2030 42 GPCD 0.8 LEF 0.8 LEF (starts in 2028) Budget (starts in 2029)
2035 42 GPCD 0.63 LEF 0.63 LEF Budget

2040 42 GPCD 0.55 LEF 0.45 LEF Budget

Table 6: Summary of the standards that inform objective calculations

Using the standards in Table 6 and the calculation steps explained in Appendix A, as well as the data
provided in the fiscal year 2023-2024 report, State Water Board staff generated objective volume estimates
as shown in Table 7.

Please note that these values do not represent the final calculated budgets for the corresponding years; they
are intended to show what an objective for the fiscal year 2023-2024 would look like if future standards,
rather than the standards in effect at the time, were applied to the reported data. The budget associated
with irrigable-not-irrigated landscapes (INT) is conditionally included or not included in the budget as noted
in the “INT Included?” column of the table (see item 6 in the list of assumptions below for details). Future
water use objectives will be influenced by changes in local climatology, service area population, and square
footage of irrigated landscapes, as well as other data points that are not yet available, such as the square
footage of CII landscapes with DIMs.

Please note that issues with missing or incorrect data from the fiscal year 2023-2024 report may also affect
these values.



Year INI Included? Capped? Objective (MG) Objective (AF) FY 23-24 use lower than objective?

2024 No No 9,561.4 29,342.7 Yes
2025 No No 9,472.3 29,069.4 Yes
2030 No No 9,532.0 29,252.6 Yes
2035 No No 8,889.7 27,281.5 Yes
2040 No No 8,587.4 26,353.9 Yes

Table 7: Objectives calculated using the values and standards specified in Table 6 (with the exception of CII
DIMs due to lack of data; see point 3 below)

These values were generated using the following assumptions:

1. For all years, reported quantities such as population, irrigated residential landscapes, and excluded
demands remained constant.

2. For all years, the volume of requested variances (with the exception of the seasonal population variance,
if applicable) remained the same as the volumes requested in this year’s submitted report.

3. For all years, the CII with DIMs budget was assumed to be equivalent to the reported actual water
use for CII with DIMs, since the landscape area data is not yet available. Variances for CII with DIMs
are therefore assumed to be 0.

4. The water loss budget prior to 2030 was equivalent to the value selected by the reporter in this year’s
submitted report. The water loss budget for 2030 onwards was set as either (A) the water loss budget
calculated using the standards; or (B) the reported water loss, if one or more necessary components
for the water loss budget calculation were missing.

5. The volume of the bonus incentive, if applicable, was capped according to the reported method and
calculated objective for the corresponding year.

6. The 20% INI was included if actual water use exceeded the pre-“capped” objective for the corresponding
year.

7. Before 2040, if the “no backsliding” provision was applicable and the supplier was part of a regional
alliance that met its regional target, the pre-“capped” objective was used in place of the “capped”
objective.



A Steps to Calculate Objective

Table 8 summarizes the initial budget components as determined within the submitted workbook, in both
million gallons (MG) and acre-feet (AF).

Budget Component Equation Symbol Budget Value (MG) Budget Value (AF)
Residential Indoor Rip 602.7 1,849.5

Residential Indoor Variances and Provisions RIv 0.0 0.0

Residential Outdoor ROp 8,810.2 27,037.5
Residential Outdoor Variances and Provisions ROy 0.0 0.0

CII with DIMs DIMp 76.2 233.8

Real Water Loss RWLp 72.3 221.9

Bonus Incentive BI 0.0 0.0

Sum (before INT) OBJ 9,561.4 29,342.7

Table 8: Individual budgets within the objective for fiscal year 2023-2024

The following section describes the step-by-step calculations that produced the final objective for fiscal year
2023-2024. All calculations are shown in million gallons.

1. The initial water use objective (not including INI, the bonus incentive, or the “no backsliding” provision)
was calculated as follows:

Objinit = RIgp+ RIy + ROg + RO, + DIMpg + RWLpg
OBJ;yis = 602.7 4+ 0.0 + 8,810.2 + 0.0 + 76.2 + 72.3
OBJ;pit = 9,561.4 Million Gallons

2. The bonus incentive was reported as 0 or not calculated. Therefore,
OBJ = OBJnit

OBJ = 9,561.4 Million Gallons

If you think the bonus incentive should be greater than 0, please review the values that were entered in the
“Bonus Incentive” tab of the reporting form.

3. The calculated objective was greater than actual water use for FY 2023-2024, so the 20% INI buffer was
not added to the objective.

Volume Equation Symbol Value (MG) Value (AF)
Objective without INT OBJ 9,561.4 99,342.7
Actual Water Use AWU 1,501.5 4,607.9

20 pct INT Volume (if applicable) RO;n; 699.0 2,145.0
Excluded Demands EXCL 232.5 713.6

Table 9: Summary of volumes used in steps 3 and 4 to compare to the SBx7-7 target volume

OBJsp; =0OBJ
OBJapy =9,561.4 Million Gallons

4. The “no backsliding” provision was assessed.



SBx7-7 Component Equation Symbol Value (MG) Value (AF)

SBx7-7 Target Volume SBXy 15,504.6 47,581.8
Process Water PW 0.0 0.0
Indirect Recycled IR 0.0 0.0
Total No Backsliding Volume SBXror 15,504.6 47,581.8

Table 10: Summary of supplier’s individual SBX7-7 target volume, plus any additional demands excluded
from the original target

The sum of the objective plus excluded demands (OF) is as follows:
OF =0BJspj+ EXCL

OF = 9,561.4 + 232.5
OF = 9,793.9 Million Gallons

OF was less than the no backsliding volume, SBX7ror. Therefore, the final objective remains as calculated
in the prior step.
OBJpinarL =OBJapy

OBJpinar = 9,561.4 Million Gallons



SUMMARY OF FORMAL BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING
NOVEMBER 20, 2025

Monthly Treasurer’s Report on Investments and Cash Flow.
The Board noted and filed the monthly Treasurer’s Report

Vote Entitlement Resolution for Calendar Year 2026.

The Board adopted Resolution 2025-19, a resolution of the Board of Directors of the San Diego
County Water Authority, establishing the vote and representative entitlements of each member
agency effective January 1, 2026.

Adopt the Annual Statement of Investment Policy and continue to delegate authority to the
Treasurer; and adopt resolution authorizing the San Diego County Water Authority to join with
other public agencies as a founding member and participant of the California Fixed Income Trust
Joint Powers Authority.

The Board adopted the Annual Statement of Investment Policy, as amended, and continued to
delegate authority to the Treasurer to invest San Diego County Water Authority (Water Authority)
funds for Calendar Year 2026; and

Adopted Resolution No. 2025-20 authorizing the Water Authority to join with other public
agencies as a founding member and participant of California Fixed Income Trust (CalFIT) Joint
Powers Authority and to invest in interest of the trust.

Adoption of Multi-Year Permanent Special Agriculture Water Rate (PSAWR) Funding Program.
The Board directed staff to implement Alternative 2: Cost Based Discount + Supplement Funding
when developing annual rates and charges, beginning with CY27 Rates & Charges.

Professional services contracts for as-needed construction management support services.

The Board awarded professional services contracts, with such non-material modifications as
approved by the General Manager or General Counsel for $5,000,000 each to Arcadis U.S., Inc.;
Kenny Consulting Services, Inc; Psomas; and Richard Brady & Associates, a WHB Company, to
provide as-needed construction management support services, for a period of five years, and
authorized the General Manager, or designee, to execute the contracts.

Professional services contracts for as-needed special inspection, materials testing, and geotechnical
support services.

The Board awarded professional services contracts, with such non-material modifications as
approved by the General Manager or General Counsel for $1,000,000 each to Fenagh, Inc., dba
Fenagh Engineering and Testing and Atlas Technical Consultants (CA), Inc. to provide as-needed
special inspection, materials testing, and geotechnical support services, for a period of five years,
and authorized the General Manager, or designee, to execute the contracts.




10.

Professional services contracts to APPIA Pipeline Solutions, Insight Water Technologies, Inc.,
PICA Pipeline Inspection and Condition Analysis Corp (USA), and Pure Technologies U.S. Inc.,
for non-destructive condition assessment services, as needed.

a. The Board awarded a professional services contract, with such non-material modifications
as approved by the General Manager or General Counsel, to APPIA Pipeline Solutions for
a not-to-exceed amount of $900,000 to provide non-destructive condition assessment
services, as-needed, for a period of three years, with the option to extend up to two
additional years, and authorized the General Manager, or designee, to execute the contract.

b. The Board awarded a professional services contract, with such non-material modifications
as approved by the General Manager or General Counsel, to Insight Water Technologies,
Inc. for a not-to-exceed amount of $900,000 to provide non-destructive condition
assessment services, as-needed, for a period of three years, with the option to extend up to
two additional years, and authorized the General Manager, or designee, to execute the
contract.

C. The Board awarded a professional services contract, with such non-material modifications
as approved by the General Manager or General Counsel, to PICA Pipeline Inspection and
Condition Analysis Corp (USA) for a not-to-exceed amount of $900,000 to provide non-
destructive condition assessment services, as-needed, for a period of three years, with the
option to extend up to two additional years, and authorized the General Manager, or
designee, to execute the contract.

d. The Board awarded a professional services contract, with such non-material modifications
as approved by the General Manager or General Counsel, to Pure Technologies US Inc.
for a not-to-exceed amount of $900,000 to provide non-destructive condition assessment
services, as-needed, for a period of three years, with the option to extend up to two
additional years, and authorized the General Manager, or designee, to execute the
contract.

The Board approved the minutes of the Special Board of Directors Meeting of October 9, 2025,
and the Formal Board of Directors’ meeting of October 23, 2025.

Audit Committee Annual Report.

a. The Board accepted and filed the Audit Committee Annual Report pursuant to the
Administrative Code, Section 2.00.066.
b. The Board accepted and filed the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for fiscal year

ended June 30, 2025.

Board of Director Retirement Resolutions:

Director Matt Vespi, City of San Diego.

The Board adopted Resolution No. 2025-21, a Resolution of the Board of Directors of the San
Diego County Water Authority, honoring Matthew Vespi upon his retirement from the Board of
Directors; and

The Board adopted Resolution No. 2025-22, a Resolution of the Board of Directors of the San
Diego County Water Authority, honoring Lindsay Leahy upon her retirement from the Board of
Directors.




December 1, 2025

TO: Honorable President & Board of Directors

FROM: Lindsay Leahy, General Manager

SUBJECT: DISTRICT MONTHLY STATUS REPORT - OCTOBER 2025

PURPOSE:

To provide the Board with a status report on District operations, activities and projects.

SUMMARY:

For the month ending October 31, 2025, the following reports are presented by the Operations,
Engineering, Finance, Information Technology (I.T.), and General Administration Departments:

. OPERATIONS DEPARTMENT:

A. WATER / WASTEWATER DIVISION:

Water Operations

Flow (average cfs)

Total Rainfall (inches)
Average 24 Hr. Temp. (EF)
Average High Temp. (EF)

Water Purchases (A.F.)

Water Sales (A.F.)

Power Purchases
Electricity and Natural Gas

Total kWh Purchased
Avg. Cost/kWh

Total Therms Purchased
Avg. Cost/Therm

December 1, 2025

OoCT OCT
2025 2024
19.3 24.87
0.46 0.05
65 68
79 84

1,189.6  1,529.37

Budgeted
2025-26
12,500.0

SEPT
2025

688,170
$0.222808
22,250
$1.36046

FY FY
2025-26 2024-25
to Date to Date
24.59 28.85
0.93 0.05

71 73

85 88

6,008.96 5,613.4

Projected Actual
2025-26 2024-25
12,500.0 13,884.7

F.Y.
AUG 2024-25
2025 to Date

762,465 1,958,418
$0.230109  $0.237602
11,366 80,276
$1.39602 $1.34074

OCTOBER 2025
Monthly Status Report



1B PISL\S00R0IASIOVA - $202/9/8

urAB.

“penesoy S1YBRS IV 'SIDUES Ag peybuided uoneuuo) d1ydeIBest UIBL0D LONACYHI QIAYIA 81U JO SUORIO]

<
B4
3
e
5 o
3 o oxouj:oz,w,\,
MADE - $3¢ 9499 \ AMYOE - UoEIS  Wind P
L] . . . wN N *
e
H j« - N MIL'L - Jouin | oxer] S
- ay Z._<l_.ZDO<& i mnv:n T . %
8 .. Q¥ 371A 30 Uvaie
8 S
e :
TIEINTS ATV _\ : “ T HiMOMSLIE ™~ ﬁ@
Lest Sd Yyuomsiag
oo’ = MY8.Z - JHM eSO
FTVALINYA > .
S8WOH 000"} 4omod [im MIN | -
Spemojy 000°L 10 pemebap - MW ST § e T
¢ - ) = AJljIoe4 ajeiodio . SIUSYO Qi A
spem 000°L 10 tm\so\.\.v* M MIGZGL - Alltoe] &) o) ¢ .* , . - e ) ~
‘suugj R ﬂ " . R
.o oo . . \V/O
. @ 31WAI00D ‘ ’ ~ ,.(l.ul\&“\v)o
MWE'L 12101 : 3 . el
MiLEy  2imnd -(8) Sd BN @ " o O |
MY898 8imnd - §d yuomsieg @ \le m ,/_
$9}IQ Jejog a1nind pasodoud £ p
I
"L [ejo] - S8y &
M98 L [BI0L - salS (B) % AILG - oY AolleA (000 2
auljuQ s3Il tejos P
° 14
MBS - sy an|D Anunod

S

s

N

MZG - uopels dwind JejhL

MN0Z - (V) eis duind Jo|tiN
i/ll Wt

ACRD.

o]
%
00
(&

S103rodd ADHIAN3 IT9VMINIA
juswipedaq saljijioe4 pue suoneisdo



Wastewater OCT OCT OCT

Daily Flows (Average M.G.D.) 2025 2024 2023
Moosa 273 278 277
Woods Valley 121 119 118
F.Y. F.Y.
OCT OCT 2025-26 2024-25
Recycled Water 2025 2024 to Date to Date
Woods Valley Ranch WWRF (A.F.) 11.60 11.37 46.54 46.69
B. CUSTOMER CONTACTS: F.Y. F.Y.
OCT OCT 2025-26 2024-245
Customer Service Requests: 2025 2024 to Date to Date
Backflow Leaking 0 11 18 27
Conservation 0 0 0 0
Facilities Damaged by Others 0 1 1 1
Leaks 18 19 93 100
Miscellaneous 25 28 a5 87
No Water 6 4 24 23
Pressure 7 6 53 37
Sewer 0 0 0 0
STEP System 2 0 10 10
Water Quality 1 4 5 4
After-Hour Call-Outs
SCADA 2 14 11
Customer 17 22 102 106
C. SAFETY MEETINGS:
Safety Meetings
10/07/25 - Back Safety (Bill Morris)
10/14/25 - PPE Safety (Bill Morris)
Seminars/Meetings
10/11/25 - Recycled Water Site Supervisor Certification training webinar attended

by Ryan Reeh

OCTOBER 2025
December 1, 2025 2 Monthly Status Report



D. SECURITY: F.Y. F.Y.
OCT OCT 2025-26 2024-25
2025 2024 to Date to Date

Trespassing/Break-ins 0 0 0 5
Vandalism 0 0 1 0
Threats/Suspicious Activity 0 0 0 0
Theft 0 0 0 0
E. METER SERVICES DIVISION: F.Y. F.Y.
OCT 2025-26  2024-25
Installation/Maintenance/Repair 2025 to Date to Date
Meters Installed 2 15 16
Meter Service Repairs 10 28 13
Total Meters Exchanged 23 89 53
Meter Flow Test Bench
Meters Tested 6 53 28
Backflow Program
RP & DC Devices
Tested 535 2,169 2,140
Repaired 26 124 107
Installed 15 63 47
F. WATER FACILITIES DIVISION: F.Y. F.Y.
OCT 2025-26  2024-25
Pump Maintenance 2025 to Date to Date
Pumps Pulled 0 1 3
Electric Motors Repaired 1 2 4
Electric Motors Rewound 0 0 0
G. CONSTRUCTION & MAINTENANCE DIVISION: F.Y. F.Y.
OCT 2025-26 2024-25
Pipeline Maintenance/Repair 2025 to Date to Date
Mainline Repairs 0 19 6
Shutdowns 0 6 2
Shutdowns Due to New Construction 0 8 4

Valve Maintenance
Quad completed: A - K
80% through Quad L

Leak Detection Program Status
100% of facilities detected through Quads: A — K
80% of facilities detected through Quad L

OCTOBER 2025
December 1, 2025 3 Monthly Status Report



OCT F.Y.2025-26 F.Y.2024-25
Landscape (Reservoirs) Maintenance 2025 to Date to Date
Station Maintenance 17 300 76

H. VEHICLE MAINTENANCE:

F.Y. F.Y.

OCT 2025-26 2024-25

2025 to Date to Date

Vehicles Serviced 3 15 23

Miles Driven 26,153 115,600 116,818

Gallons of Fuel Consumed — Vehicles 2,173 8,940 9,865

Gallons of Fuel Consumed — Equipment 115 544 764

MPG (average) 11.7 12.0 12.3

Pickup Trucks MPG 13.5 13.8 14.0

Service Trucks MPG 6.5 6.9 7.9

Average Vehicle Miles 534 540 562

Total Mileage on Vehicles 3,000,842 4,238,303
Total Number of Vehicles in Fleet 49
Vehicles in Service 48
Surplus Vehicles Available 1

OCTOBER 2025
December 1, 2025 4 Monthly Status Report



Z jo | ebed
deQ plely

Al3dvS

Wed

Wed
Wed

Wed

Wed

wWed

Wed

Wed

1dag

POGZ 10O AN - Amwiune pafaud IMSZ00°00) 16400 0F smmg s

Arewwng syoelosd papund jejiden

sJieded Bupjew J0BAUOD %06 %06 000'611$
peje|dwod %001 %09 000°04$
%0 %0 005'v12$
sselbold Ul uone|leisu| ‘pealscey %02 %02 000'09%
JopIO UQ %0S  %0S 000'002$
eojAieg Ut peje|dwo) onul %00L %08 000'c9%
18pIO UD SHONUL %0G  %ST 000'9¢2$
"peRMING Bumes INO NoruL YPIPOOH %0S %05 008'8€2$
sseiB0oid U] UORONASUCD %Gl %G1 022'96$
ss04601d Ul UORONNSUOD %EE  %EE 000°061$
19 id3 i nsuoy N
a38) WOy Y 1 io U0 |imgr i 9z
' § JeailoD _

AUVHANS SLOArodd Adaannd 1v.LIdvD
INIWLYV43a a13ld

Buyury edid
Aelo peytiA weishg
61-8L  LOROOI0D ESOOW JemoT]

92-92 welsAg HAeQ enosey
we} §

Bupsoog sulueloyy

Ye-€Z  eUS JioAlesey esipesed
sjuswedt| ey Jeueis

ve€ee Jos JOJoW suj0e|]

92-52 Jepeo soyoeg

qed meid - onu dmjold

9z-52 uoL z/L - SepIeA
qed

e - syonil dmjord

92-6Z U0} Z/| Inod - sBpIUeA

€2-2Z ONIL YIPIOOH - SBPIYSA
SIONUOW

€2-2C lamod uonerg duind
uonewoINy

pue speibdpy sjonuo)
eulbug seo |einjeN

ausmy

a

0r1€58.-90-€L
0Z815-84-90-10

0€645-82-90-10

08816-82-90-10
9.E16-8L-90-11

12€15-82-90-10

12£16-82-90-10
€2€1682-90-10

08016-82-90-10

0501°-82-90-10

yeloid



Il. ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT:
A. ENGINEERING SERVICES:

F.Y F.Y.

October September 2025-26 2024-25

0B BB popate  Total
Fire Meter Sales 1 3 6 36
Meter Sales 1 0 2 31
Meter Relocation 0 0 1 3
Meter Resize 0 0 1 3
Maps Processed (PF letters) 3 1 4 15
Agency Clearances Signed 4 5 20 70
Fire Hydrants/Special Projects Accepted 1 0 2 6
Underground Senvice Alerts/Mark-Outs 248 244 1,252 4,604
Potable Construction Meters 2 3 9 30
One Day Permits 0 0 0 1
Wastewater inspections 0 0 1 2

General Activit :

In addition to the items listed in the above table, Engineering Services staff assists with
encroachment permits and violations, provides information for mark outs and helps customers
with water conservation questions, and available rebate programs.

B. GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION SYSTEM (GIS):

The GIS team continuously adds or updates facility data in the system as changes occur,
supporting project managers with maps, exhibits, and data analysis.

The following took place in October:

1. Water and wastewater infrastructure updates included adding or updating 16
valve/appurtenances, adding 34 laterals and fittings to existing meters, 86 water meter
location updates via GPS coordinates, adding or updating 46 backflow devices and adding
2 wells into the system. Edits generated from 5 as-built record drawings were completed,
and 4 map exhibits were produced. Updates to 26 Service Areas were completed. SanGIS
updates were downloaded for the most recent addresses, parcels, right of way, and roads.

2. Engineering Technician support continued with updates to water meters and laterals using
GNSS coordinates provided by the Field Department.

OCTOBER 2025
December 1, 2025 5 Monthly Status Report



3. Monitoring software review conducted with the consultant to evaluate existing alert criteria,
implement necessary adjustments, and verify that the fully implemented system is
configured and functioning as intended.

C. EASEMENT ENCROACHMENTS:
Summary of Activities:

In the month of October, three Permits moved from Pending Evaluation to Active Permits,
five Active Permits were closed, and no new Violations were discovered. Inspections were
conducted in order to close permits for private utility crossings, a driveway, drainage swale,
tree removal, gate installation, and paving. All other existing files are still pending.

ENCROACHMENTS STATUS TABLE

Encroachment Violations Encroachment Permits
Pendin r istri Pendin
10 1 2025-10 $1/2025 Evaluati:n Reg:;::itm a:sos 4 u::m Ev:suitign fctive Permits
Beginning Log i1 20 i1 13 11
Plus New 0 [ 4] [« 3
Less Completed 0 9 9 3 ‘
Ending Log X 20 11 15 g

Encroachment VIOLATION Footnotes:

Pendin Evaluation — This column represents the status of reported encroachment violations. The
number of new violations reported during the month is indicated along with the number of
violations that were resolved during the month. Resolution may result in either a) the property
owner agreeing to remove the encroachment violation, b) in some cases, the District allowing the
encroachment violation to remain pending resolution by the District, ¢) issuance of an
encroachment permit that allows the encroachment to remain as is, or d) issuance of an
encroachment permit that requires modification of the encroachment by the owner. Once the
course of action for resolution of the encroachment violation has been determined, it is shown
completed in the Pending Evaluation column and becomes a new item in either the Owner
Resolution Column, the District Resolution Column, or the Active Permit Column.

Owner Resolution — Removal of the encroachment violation is a property owner action
requirement and will be inspected by District staff. The number of encroachment violations
that were removed during the month is indicated as completed in this column.

District Resolution — Staff has determined that the encroachment violation is not a result of the
current owner’s action and has agreed to allow the encroachment to remain pending resolution
by the District. The encroachment violation is properly documented and made clear to the
owner that the District is not responsible for damage to the encroachment as a result of the
operation, maintenance, or failure of the District’s facility in the easement.

Encroachment PERMIT Footnotes:

Pendin Evaluation — This column represents the status of requests to construct facilities or
other improvements within a District easement under review and consideration. The number
of requests received during the month is indicated as new and the number of requests resolved
is indicated as completed. Resolution of the request included either a) denial of the
encroachment request, or b) issuance of an encroachment permit. Many times, the encroachment
permits are issued concurrently with the completion of the work. Encroachment permits that will

OCTOBER 2025
December 1, 2025 6 Monthly Status Report



require further follow up inspection are shown in the Active Permits column.

Active Permits — This column shows the status of encroachment permits approved by District
with work in progress and being inspected by District staff. Although the work is authorized,
work may not commence immediately.

D. DEVELOPER FUNDED PROJECTS:
See Table | and Location Ma for project details and general status of the Special Projects,

Private Low-Pressure Wastewater Collection System Installations, and Cell Site Projects that
are in process.

See Table Il and Location Ma for general status of all Developer-Funded Projects.

OCTOBER 2025
December 1, 2025 7 Monthly Status Report



§207 10q0320

'§Z0Z 1840320 [HUN Auruum seek
=} U] mou s} joefoud eip ), 38| 180300 peulis sem sauwjdesse (U4

‘9Z0Z ‘L1 sunp YBnouyy poped AurLisps seek-| uj
"SZOZ ‘14 sunr penss| sauwjdesoe [wuiy

'FROAS Unm

PeINpeYIs eq O} Spesl {|)}s HoMm giy] ‘proY epris) 8jo) Buissold
seni|ioe) Jeyem pesodosd sy jo uope|wisu; uibeq o) sbeyoed

e ey} p unp oy } 0} $BY J0JORNUOY
‘UOHIBULOY BdjAles Jejem Youl-g B pedde) jJoy Jojornuon

‘$Z0Z 3snBny eou|s

Ajanay oN ‘swiepynb ay Buiziieuy o} soud Aunog sty Aq pelelduwco
useq sey s5e204d 8y} UoneuwlyUSS selinbas QMDA "ebeaie

0} dew uols|AIpgns Jouliy el Bunieaed Jo sseocosd ey ul s1 1eyBer I

189Uy

noedsu; Apeek Joy sy Ninbes 904 PUR dAMO MelAal
0} JOUMO B} LM Jou YRS ISLE 100300 o peje|dios dn peys
dwnd Jepuus ‘sweyt sy yaund ejejdwos o3 Buppom sedojeaeq

*9Z0Z Arenuer yBnos poped HurLeps Juek-| uj
‘20z ‘6 K rp | nd feurd

"9Z0Z ‘60 4890300 UBRo popied MURLTM 1eek-| )
'§Z0Z ‘60 4640320 penss| esumdesoe neujd

‘€202

Jequisydes eoujs JUBLLOP sujrwes joefoid ey “AIne ut Youss ey
181BM MBU BY]} JO 80BLNS Jeydse ey 0} suledel Jounu epew juswdinby
AaeeH |Zjeig) "peje|diod eI SUBLLBADILL] JOMES HUN BOUBILIOD
jouues Bunse | "pe|leist Useq ey sejjijior) Jejem pesodoud |y

Junowe JuswWesINquies sZjjRul 03 Jepio
uj £)$02 Aeauns pue BuueeuiBue jeuy uo Bupiem s| Jedojeaeq

veoz/ifol %001

G202/L1/9 %001

%0¥

%06

%56

§Z0Z/6/L %001

§zoz/e/ol %00}

%09

%56

£ Jo | eBed

punoJBIepUf 15800 158

punaiBiepun
18800 150/

HejweH uopueig
*09) UOKONIISUOD
|leH-uosxou3

Supesuibug |elhzg

splelys vewbiz

suljedid s8ABIQ

3u] 8010} Joqe"] oned WL

(Buiprug) [eyusy
juswdinby AresH [nBID)

UoRINASUSD 9L

006°LE$

005°2€$

£60'c9$

00024

Buipued

689'82$

86.'26%

000'00¥$

VIN

V/N

YZoZEL/LL

kA4l 4714

VN

ez0ze/s

VIN

1zozislie

zzreLioy

ceoereiit

(0Z81-00-00-10) s3v3loid |ejoadg

Aewwng sjaefold sesjates BupesujBugy

WeupAH edt

ZopusiueH sin 15640 BYUBZUBY / ZOpUBLISH
edny epem WsIpAH el
sIeuHBd YHI sJeunBd YHI - AlleNOW

Aiquessy Jopeleq eJi4 pue eojles ofisewioq
£ "ON UOfEIS 8114 "D'A

Buuseuibug e|0oong |IUd
JsideN eor

wiBRIND plueH

dwnd Jepuug

UM Jemeg pue eolleg eli/BLujpnsewoq

Py epeio

6100 ¥ PY DA 18 @J0Ig puE UojBlg 589 OOUY

SHOMPUBT [IALD

Tl Tefes

BEOI PRET soonpB|g - WRIPAH st Py Auotiuy

84400 sA661Z - € ud

uofesojey

eouguaunddy pue BuluBpPIAA PBOY - Z Ud
uoite|jejsu) edwteg Jejem - | Ud

Jejuey [eng

uozUoH 0} Jusdelpe Jeue) Loy jenbsed ueg

9U| $6JBIOOSSY PUE UOSSB
ToHEIo6,) WelldoASd
“JNIoUGoT [6RDSES UES

BuuseuiBug UUAM dwing Jepuusm ‘esileg ald p
§oMIea0ld MaIA 161060 ASIEA  “Buliiieiem uewe) Buiddoyg - eze|d peoy Jefit

$OIED08SY § UOSSERN
{eZesg)
ZIMoUOIY peJer

jueiuesey
S5800Y PUB UOREO0IOY BUINBIEM AMNOA ‘Ioul
‘Pofoid JOO ¥ AMNAQY - S61e1S3 PIOHIUOM

AUYVININNS S103rodd S3OIANES ONIRIIINIONT - 1 31avl
ININLAVHIA ONRIIINIONT

€8

4]

19

G9

14

Sl



§20Z 1eqo30

'§Z/£Z/0) Jedojersp 03 psuinjes sem sisAleUR Moy el

*9Z0Z AIn yBnoutp AjueLiwm Juek-| Jepun si joefoid

*9z0Z Ainr yBnoangy Quruem Jeei-| Jepun | joefoid

*1640320 JO pue oy} J& MelAel 10} suopduosep [ebe] puw syejd
Juewesee pue uejd eys pejepdn pepiacid tedojeaep Joj Jseu|Bug

‘uopeIo|
|eeje| Jemes |euy sujusiejep o) eunp U pjey Buneew eysuo
Buimo||o ejeunse 1802 pue uejd e)s pejepdn Bupeme s) yeis

"1eqo0
4O pue sy )& Mmelaes J10j suejd dwj yeys Jues tedojereq

‘Jei0)R] JoMmes BY) JO UOHEIIRISUL B}
8|npeyos 03 10)0RNUOI oY} Jo) Bunem sem 1os|q ‘Buissold sy
18 UONBASIS 6y) BUILLISEp 0} UjeliejeMm o) pejoy jod J03orR[UOY

*9Z0Z Isnbny yBnosty poped Kuwuepm suek-) u|
§20Z ‘LZ 1snBny p | d euld

*920Z Arenurp yBnosp popeg Aueuep feek-L u)
6202 ‘6 K  penss| A L]

“18quIeAoON Apee 1oy
weuntedep Jejemeisem AMINDA UNM peinpsyos uopsedsu) mojd

%0

%00}

G20ZNIL %001

%0

%0

%0

%0

Geoz/Lers %001

seoz/ei %00}

%0

€ Jo Z ebeyd

Buipusq

Suipued

oulledl s8ABI(

"ouy
Bunoenuor) |essues) Glemg

adgl

agl

(}|es) swioN eAelg

ouj ssepling OVi

ouljedi seAriq]

1aRI9 NN

Bujpued

Bupued

806°L1L$

Buipuey

Buipued

Bulpued

1v8'izs

1z0'9e$

0/Z'19%

000°16$

Buipued

Buipued

V/N

Buipued

Buspued

Buipued

§2oz/ee/L

veozii)

¥20z/1e/L

Buipued

Jasjoog sejieq g qog
271 Youey |ebueyory

Alear) snd

usiiiey piaeq
"oU| UORINISUOD MZH

BuuesuiBuz uHepPUNAA
11 'vwvi

ZWe 19

uonng Auer / zenbioyog saeq

SWION BUPAD pue eAels

sopBled BUe J8)T

qqem uesq

qeuy] sunp

‘panunuo) ‘Poaze L-00-00-10) s3vefoid |ejoeds

AAVHNIANS SLOArodd SIAVIAUIS ONIRIFIANIONI - 1 31aVL

ANINLHVdIA ONRIZINIONST

VY youey febueuosy

UO[BULOY JBIBMEISEAA AIBAI

sjuewIeAod] uBuBY

JeipAH oJ14 uled oyt

[eJejen Jemeg ZjLhoe|

obrioig 977 uhleasg

{eiele] Jameg SLUON

WeJpAH euld eue

dO PUB [BI61E7 JOMES T AUOM

JeJoje J8Meg o1 SOUMOd

Arewwng spelold sesjateg Bupteeubug

26

16

56

€6

26

16

06

68



§202 16400

qeumo Apedosd yym
suojsiael ueid joid dwnd sepuuB YyBnoayy Haom 03 psnunuos yeis

‘eguepuodseliod winjes ou
uesq $BY eJey) Ing $ZOZ 4o Jeq N ul %) 1Aes uejd
L} uo yoeq Sunieey jou seye Jedojeaep yim dn pemoiio) Yvis

*ZZ, 18nBny 8sujs JeWio}sNa WOy
JOBIUOD ON "PIOY UO MOU ] UORONIISUOD BWIOH "ZZ0Z Ul peseyo.nd
SBM JO16U UBUM JBLLOISND 0} JUBS Sem UofeuLoju) dwnd Jepuus

‘eouls AAnoR ON 1z, JequsioN vl Buidid eysuo
Joj Bulyoussy uebeq pue jue | suQ-3 ey} Jo) pojeARIXe JedojeAs(]

‘awip) Jetp 8ouls AyAnoy
Jeumg oN 'zz, Jequeides Ul [epilgng ueld peacidde pue peAleoey

S} JRY) BOUIS
AApoY JeumQ oN ‘£z, Alenusr uj fepiugng Bujuueld peacsddy

‘ewi]) ey esule AJAROR AMINOA ON “YoIBW U)
ysnouyy yiem uonsedsul ue peuoped pue uopeayddy wesBoid
8BJeosI(] JejeMmeISEA) |BIDIOWILOY peAcidde pue pessescid yvg

(v9 uopouNd - 0SZLS-82-90-L) 10 0SZES-BL-90-CL) Suope|RISUl $47 - dund Jopuln ajeAld

“JOGUWIBAON JO HBOM JRIY 6Y) UjRULISJRM

dw) 0} sue|d J03RNUOY "0£/0L 8Aes|s Bujdde) pe||isu) pus

p dx PRIUCD “YIGZ 46403100 Pley sem Bupesw uoponnsuos
8id "16q0J20 JO pUs 8yj J s|BUsIBW PeuUlRIqO JOJIE[UCY

(zZ) uvopound LO00S-£2Z-£0-10) SUonE|IRISU] BS l19D

%0

%0

%0

%0l

%0

%0

%56

%0

*panujpuoy ‘(XxZ81L-00-00-10) sidefoid |e|oads

¢ o ¢ efeq

Buipued

Buipued

Bulpued

pellesu| Jeumo

Buipued

Bupued

pojeIsu Jeumo

Buipued

VIN

VIN

VIN

VN

YN

VN

VIN

Buipued

AWLL SIHL LV $S300¥d NI 3V SNOLLYTTVLSNI 31IS 7730 ON

Bulpued

Buipuey

Butpued

¥2/L0/80

zer9zien

£2/5¢e/10

8L/92/L1

Bujpued

62/0€/90

vZ/Le/oL

Buipusd

Vei61/L0

2202160

€2/ee/0

8L/9z/LL

1M eQ AueH

AIVININNS S1O3rodd S3OIANIS ONRIFINIONT - 1 319Vl
LNINLAVHIA ONRIIINIONT

(sue 00y WelD | 1582)
Aeunyo eiAy

(%eO IleL 0E0OL)
Aeuheg pHen

(e0 111 05001}
QINWIBIUON A0l

(1a %e0 llel 59101)
Zeied JOUBDIN

(¥Z 10710 Kel)
seq|I WeedeH - Bulpuels poon

(£Z1071 %20 1BL)
seq|I weekeH - Buipuels pooo

(zeyoueg elep g OpuBLLY)
sjeag eded

WeIpAH eitd loM 6Q

Kewwing sjosfoid sesjales Bupesuibug

9e0z1

Ge6Ll

0911

ve6ll

66911

86911

Ly

66



§20¢ 1890320

"920Z 40 Ateruge 4 jpun pogied Aueiiem Jeek-| uf yoefoid

‘9202 4o A1eniqey [pun poped Ajueuem Jesk-1 uj josfosd

‘9207 Jo Aieniqe 4 [pun poyed Ajusuem seek-| uj 1oefold

'910Z AInr eouls AJAROY AMINDA ON “Alsyuyepul
peAejep 8q |\ UolonASUoS ‘usWeelBy pioH uslv & Jepun
10foid YU "910Z AINp U1 peplooal sem depy [euld ey} pue
Auno? syy Aq parcidde yuewesuBby ploH usi P juswealby
ua|7 Julof ‘uoIsIAIPgng aAocsdw| o) JusweelBy Juior

'T20Z Jequisideg esuls AjAloR MDA ON
‘2202 Jequades ul JadojaAap eyy 0} peRilsuR)
pue Joussi ey Aq paubis esem sueld pue dew jeuy oy

‘5202
10 Jequusoeq |pun poped Kurirem ek | u) s) 308fold

*$JUBLWIWOD paplAcid pue melaey
104 JuswevBy eoURUBIURI JRIP BY) PEAISdS JUIS
*pomeiacs pue pejepdn Bujeq eie siuodey |euelUUOIAUT

‘sjyueuodoud joefoid ey wols orq pirey Jou vARY ING
‘uonesijdde uopexeuue pue podey ubiseq Aleuiwijeld
Heap o1 Uo sIUBWIWOD peplacsd Ajsnojaeid yms

SZ/EI01 - seadx3 q UoisioA ue|dom

‘peoy

0IN(] JB 9DIAIBS JBJRM JOJ SURIPU| UOISSII JO pueg [enbsed
ueg ey Jo uonedpiied oy} peppe puB ‘Losal BU) BAISS

0} paposu senie) Jojem ajeaud e 4o 51500 Buluue)d pue
uogexXeuuy [BUORIPPB PUN) 0} 'UBICBLOM JUBIS GOHMS e
0} (] JuslpuBWY Jo Gz, Aenuer Ul leacsdde pauIRIO MO

*810Z Aienuqed eouls A)AROY AMINDA ON '810Z
BRIge- jues eyepdn smejs Bupsenbel Jeye| 0} esuodses oN

¥ 4o | ebed

SUBZZO %00  meWV/seR) sLRLLL
SZRZEO  %00L  Eewnyssen 0Zi6LI0L
STRZZO %001 olsed  00000L'ES  BMEZILO
0520178 sHosiLL

oLL'08L8 zzis0i60

YZouTMZL %001 Sﬁoduso L05'8168 ZeIB0ILL
569'094$ )

8LISHYO

8L/SLFO

BL/SHYO

ELSHY0

sieLoL

9L/9L/50

VLv0/80

ueis BupeeuiBuzy
8uojsLaNo |

w Suvesuifuz v
UoS|IM Jeixeq

{BuussuiBuz Buopp
8 posung Aueuuo)) 9
-out ‘Ime

‘0088Y pue sieeds ©

Buuseuibuzg oV V

(ama) Buusouibuz

UOS|IM Jeixeq 4

Buussuibuz WOV 9

AAVINNNS S103rodud d3AaNN4 ¥3d4013A3A - 1l 319VL

ANINLAVdIA ONRIFANIONT

SN
uofod
e yaun
€095 W1

243

Laun

b eoss WL

€9 TN
€088 W1

ol

W VRLSINL

06902
' 68907

14 L-OLISNL

Arewnung syaslold pepung sedojareg

NP

NP

NP

NP

Nr

NP

oM

NP

(g poowoquBieN)
SORILNWILLIOD BUOISYONOY
8jID Med

(3 pooyoquBieN)
SORILNUILIOD BUOISUONO L,
o0 ed

(0 % v spoolpoqybieu)
(seniped euogprg)
SORIUNLILIOT BUGISUYONO]
epouID Yed

apI) i3

("au) “Aeq
smopesyy uojBulysepn)
SHEQ 8yl

Wweuwdoiers(
8A0JS) BumfiA

HOUMS ol 1M JuRId
Ayijoud 8y 10§ s8djAIeS
jusweBeuew Bujpjaosd

8] (dMO) omrs
ojuswrIoRg ~ Suribold
1878MA JO 920

uopexsuuy
Hosey plojjyom exe)

sejeisg uowleg

€T

[44

6}

{0

90

S0



§202 18Q030

-oBresoe 03 dew jreaes oy Bujob ese Koy jeyy
uoyRIUOWNIOP sepiacsd AJUnod Jun pioy uo WepINYy

*L10Z 1snBny eouls AiAnoy

AMRNDA ON'vVd( peuBis pue sueld Jo jdieoss Buipuad meirel
ugld ‘eanyeuBls Joj Jedojeaaq 0} (y4Q) Jusweelby Ajey
omsia peniwans pue pesedeid yerg *£10Z 1snBny ul yoelosd
oLy 4o} [BAoddy Jdesuog) penssi pieog sauls AAROE ON

"L10Z 3snBny esuls AANSY AMNDA

ON 'V:d pouBis pue sueld jo ydieoas Buipued meinel ueld
*ainyeubls Joj Jedojeaeq 0} (V4q) JuswealBy Ajoed JoWsia
peniwgns pue paledeid yeis *210z 1snBny vl pefoud

oy 10} [ercsddy jdesuos) penssi pseog aduls AJIAROE ON

*ofie|q ueg jo fJunoy woyy [eacsdde
Jeuy Bunieme mou s) Jedojereq “y3Z Ainp peudis etem
sueid jeuy pue pig AInr peacsdde sem eRUpSe J$0)

*ZZ, 1890190 80UIS AYANOY AMWOA ON "swey Jsi yound
Buluews. euy uLiopied o} pejoes Bulaq jo ssecold u) S
101983U00 B pojeoipul ABYL "HOSEY N[O JO JOUMO MU 8U)
'JOLIBIN WO eAnEjUesaldal UM JeW YB1s 'Zz0Z 18qolo0 Ui

'610Z 4040320 62UIs LAY AMIMDA ON “siedojorep
[enplAlpUl LpIM palojdxe Jeyun eq 0} ‘Weisks jeunluwIod

© Joj suadojeAsp JoLio UM Hoya jutof Joj Aunpoddo

64 Aew aisy] ‘yem se ausy ejqesydde eq ueo Jey) aolnes
Jojemelsem Joj suondo alojdxs o3 juswidojeasp juesielpe
JaLpo jo ebiseyo ul sauueld AunoD Yim jew Ajsnolrasd yeig

"g10Z Aseruqed eouls A)ABOY AMWOA ON

uBisep se1em Buikelop s| yolum Ajunos yBnosyy sueld sseoosd
0} Bujnupuod Jeump ejepdn joeloud pajsenbel ‘pasdxe
{eaosdde ue|d jeuy Jeumo Buluwiojus Jane] aouls AJARDE ON

‘sofifior) Jo uopoedsu] jursiem Jesk | penunuod yme

SBR|II9w} jo uogaedsu| Huruem Jve | psnupuod Yuis

*s8pioR) jo uopoedsul fueLiem ivek | penupuod yag

¥ Jo Z ebey
s1z'1828 gLoLI0L
000'6£08 L1720/90
20
%06 MemRM  009'9SHS 0M9zIL0
169698 vimeL
VIR0 %00L  weunssED SeILLLS SWEZILD
VesTo0 %00l H 000848 GHEZLO
ejowy/mae)
YIHZIS0 %00l  meNnssED 009'SSE'lS BLEZILO

AAVHINNS S103rodd A3dNN4 ¥3d0T3A3A - I 37aV.L
INTNLAVHIA ONIRMIINIONS

60/10/90

€Leeio

LiiLo/go

sz/evo

80/64/90

vzl

81/SL/H0

8LGHYO

8LISIYO

Wbug eeg

Wbug Beg

‘ouj '310

£3n

8[eH

(Buvesuibug Buopp
8 exung Apeunio))
ou| ‘IME

Buuesuibuz Auueyd

yers Suueesuibug
8UO)8LON0 |

» BuuseuiBuzy
UoS|IA Jeixeq

9l

8hl

14

1743

[i4

0805 WL

P85 AL

80PS5 WL

Priv NL

0S¥0C

26 - sswop
ejqepiogy
807
0Z1 - € Wun
207
0L-Zmn

85 - L WUN
1805 WL

Aiewwing s)oefoid papuny sedojsaeq

OM UoisIAIpang oeg
OM g suln Wbug eeg
NP d epdIg
o il eseYd Yoouuy
NP SE[IIA UspIeS) HepM

(Buuueld) 18jued
oM sumoy sbuudg Jseq

UOISUO]

NE Isuexy

el sewoyj-e8l

(eucysyono) Aq pepuny
sepy|1or 4 suogpioeg)

£ MUr) - UOIBIAIPANS

uny pIBYDIO

(eucysyonoy, Aq pepuny
sepjiion euogioeg)
21U - UoiBIpAng

uny preYIO

NP

(euoysyonoy Ag pspun)
sap)jord euogiong)

L HUn - uoBIAIPANS

uny pIBLoIO

14

114

6¢

g€

oe

24

14



§202 18qo30

*ZT0OZ ounp eauls KJAOY AMWOA ON 'ZZ0Z Jo sunr
ul doeq SjUSWIWOS Yoayo ueld 1suy pauwinjel pue pessasosd
YelS '‘melAal o) sueid pejpwgns Jesuibue s edojeraq

'€20Z sunf 8su|s fjApoy

oN'Bunesw uononsisucs-eld e Bujnpayos yym piemioy
eA0W UBD JadojeAep ‘paubls ele sielAw souQ ‘einjeubls
1BUY Jo} AMINOA 01 pewinial aq [im Aaty peacsdde eoup
“judy eouis [eacsdde Aunon) Bupieme useq sary siBlAW [BUIS

“H0d 8y Jo 1dievsy |gun pejedionue
s1 AIAnoe yeys Jayuny oN “Buuueid 1osfoud uim premioy
2A0U 0} Jou pajajdwios sjodel el aAey O} SHOYS epewl

10U sey Jeump “Aadoud aBe|IA UHON JADA Jo lIe 10} (¥Qd)
JodeJ uBisep Aseujwjaid pejepdn pejsenbal Alsnolaeld

‘1207 1840320 Ul SjUspmS NSAS YIM Uolssnasip

eyl aauls Ayapoy oN Juswpedeq BuuesulBug sjeig
oBeiq ueg Buizin suelld Y Aq peronpuos Buleq s Apmg
‘Addns Jejem Jo eoinos AousBilewa UE 10} UOREDO| UOROBULICD
e Buiuiejqo jo uonenieas Jiey) BuipseBas suelpu| cussint Jo
pueg uosuly 0) UCKBUIPIOOD puk aousisse Bulpiroid 1 yeis

*9Z07 J0 Aieniged Ipun poped Aueiiem see/-| u| Joefoid

K444
JequieAoN eouls AARSY AMINIA ON 'ZZ0Z ‘91 JequeAoN
uo peubis asem sue|d eouls sAnoRUI SUIBWIB) 108l0ld

*$20Z Idy 8aus KIANOY GMIMOA ON
‘seep| Juswaeibe Juswesinguwial
Jleyy o} asuodsel $,10M)SIC] MaIASI O} SBNURUOD Jedojarsct

'Bupse} Je3em Buunp punoy swey Jjedes o} 103921U00
oL} 1pim Buppops ‘uopon; Aypoey p d sey
INq ‘SUORIBUUBS Jojem spiemo) Bujaows sem Jodojeaeq

'SOlI1o%) J0 uopoedsu] jurueMm Jeek 1 penuuod YNs

‘9202
Jo Aienuqed [pun popied KAjueriem JeeA | uj 8| 1oefoid

sziezizo

yzeso

b1 tdrd]

AAVANNS S103rodd d3aNNd ¥3d073A3a - 1 319vL

¥ Jo ¢ ebey
Bulpusd
Buipueg
Buipued
nejueD
pue
%00b  6ceuBuy V2ILZI60 6LIGLID
IH
Buipued  000°'55Z$ zZusLiLe TTLONO
%o mouyssed  EROAC  eUEWI0  6LLLYD
ueou 3
%001 pus SBLLLLLS SLIETILO SLILLIYO
Bugoenuo?)
IH
%001  EleUNy/EsB) 6L/8LILL 6LISLYO

Bupinsuod SWS

ounueq Heqoy
BuuesuiBug |leox3

BupseuBug uuipp

ouejid ¥y

yeys  uesul 13
eucisyonol

g BupeeuiBug
Uos|IM Jepeq

‘ou|
Buuesuibuzy Bukeaing
[B}SBOZ) OYOUBRY

veld

sUOJSLONOY

4eyg  ueeuy ug
auoisono)

» BuuesuiBuzg
UOS|IA Jepxeq
ye1g BupeeuiBul
sucsyonoyt

w» BupeeuBuy
Us|IM Jepeq

ANINLHVdIA ONRIFINIONT

9061 Wdl
!
002
62 Z€095 WL
!
|
25 €805 WL
sol
guun
88 €095 WL
uonog

Arewwing sjasfoid pepung Jedojereq

UOISUSI(T BUINEIBAL

NE 18010 B)UBZUBY 69
uolsueIxg euly

Nr emued A lea A 20

oM uonels eBejia 99
B2AIeG IOJBAN

oM AsueBiswig aqu} ucsury 9
(¥ Wun) sewoy

e szeogopioyed 7O
UoISUeIXT eulT JBJEAA

NP AsUIpp BISIA BUWNEY 68
Jeen

oM obEJIA MOpES UlBUNOK 85
1N elioH ejqepioyy

Nr cuununy preyosg 4
(z2 1 suun)

NP (218800 eWioH a) 95
uny preyoI0
(¥ pooltoguBieN)

NP S6WOH Beys -]
oD Yed



§20¢ 10qo300

¥ Jo ¢ ebed

EEL'GIY'9S 8i¥'L
81241228 i¥6

SITTH S (1132
‘paijdxe sy [eAcsddy ue|d 10 ydeauo ey sejro|pu Ixe ) pey (1) 000'S52$ AY:]
§16°269'c$ (£33
By quiey = () 0% 0
0$ 9
yefoud uf uopedopied yomsia = (d) 03 0
80¥'v6$ 4}
wewseiBy sep||ioed 101as1q = (v4a) 105'€09'e$ (744
s)un
1909 [¥101 io
8101

*L10Z ‘2 Jequieydes pesosdde suejd esuls Ayapnose oN

°€Z0Z eunp eduls
AyAnoe QMDA ON ‘eunp ul JuswasiBe Junoooe ysfoid
pue ysodap 000'G$ Joj JoUMO mau o} 1sanbal Juss PUsIg

*sjuewieAcsduyy
leyem pesodoid ey} eyejdwios o} pedinbes sjeusjew
Jo Jusweaunsoad ey} Bupieme ‘pjoy Uo s§ JO}IBIUOD BY L

£ o

"619d1) ied 0} Jejsueny Ay ey ouy

Jo} sjuswedinbas Bupenjeas jjeig “RRILKINS Joj

Apms Bujuueld Jemes e Bupeds.d s pue Apnys Bujuued
Jejem & pepiuigns sey BuueeuiBug uos|ip Jepeq
‘uojsuedxe Aoedes ¢ eseyd JHAM Youry Kej[RA SPOOM
oYy 10} sjuewedinbes Buipuny Bujpnjou; osfoid ey Joy
sjuetelinbel Jemes pue Jejem el) ssnasip 0} sieeuiBue
Aoy pue Jeumg Joeload eyl yum jew Ajsnojassd yms

%08

(Useueq [eeUOIN)

162'¢62$ Buuseuibuz g1

LU6L60 60/¥0/S0

9L/9LIS0 BuuseuiBu3g uuAp

uoyn(] Auen

IBUOEM  SOV'PES  SZTHEO YN  BueeuBUS SPEPIY

(uBiseq

11A10) Buuseubu3 %ony

Butpued (Bujuue|d Jemeg pue
lejepn) BuuesuiBug
UOS|IM Jeixeq

[
[24
8l

N O «~ O

™~

spofoud
jo#

AYVINNNS S1O3rodd d3aNN4d ¥3d013A30 - 1l 31av.L

ININWLAVHIA ONRIFANIONS

Arewiwng sjyaefoid pepung sedojeas

sj00foid [B10)
Bujuue|d |e301
8ARoeU| - Butuueld u| [2)
BAROY - Buluueld Ul
$80004d Uf [2)0)
u |seQ upued
eaciddy jdesuon
esBld ubise(]
uoponisuo? Bulpued
uoflONIISUOD) Jepun
polled AurLem

w

«moOono w

AYVARNS 123rodd

OHPS NL NP X3 Ul youey yenbiep 88

(eld 1e1suniy)

09¥0Z Wdl NP UoIsUBIXT eUT UosIepuy

(0Qads)

ezeld seo sageN L

NP

(Awedoud
OM [BRUBPISEY UOISOAR) €L
80je383 Youey YHoN



Y IR RO It 0 KRRO AL [ R3]

S103r0dd d3d0T3A30 - [ 378VL XX08E-00-00-10 XX
SLOArOUd WID3dS - | I7EVL XHZ8L-00-00-10 | XX

QN-

A

A
2o

e o WY NIDURg A e

9
o5 ST
86
w 2
16
66 67 Fd
L5
59 9958
¢ 08
L0
8 9%
15 pa @ 9
@ ®
¥
e o "
€8
S123rodd ¥43d013A3

jusuipedaq Buussuibugy

0 e g FON00R U4 R

154

88

1 NATII



E. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS:

See Table lll and Location Ma for general status of all Capital Improvement Projects.

OCTOBER 2025
December 1, 2025 8 Monthly Status Report



§20¢ 129030

"NULIed [0J3U0Y) J1je]] PUE JULIBd UOREARIXT 8Y) Uleiqo o)
Kunog eyj 03 juwigns o} suejd jos3uos syjel] oy} Burzijeuy s1 yeyg

'§20C
Jequieseq Aq uBisep |euy ey Bunejdwos ejediopue yeyg “oeloid
sutjedid | aseyd eyj Joj uBisep ey sjejdwos 0} BNURUOD PeIs

'V 6jnpeyog jo uonejdwoa Buipuad jno eso|d Joelosd

‘494 ewenny je pejejdwos sem Bugnsey dn yejg ‘uone|jesul
3Inpuos pue juswdinbe [esino0je penuRUO JOIRIJUOY
"Sd |elqes) ueg je pejjeisu; eem Buidid pue syue) ebing

uewubije edid Ateuiwnjead
Uo PojuUsWILIOD pUue PeMelAed JEIS “SPI| 8joYURH JOMEs ‘suBDd
aAjeA quswuBie adid Bunsixe AeAins 0} 8)sUO sBM JOAOAING

‘PIoy o3 Ut Ino suoleso] yee| Aynusp!
0} §19 ul Jeke| dew e Buneess urBoq Je)S JUSWISSESSE UOKIPUOD
esnoy ul Joj ejep Aioysiy yee| jo uoneiedesd penunuod yeis

*sj00foud Jeyjo 10} ejqejieAe g00‘08$ Bulaee|

‘lledey vwined eQ oi4e 8y} 10} 000'05$ Pue 3sod uonjedionied
$0je}s PIOHYOM U3 Puny 03} 000°0Z1$ Peziiin Ajsnolresd
#eIS "000°05Z$ - I9Bpng jenuuy $Z-£Z0Z Ad Yim uonezuoyIny

ojje)
opueule

o[jed
opueulaq

yoseuyIN
uoser

YoseNIN
uosep

ojjed
opueuse

eqqels
Allem

eqqeln
Allem

S Jo | abed
%26 %06
%L6  %L6
%66 %66

%68

%8L

%01

%0

%18

%SL

%01

%0

@snoH-u|

@snoH-u|

UoRONIISUOY) UoUO

UolONISLOY) UOUO

Buikering - OYSL
(uBise() esnoH-u|

Buipued

YN

Aewwing sjoafold pepung |ejdesn

Alup ubiseq
Z oskeyd - Jusweoejdey suljedid peoy epsed pio ozvls
aseyd ubiseq 06916
yewsoe|day auljedid peoy opels) 8|0
(eseyd
uogonAsUOD) UoREoOleY euedid Uoi-pl dSFON  00CHE
(sseyd uononisuo))
jusweslby Bulpund pue ubiseq) ‘Buluue)q 08081
joeloid Aleayeq eAjews)Y 4s3 ON
(eseyd pig/ubiseq)
uoneoojey sujjedid Aempeoig ULON 0SL1S
JUawissessy Uonpuo) sulledid 00518
juswiaoejdey suljedid peyoadsun / Buzisdn 0zZ0LS

sjo9foid Add ' seuljadid

AUVININNS S103rodd d3adNnd v.iidvO - il 319vL
ININLAVHIA ONIMIANIONS



§202 18qojo0 G Jo Z ebed Krewwing syosfold pepund jejide)

"ewiel) oWl SZOZ Jequiede(/ JequisroN  eqqeln o uBiseq (eseyd ubisaq)
8y} Joj penpeyas si Jodes ubisep-eid ey jo uonriedeid Allem %0C  %0T 9SNOH-U| JloAlesey wuelu| Yyouey abpry e0els
sjo9loid JloAlIasSY
‘PUnoj 8dem  YoseIIN "ou| ‘sjejuey (eseyd uoponnsuos)
senss) Ajueliem o "peuuioped sem uopoedsul AJueLiem Jeep | uosep %00} %001 juewdinbg meys Jusweorjdey suljedid Aepp sdiy 8ivls
"920Z Ihun pejedionue sijoefoid siy3 uo AjAnoY o| ‘Joelosd
8} Ys!|dwoooke o) sueeW Jeljjo ensind (M JEIS ‘SjiyMuEB | "Bse) aqqelo) ] (eseyd Buiuueid)
PIO 01 108fo4d siyy 0} peubisse Butpuny juelb ay) peziuoud-e. yels Allem %0T  %0T 8SNoH-ul Jusweoe|dey auljedid peoy zenbBupoy 0v8iS
‘shem Jo YBU YMOAS pue 389aS Ui sebus||eys juslind ey) usaD
“SJUBLIYIBOIOUS PUR SUBLIBSEE ojjuesn y (eseyd pig ‘ubiseq)
Buizijeuy s) yejs ‘suejd ubisep ey) ezijeul 03 SBNUUOI JYei§  Opueue %96 %56 SSNoH-u| Joeloid uoheooley suledid Jeddn [iH uopiog) olgls
‘Juewseibe eyy ubis o3 uonezioyne pue [eaosddy PO dnoi
piog o} pepesu sjRW)ST Y)eJ POOD By Jo uonesedesd M__M >>w %06 %SL g Luoy cwsu " (UoissiLgng) Uopedliddy UeoT JMSMA €202 LZLIS
peyejs pue jeaosdde 1o} juswesiBe ueo sy) peAledsl yeis ' ’
panunuo ‘syoafold ANd B sauljedid
. . aqqein (eseud juswesinguioy)
pepiwgns sem [euld pue g "oN )senbay juswesingsiqg AlEM %00L %66 9SNOH-U| uoneoyddy UBOT SMSMA 0202 oclLis

AAVINANS S103rodd ad3adnNnd IviidvO - il 31avl
ININLAVdIA ONIRIIINIONS



§¢0T 1290300

‘Jesg ybnol e uo siojeiedQ Jejemelseps oyl Yum Bupliom s yeis

'8/EM)JOS MBU BUj) O} [opoWl WB)SAS Jojem
aU) JO UOISISAUOD papelg "eieMmlos Buljepow Jesse pue James ‘Jojem
MBU Ppaj|eIsul pue paseyaind "SUOlpUOD MOl MO| JIOAIBSBI B)jen|eAe

0} [opow Jayndwos ayy Bunepdn pue BuijenjeAl ‘uonen(eAs ey} Ul esn
Jo} euoz Aq auoz ejep ebesn Jejew Jejem Buziuebio pue Bupoe|on

‘poAejep uolepuUSsWILIONB] BIBMYOS

‘ButoB-uo ese suonenjeAy ‘sjuswesnbal Juswnoop Juswyedep
JOYJ0 puE 8Jemyos Juswebeuew UOIJONIISUOD JO UOREN[EAS
Jayuny Buipued peAe|ep JOPUSA BIBMIOS IO} UOHEPUSWILIOIOY

*(uonewoiny esudiejuz) JoyeiBeju] WeysAS AMINOA Aq pedojersp
sueeJo8 JWH pue joeloid dSTIN ey 105 JojriBeyul weysAs ey

Aq pedojeaep BujwweiBoid H1d Buimelrel Ul Juelnsuos syj yIm
JoyyeBo) suom 0} enuRUOI yje)s 1| pue ‘suoneledo ‘BuliesuiBuzg

"920Z ‘AUenuep spue poued AjuvLIepy
leeA-1, "5Z0T ‘36 Alenuer penss) esueydessy jeurd yoefold

"Y3L| JeqIBAON Jo} pejnpelyos pessoid o) 8oNON "pejesld
sem uejd e)ls jeLIs)eL SNOPIRZRY Y "SHUSLILLOS JO PUNO. 3sil}
ey} psuinjed yejs ‘peyels s$030.1d MelAed [eRIWIGNS |eLIBjRW oy ]

o|lLeD
opuewa4

aqqeIo
Arep

eqqei
Allep

eqqesn
Allem

YOSEDIIN
uoser

yoasenjiN
uoser

§ Jo ¢ ebed

%09 juswdoipAs(] [BNUBK WSO 10JeMB)SEAL ESOOW

%09 esnop-u|

s)oafoid A)ij1oe4 uoeWE[93Y JBJBA UOAURD BSOON JOMOT]

(1leepy uer)
%01 %01 $80|AleS sisAjeuy eby Jeje
Bupnsuos uoissiy
wuow_.o._n_ salljioed
%0 %0 Buipued wa)sAg ewabeuepy JuswnooQ
(eseyd uonejuswe|dwy)
%0z %0z osnoR-ul | @seyd wejsAg Jsjep) - uolelBIN INH/YAYOS
wEouw>m jusweabeuep ejeq
sBuneon (eseyd uoponnsuo)

%00k %00b  oinenpujeuden  je098y PUE JUIEd - JOAISSSY UedZIA B AIlBNOW

(eseud ubisa()) 12029y pue Juled -

%0 %0 siv sijoAlesey aBpiy Jeeg 1SOM B | "ON UoAued Apley

AAVINNNS S103rodd d3dNN4d TVLidvO - il 3789V.L
ANINLAUVCdIA ONIRIFINIONI

Krewwng syosfoid pspungd jeyden

0E0ES

06519

0LLLS

0eLls

S0¥LS

Lovls



§20¢ 12903120 G Jo ¢y ebeyd fAewwng syosfosd pspuny jeydes)

"18q0300 Ul AJANOY ON “We)sAS UONIBI0D James 8Insseld oiE
Mo eBejiA UInoS 8y} 0} Pejoeuuos ale Jey) selldedold |eiosewios (LLES %08 %08 asnoH-u| uope|[e1su| J8je |\ Mol4 duing Jepune) 09295

SNOLIBA JE SIBJaW MO 84} JO UOHR|[BISU Jo) DAY Uk Buidojersp si yeis opuelled
11690300 U1 AJAROY ON ‘esunoo o
ey} uo sepIoe) ebeIo)s [euosess |euolippe dojeAsp 0} uonelodion ovu.meu_ %08 %08 9snoH-u| ebel0)g jeuoseag 8sIN0Y JIo5) Asjie/ SPOOAA 02195

juswdojere siwouooT [enbsed ueg Yim dom 0} Buinuiyuos yeis

‘BupesuIbu uosfipn Jeixe Aq peledesd Bujeqg Apnjs Jemes
Jo Melnes Buipued juswdojeAe( Yeel) UBIPU| B8Y} UIYIM PeOY Jejussn suonisinboy Apedoid
Ko|leA JO YyHou 8)is B 0} 8AOW ABW 8} UOIE)S YI 'ssedold jeaosdde aqaeioy

ue|d e)is ey uo Jedojsaep Aq spew ueeq sey sseiboid oN ‘ued Alem %08 %08 BSnoH-Ul yeloid Ocios
o)ls uoneis abejlIA dADA 10 [eAcudde unod pue pAOY peOY deeln uoisuedx JajeMe)SEAA Youey As||eA SPOOA
uelpu| jo uonnjosad Buipued si uonisinboe e)is uonels Ui eBe|IIA UUON
muoP—P_n_ uoisuedxy 3___ouu_ uoljewie|d2ay] JIJeAA Youey >0=w> SPOOM
e
‘eje]dwioo 8| }IoM Kue) JoejU0Y uLojyD owu.wEw " %00L %001 sepeifidn Joulpy esooy 06S€S
oliwen oul
gjo|dwios s Joefoid ovc.mc._mn_ %00l %001 ‘Auedwon epeuusp sepeibdn Z "oN Jeyue|n esocon 0€£ES
uBise esno-~u|
olIED (162'0098)
‘Buimeinel s1 yejs 'soeds pue sueld 9,66 peAlesel Jeis ouc.m woy %L6 %06 $8)JBI00SSY uBise(] - yoeloid Ajliold BSOOW 002€S
% Apeig pleyory
olwED (cL9'8v18)
‘Buimelaes s1 Jeys "soeds pue sueld 9,66 peAlsdsl Yeis ovc.mEm“_ %0V  %SE $0Jel00SSY ape.Bbdn [0J)u0s) JOJON UOHE)S }IT SMOPEB] 062€S
% Apeag pleyoly

AUVININNS S123rodd d3adNnd 1v.LidvO - 1l 319v.L
ININLAVHIA ONIRIFINIONI



§20¢ 18qoy0 G jo g abed Arewwng sjoeload pepund |eyde)

(dWNS) ueld Juswebeueiy JUsUINN JES

5202 J1equiedeq o} peAe|ep LEIS pejnpeyos omwﬂo %G %S 8sNoH-u| 25&0»_3& wwied  088.S
0BIBYDSI(] BISEA JHM UoUBY A8||BA SPOOM
"5Z0Z I1e< Ue}s 0} pejnpeyos si 3oefold
aqgel uonewoin

“pe16|duLoo §| 108f0id UOISIOAUOD [WH M.ﬂ >>w %S %S owmtsw_/\ opeibdn IWH JHM HAM 0SS

VaVOS JBJEM U} JeYe LIEls o} painpeyds S| apeiBdn JNH SHM HAM

“uswidinbe 18y} jo 3se) jofid e 104 Jesnyorynuewl ofjusen
IBUJOUR YSE |IM pUE S)insel ey} BunenjeAe [IBs si yeys  opuewey RS %0 douaxolyL pidey o8elz
"9Z0Z Uer Ul edid ejenieAs [IIM JeIS o”ﬂﬁmw %0 %0 uoenieaz Buidid uoneley  0/Z.S
. el s uonjeld .

970Z U2IeW 51 uoneldwod pejedionuy ‘[enUEW W80 OIUED o, o csnop-u JUowdo[eASq [ENUBIY WEO JOIRMEISEM MAM 02015

8y} Joj sjusluysepe pue sBuimesp Bujonpoud ese yeys BulesuiBug  opueuiey

syoaloid Aok uonewe|day Jajep) Youey Aa|jeA SPOOM

*1840300 ut [3IAoY oN ‘'suejd juswidojerep
(dADA) uoneys ebeyiA jo feaosdde funoo Buipusd uopisinbae eyg
‘peynuspl sjuswslinbel e)is uojels Y "e18|dwios ubisep Ateuluield

ojue) (uBise Ateuiunald) ubise

opuewey #0F  %Ob " oyier/Apauuey vopels yry ebeyiA ypoN  0C€99

AHVININNS S103rodd a3adNnd Tv.iidvO - 1l 319Vl
ININLAVHIA ONRIFINIONI



g L 3 ) e JADRA s o SRS BY NITAWS A pe Wb D LUNCERE Al 1 S eumg

o%,‘
osT
088 ‘0TS '082 ‘042 '0€0LS |
02195
8Ty,
062€5

0ZE ‘097 '0219S

Sob

0t 016

-
%5 ‘0bG ‘05F ‘07E '0ET ‘Ob0 '0E0ES

069

(NOXXLEIXXNLE-B4-00-4 1
DOXX9SIXXXSS-84-090-91

DOXXSSIXXXSS-BL-90G1 obg

DOXESIXXXES-RL-90-EL

0O0OXXX1S-82-9C-L0
AN39:

500 |

S .@QN‘

El % &

M

SL103rodd IN3 3AOUd "VILIdVD
juswpedaq Buusaulbugy




F. MAPPING:

General Activit : In the month of October, staff received mapping update requests for a total
of 19, and 24 were completed. In addition, staff assisted with the Gordon Hill Upper Pipeline
and Old Castle Phase 2 project drawings.

MAPS AND RECORDS UPDATE STATUS TABLE

Capital Developer Encroachment Special Facility
October Improvement . @ . ) . () . (5]
Projects W Projects Permits Projects Mapping
Beginning Log 2 0 0 3 63
Plus New 0 0 0 0 19
Less Completed (1) 0 0 0 {24)
Ending Log 1 0 0 0 58

Ma s and Records U dates: Maps and records consist of preparing record drawings (as-
builts) and valve detail drawings and updating the District base map, GIS facility map, and
database. Maps and records are continually being updated to accurately reflect completed
projects, non-District improvements (encroachments), and current field conditions. The
following table summarizes the status of the record map updates.

Maps and Records Update Status Table Footnotes:

) Ca ital Im rovement Pro'ects — This column represents AutoCAD record drawing status of
recently constructed Capital Improvement Projects. Each project may generate or affect
one or more record drawings. Each project is counted as one regardless of the number of
improvement sheets.

2) Develo er Pro‘ects — This column represents AutoCAD record drawing status of recently

constructed Developer Improvement Projects. Each project may generate or affect one or

more record drawings. Each project is counted as one regardiess of the number of
improvement sheets.

3) Encroachment Permits — This column represents changes made to existing AutoCAD

record drawings to reflect an encroachment that has been generated through the permit

process.

4) S ecial Pro'ects — This column represents AutoCAD record drawing status of recently

constructed Special Projects such as the installation of new fire hydrants or service laterals.

%) Eacility Mapping — This column represents individual minor mapping update requests from
field or office staff.

OCTOBER 2025
December 1, 2025 9 Monthly Status Report



G. FUNDING REQUESTS:

Drinkin Water State Revolvin Fund Loan DWSRF A lication — 2020 Pi eline
Re lacement Pro’ect. This DWSRF Loan provides funding for Four pipeline replacement
projects, Gordon Hill, Oat Hill, Lilac Road, and Alps Way. Loan approval in the amount of
$8.5M was received in March '22. Staff has submitted nine disbursement requests for
construction funding, the most recent being Disbursement No. 9&Final ($159K) submitted in
October 2025, for expenses through June 30, 2025, and amounts that were not previously
approved. Funding for Disbursement No. 8 ($121K) was received on June 5, 2025. On
average, it takes 140 days from disbursement submittal to receipt of the SRF loan proceeds.
To date, the SWRCB has disbursed $7.963M in loan proceeds.

EPA Communit Grant. In April ‘23, VCMWD was awarded a $3.06M Community Grant for
the Lilac Road Pipeline Replacement Project. Because the Lilac Road project was already
under construction, the EPA approved a “Technical Correction” to shift the grant funding from
the Lilac Road Pipeline Replacement Project to the Rodriguez Road Pipeline Replacement
Project.

In April ‘24, VCMWD was awarded a $715K Community Grant for the Old Castle Road Pipeline
Replacement Project. A “Technical Correction” was approved to shift the $3.06M grant
funding from the Rodriguez Road Pipeline Replacement Project to the Old Castle Road
Pipeline Replacement Project for a combined total of $3,775M.

EPA staff is completing their final review of the application and NEPA certifications
needed for final approval of the application

Drinkin Water State Revolvin Fund Loan DWSRF A lication — 2023 Water Facilit
Re lacement Pro’ect. Staff prepared and submitted in November '23 a $9.3M application
($12.36M total, less the $3.06M in grant funding) to the SWRCB for funding the following three
projects: a) Old Castle Road Pipeline Replacement, b) Broadway South Pipeline
Replacement, and c) Rodriguez Road Pipeline Replacement. Due to anticipated cash flow
requirements during construction, staff reduced the loan request to a $5.525M application to
include only the Old Castle project in combination with the $3.775M for a total project cost of
$9.3M. The application was completed in December, and the SWRCB staff is reviewing the
submitted documents for issuance of the loan approval. The project was included in the FY
25-26 DWSRF Intended Use Plan. Staff received the Installment Sale Agreement from
the SWRCB in October ’25 for VCMWD Board approval in November 2025.

Drinkin Water State Revolvin Fund Loan DWSRF A lication — North Broadwa
Pi eline Relocation Pro’ect. In December 2024, Staff prepared and submitted a $4.3M
application for the North Broadway Pipeline Relocation Project. This was one of the projects
eliminated from the 2023 Water Facility Replacement Project for cash flow purposes. The
project was included in the FY 25-26 DWSRF Intended Use Plan. Staff is responding to
miscellaneous questions as the SWRCB staff completes their review. Approval of the
application is anticipated in Spring 2026, with loan documents provided for VCMWD
Board approval by Summer 2026.

H. SEMINARS/MEETINGS:

No meetings attended in October 2025.

OCTOBER 2025
December 1, 2025 10 Monthly Status Report



IV. FINANCE DEPARTMENT:

A. COMPARISON OF STATISTICS:

BILLS MAILED:

Actions for Non-Payment:
Notices Mailed
48 Hr. Phone Calls
Meters Flow Restricted
Accounts Liened
Lien Notices Mailed
Accounts Transferred

CUSTOMER C UNTS:
Active Water Accounts:
Certified Ag - PSAWR
M&I
Fire Meters
Total Active Accounts

Inactive Water Accounts:
PSAWR
M&I
Fire Meters
Total Inactive Accounts

Total Water Accounts

Active Wastewater Accounts
Moosa
Woods Valley

Total Wastewater Accounts

Interim MWD Agricultural Program:

JULY 1994 through DEC 2012
MWD RTS Estimated Savings:

JAN 2003 through DEC 2012
SDCWA PSAWR:

JULY 1998 through OCT 2025

SDCWA Emergency Storage Est. Savings:

JAN 2003 through OCT 2025

SDCWA Supply Reliability Est. Savings:

JAN 2016 through OCT 2025

TOTAL MWD & SDCWA DISCOUNTS:

December 1, 2025

11

OoCT
2025

10,550

1,385
619

16
52

oCT
2025
624
9,191
2,040
11,855

57
723
161
941

2,476
980.0

FY to Date
2025-26

42,163

5,404
2,283
8

5

29
162

OCT
2024
635
9,171
2015
11,821

50
722
150
922

12,743

2,472
973.0

3.445.0
Acre-Feet

513,882.8

503,927.4

FY to Date
2024-25

42,043

5,162
2,022
28
38
90

169

oCT
2023
634
9,139
1983
11,756

49
718
141
908

$63,681,802
$17,884,325
38,693,227
37,971,168

$ 6,882,170

$165,112,692

OCTOBER 2025
Monthly Status Report



B. MEETINGS:
10/1/2025 - Jim attended the SDCWA Long Range Financial Plan Workshop #3.

10/13/2025 — 10/15/2025 - Stephanie attended the CalPERS Educational Forum in Palm
Desert, CA.

OCTOBER 2025
December 1, 2025 12 Monthly Status Report



V.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY DEPARTMENT:

A. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS -

SCADA HMI Im rovements — Replacement of the HMI system for the water system is in in
progress of being initially deployed to North County Emergency Storage Project (NCESP)
sites and then expanded to other sites in the future. Both Halcones and Muutama sites
are now online on the wide-area network. HMI software upgrade is also being planned for
Woods Valley WTP. Staff is currently developing updated SCADA standards and
templates in conjunction with the contractor.

SCADA Infrastructure U rades — This project will replace the SCADA virtual host servers
with new hardware, storage, and operating systems. Firewalls and security appliances will
also be replaced with up-to-date hardware. The project is currently in RFQ stage.

Asset Mana ement S stem — Cityworks development and deployment is continuing, which
includes fleet maintenance, equipment/tools, storeroom modules, and integration with GIS
and ERP systems. Various reports and dashboards for water operations are being
developed and improved. Staff is evaluating possible migration to a cloud-based system.

Boardroom Technolo U rade — The existing video technology in the board room is being
replaced with a new high definition media system. The new system will allow presenting to
multiple displays simultaneously and include high definition video streaming capability. High
Definition HDMI wiring upgrade has been completed, and the system is currently being
configured.

Office Productivit Software — This project will upgrade all District computers to a new
Microsoft Office productivity software. Staff is currently evaiuating whether to continue with
perpetual license version, or go with a subscription-based licensing model.

. GENERAL ACTIVITY -

SCADA U rades — Continuous rolling upgrades are being done to replace older devices
such as radios, cameras, network switches, and Uninterruptible Power Supply (UPS) units
with newer models. which are faster and more reliable. This is an ongoing lifecycle refresh
process.

Geo ra hic Information S stems GIS U rades — GIS staff has deployed web maps and
user portals within the software, and GIS databases and maps have been integrated with
the Cityworks Asset Management System. The system is being continuously enhanced and
actively used by District personnel.

Video Surveillance S stem U rades — Staff is continuing to enhance the system by
upgrading cameras with new Al-capable models and performing software upgrades to
existing systems.

Analo Phone Circuit Mi ration — Due to AT&T planning to phase out analog phone lines in
the area in the next few years, staff installed an analog gateway device that connects the
analog lines to District’s VolP phone system. All remaining analog circuits will be switched
to digital by the end of FY 2025/26.

OCTOBER 2025

December 1, 2025 13 Monthly Status Report



C. SYSTEM STATUS -
All systems operated normally in October 2025.

D. MEETINGS -
No meetings attended in October 2025.

OCTOBER 2025
Monthly Status Report

December 1, 2025 14



|
|

L jo | abed
deq 11

‘uoljeuLiojul uoljeanByuoo

pue ssjonb Buuinboe Ajuaung ‘soueuliopsd pesesloul

aABY pue sa)ins aiem)os ANoes }saje| ay} Buiuuni

ajempiey ajep-0)-dn yym paoejdal aq [Im suoneao|

asay)} Je seoue)|dde Ajunoas pue s|lemady oy "sweisAs

Buyesado sjep-ol-dn ypm pue ‘abelols elep msu ‘alempley

9A|ld opuy JoAIas MaU Uim si1aalas ay) aoe(dad |im Joafoud siy

‘uoljeuLiojul uopeanbyuoo

pue sejonb Buuinboe Apuauing “seakojdws |e

1o} asemyjos AjiAonpoid aoiO YOSOIDI JO UOISIBA 8)ep-0)

BAjld opuy  -dn Jo sasuso)| mau Kojdep pue aseyaind |m 108foid siy L

‘ajepdn

alemjjos ainin} uo Bulpuadsp pauajep s Juswdojeasp

anpow mojpjpeq ‘psuueld Buiag aie seNPOW JIOAIBSDY
"JuswdojeAsp ul ae sajnpow suibug sec) pue IoJeIeusds)

‘waysAs uoloadsul Jomas JeNsjUeIS) pue ‘sejnpow Jeplo

som ‘WalyBiq yum pajaldwoo si JuswiAods( “ssaiboad uy

BAlid opuy S| uojjejuawaldw) s,walsAs Juewebeue Jossy SHIOMAD

‘painbiuo Buleq ApjuaLino

S| WaJsSAs aY] ‘pa|jeisul usaq sey WweaisAs Buiyoims

09pIA pue BuuIm |IWQH MeN "siep 8y} uo pajjejsul

BJoM SI0jlUOW M ‘sesaweo papelbdn ypm psjeisul sem

we)sAs Bujwealls aAl| 0BpIA "Woolpleog sy ul ABojouyse)

aAlid opuy uonejuasaid oapip/olpny ay) spebdn jim josloid

101RU PI0¢
{ abeu
0@

%S

%01

%86

%66

spAsguauns weloud (9 11 01-6Z02OHI TEINNOONNO USIUOD\B YIRS IMHOSORINNBI0NBIBQUASLUBIIIMO\SIESN\:O

e/u asnoy-u|
e asnoy-u|
JuB)NSuoo

[eule)xs

%96 ‘asnoy-u|
%66 asnoy-uj

000'69

000°€€

¥0.°88

gel'ze

AUVHINNS S103rodd a3anNnd Tv.lidvd

ININLAVdIA ADO0TONHOIL NOILYINHOANI

9¢-G¢

9¢-6¢

61-81

L1-91

Arewuing sjosfoid papung jejdes

sopelbdn ainjonansenu] yavyos

8Jemyos AJAONPoId aoto

wiv)sAg Juswabeue jossy

ope.bdn Abojouyos | woolplieoq

0vZLs

0Z11S

08vLs

0v0lS



VI. GENERAL ADMINISTRATION PROJECTS AND PROGRAMS:

A. General Administration Meetings and Activities for Month of October 2025:
10/02/25 — Director Baker Orientation and Tour (GA);

10/03/25 ~ UWMP Consultant Selection Meeting (GA & AN);
Native Oaks Recycled Water Agreement Meeting with SPEDC (GA);

10/06/25 — SDCWA Joint Public Information/Conservation Coordinators (JPIC) Meeting
(AN);

10/07/25 - VCMWD Agenda Meeting (GA & AN);
SDCWA MWD Delegates Meeting (GA);

10/08/25 — Lake Wohlford Resort Annexation Coordination Call (GA);

10/09/25 — SDCWA Special Board Meeting (GA);
SDC Farm Bureau Farmer of the Year Dinner (GA & AN);

10/14/25 — SD County Farm Bureau Water Team (GA);

10/16/25 — Regional Services Joint Lobbying Call (GA & AN);
Department of Water Resources (DWR) Water Loss Webinar (AN);

10/20/25 — SDCWA General Manager’s Meeting (GA);
VCMWD Regular Board Meeting (GA & AN);

10/21/25 — SDCWA Admin & Fin Committee Pre-Board Meeting (GA);

10/22/25 — SDCWA North County Caucus (GA);
VCMWD Staff Water Loss Audit Review Meeting (AN);

10/23/25 — SDCWA Regular Board Meeting (GA);
10/25/25 — Oliver Smith’s Celebration of Life Service (GA);

10/27/25 — SDCWA Water Agency Emergency Collaborative (WAEC) Regional
Communications System Meeting (AN);

10/28/25 — VCMWD All Hands Staff Meeting (GA & AN);

10/29/25 — SDCWA GM's Business Model Meeting (GA);
CalOES San Diego County Regional Fuel Planning Workshop (AN);

10/30/25 — SWRCB Urban Water Use Objective Reporting Webinar (AN);
10/31/25 — VCMWD Cilli Classification Implementation Meeting (AN).
*Key: GA — Gary Arant; AN - Alisa Nichols

OCTOBER 2025
December 1, 2025 15 Monthly Status Report



B. Personnel -

1) Regular Full-Time Employees, as of August 31, 2025:

Funds Bud eted Employed

Water 67 64
Wastewater 7 7

Total 74 71

2) Pending Retirements —

a) Gary Arant — December 26, 2025
b) Wally Grabbe — February 25, 2026

Compiled By: Submitted By:
s
Coral L. Williams, Acting Board Secretary 1 dsa ea  Gen ral Manager
OCTOBER 2025
December 1, 2025 16

Monthly Status Report



	12-01-2025-Agenda
	1. Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting Held Monday, November 17, 2025
	2. Audit Demands
	3. Review, Receive and File of the District’s Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) for Fiscal Year (FY) 2024-25 and Review of Appropriation Limit Worksheet
	4. Approve Professional Services Agreement with Interface Automation for System Integration Services for the Woods Valley Ranch WRF SCADAHMI Software Upgrade
	5. San Diego Local Agency Formation Commission Special Districts Advisory Committee Call for Ballots
	6. Water Use Efficiency and Water Loss Standards Update
	7. San Diego County Water Authority (SDCWA) Board Meeting Summary
	8. October 2025 Monthly Status Report

